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Forward looking staternents The Stralegic
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TRAVIS PERKI

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE NOW OVER
£5BN WITH ANNUAL
GROWTH OF b 3%,
50% ON A LIKE-FOR-
LIKE BASIS

OPERATING PROFIT UP
10% TO £3350M

ADJUSTED PROFIT
BEFORE TAX UP £35M
OR 12 4% TO £321M

PROFIT AFTER TAX UP
£16M TO £265M

ADJUSTED EPS UP
14 5% TO 10506
PENCE

FINAL DIVIDEND UP
24% TO 271 PENCE,
GIVING FULL YEAR
DIVIDEND OF 31 PENCE

NET DEBT REDUCED BY
£104M TO £348M

NS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

OPERATING
HIGHLIGHTS

ALL DIVISIONS
ACHIEVED REVENUE
GROWTH

STRONG OVERHEAD
CONTROL
THROUGHOUT

THE GROUP

OPERATING MARGIN
IMPROVED BY O 1PP
TO b6 8%

43 NEW BRANCHES
AND 15 IMPLANTS
OPENED, INCLUDING
9 TOOLSTATION
OPENINGS WITHIN
WICKES

ACQUISITION OF
SOLFEX AND AN
ONLINE HEATING
PRODUCTS
DISTRIBUTION
BUSINESS




FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2013 2012

£m % £m

**(Restated)

Note

REVENUE 4 51487 63 48449
ADJUSTED*

Operating profit 5a 3476 67 3257

Profit before taxation 5¢ 3211 124 2858

Profit after taxation 5¢ 2495 156 2159

Adjusted earnings per ordinary share (pence) 11k 1036 143 906
STATUTORY

Operating profit 5a 3297 100 2996

Profit before taxation 5¢ 3126 45 2992

Profit after taxation 5¢ 2647 64 2487

Basic earnings per ordinary share (pence) 11a 1099 54 104 3

Total dividend declared per crdinary share (pence) 12 310 240 250

* Throughout this Annual Report the term adjusted has been used to signify that the effects of exceptional items arortisation of intangble assets and

the associated tax impacts have been excluded from the disclosure being made

** The Group has adopted the requirernents of 1AS 19 (revised 207 1) for the first time durng 2013 As a result the 2012 comparative numbers have
been restated 1o ensure that 2012 and 2013 have been prepared cn a comparable basis Full detals of the effect of appbang 1AS 19 (revised 2011)

are given in note 5e
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STRATEGIC
REPORT
OUTLINE

The Directors of the Company have
prepared a Strategic Report for the year
ended 31 December 2013 which 1s set
out en pages 6 to 55 It encompasses
the following information

Key perfermance indicators - page 6
Travis Perkins at a glance - page 8
Chairrmans staterment - page 12

Business model - what Trawvis Perkins
does - page 16

The Groups markets - page 17

Business review - page 20

Financial review - page 25

Evolution of the Group's strategy — page 31
Straiegic summary - page 37

Statement of principal risks and
uncertainties - page 39

Corporate responsibility statement - page 42
Incorporating

Stay safe report - page 46

Environmental report - page 50

Engaging people - page 52

The Strategie Report was approved by the
Board of Directors on 25 February 2014
and signed on its behalf by

John Carter Tony Buffin
Cheef Executive Officer  Chief Financial Officer
25 February 2014
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TRAVIS PERKINS AT A GLANCE

A major plc, which can trace its roots back over 200
years Travis Perkins 1s a leading company n the
bullders merchant and horme improvemeant markets
and 15 the UKs targest product supplier to the bullding
and construction market ane of the largest industnes
in the UK It operates 17 businesses frorn more than
1900 sites across the UK and lreland In June 2013
it entered the FTSE 100 for the first ime

As explained on page 31 the Group has recently
refocused its strategic objectives to underpin
shareholders value creation in light of the emerging
economic recavery As part of this review and with
effect from 1 January 2014 the Groups dwvisions
have been realigned The financial and operating
sections of the Annual Report have been prepared
using the divisional structure In place throughout
2073 Further detail on the realigned dmvisional
structure 1S set out on page 371

In 20713 Trawis Perkins comprised a strong
portfolia of businesses which were organised into
four divisicns, General Merchanting Specialist
Merchanting Consumer and Plumbing and Heating

THE GROUP'S MISSICN

Continue to deliver better returns by putting in place
and growing the best businesses with ouistanding
people providing cornprehensive bulding material
solutions to everyone creating, maintaining repairing
and improving the built environment  helping to
build Britain

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REFORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

THE GROUP’S BUSINESSES IN 2014

General Merchanting

15 the Groups core business operating under the
Travis Perkins fascia |t supplies products for all types
of repar mamntenance and improvernent projects
(RMI) as well as new builds It has developed
exclusive own label products the largest of which

15 4Trade The customers of General Merchanting
businesses are prmarlly professional tradesman,
ranging from sole traders to national housebuilders
whose key requirements are product range and
avallability competitive pricing and customer service

INDUSTRY
General bulding
materials

Travis Perkins 15 a leading
company in the bullders
rmerchant market, and 1s a
main supplier ta the bullding
and construction trades

POSITION
Number 1

Travis Perkins supplies more BRANCHES
than 100,000 product lines 643 around
to trade professionals and the UK
self-bullders

INDUSTRY
Kitchen

specizlists
Benchmarx Kitchen & Joinery

was openad in 2006 ltisa
trade only specialist outlet
supplying kitchens and joinery
products that meet the needs
of businesses of many sizes
from specialist joiners through
to local authorities and

POSITION
Number 2

BRANCHES
85 around
national housebuilders the UK




Contracts

has three man brands Keyline CCF and BSS and
these businesses are known for their knowledgable
staff and excellent delvery service

Keyline 1s cne of the largest
suppliers of cals heavy
bullding materals and
drainage solutions in the UK
with a nationwide network
that delivers thousands

of product lines to trade
professionals and specialist
contractors

CCF 1s one of the UKs leading
distributors of interor building
products to the construction
industry CCF has an
extensive product range from
celings drywatt and floonng,
to insulation partitoning and
fire protection products which
can be supplied from stock
and delivered nationwide

BSS industrial Pipeling

& Heating Solutions 1s

a specialist distributor

of pipeline heating and
mechanical services
eguipment serving customers
across all industnal sectors
within the UK and Ireland

Consumer

INDUSTRY
Cwils heavy bulding
matenals and
drainage solutions

POSITION
Number 1

BRANCHES
87 around
the UK

INDUSTRY
intenor building
solutions -
commercial offices
residential healthcare
education hotels,
airports retal food

POSITION |
Number 2

i

BRANCHES
31 around
the UK

INDUSTRY
Pipeline and heating
solutions

POSITION
Number 1=

BRANCHES
64 around
the UK

dwision supplies domestic bullding and decorative
materials through retail stores It differentiates its
propositicn through a higher proportion of own
brand products low prices and good availability
supplermented by the key brands required by DiYers

and the trade

Wickes opened its first store
In 1972 and now has over
200 stores throughout the
UK Wickes was acquired by
the Group in February 2005
There are currently 10000+
products in the Wickes

range which are avalable (0
order n-store online or by
telephone

Toolstation 1s a rapidly
growing retailer founded in
2003 operating from nearly
150 stores lis fully integrated
multichannel operating
model 15 class leading and
enables the business to offer
the lowest prices and best
availability

Tile Giant 1s one of the UK's
fastest growing suppliers

of ceramic tiles which are
avallable to both the public
and the trade Tile Giant was
founded in Staffordshire and
has grown to aver 100 stores
nationwide Tile Glant was
acquired by the Group

in 2007

Plumbing and Heating

supplies the trade with plumbing, heating ventlation
arr conditioning and related preducts Plumbing
Trade Supplies and City Plumbing Supplies are the
main brands in the divssion which supplies a wide
range of customers including demestic plumbers
independent merchants large contractars and
public services It 15 the joint number 1 business in
its sector As well as selling branded products the
division has developed very successful own brand
products such as BOSS and IFLO

INDUSTRY
DIY and home
Irnprovernent
product retaler

POSITION
Nurnber 2

STORES
229 around
the UK

STRATEGIC REPORT @

INDUSTRY
Retaller of tools
and hardware

POSITION
Nurnber 2

STORES
147 around
the UK

"
INDUSTRY

Retaller of
ceramic tiles

POSITION
Number 2

STORES
108 around
the UK
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TRAVIS PERKINS AT A GLANCE

City Plumbing Supplies is a
major nationwide plumbing
and heating merchant serving
the contract market and the
general plumbing and heating
trades The business offers
high quality products and
expertise to the trade

Plumbing Trade Supplies
(PTS) sells a wide range
of bathroom heating and
plumbing products to both
the private and public
sectors including national
housebuilders and sole
trading plumbers

F & P Wholesale 1s the leading
distnbutor of plumbing heating
and bathroom products inte
the Independent merchant
sector and retailers of fires

and bathrooms The business
distributes a wide range of

the UK's leading brands plus a
nurber of popular own brands
including Pro (heating and
ancillary products) and Fresssh
(bathrooms)

Direct Heating Spares (DHS)
15 a leading distnibutor of
dormestic heating spares In
the UK with national coverage
The business 1s focused on
impraving the supply and
service of domestic heating
spares to the trade

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCCUNTS 2013

INDUSTRY
Plurmbing
and heating

BRANCHES
193 around

the UK

INDUSTRY
Plumbing
and heating

BRANCHES
311 around

the UK

INDUSTRY
Plumbing heating
and bathrooms

DISTRIBUTION
CENTRES
9 across
the UK

INDUSTRY
Heating spares

LOCATIONS
7 unit
distrbuting
around the UK

Birchwood Price Tools { BPT)
s a leading wholesaler of
power tools, hand tools and
site equipment as well as a
developer of producis which
are sold within the Group

and to thid parties BPT was
forrmed in April 2009 as the
result of a merger between
Birchwood Products and Price
Tools and was acquired by the
Group In Decernber 2010

Connections was established
In the early 1980’ to supply
pre-packed plumbing fittings
It currently has over 4,500
product lines sourced from
leading manufacturers around
the world

City Heating Spares { CHS) 1s
a spares business launched

by the Group in 2010
Trading from counters within
selected plumbing and
general merchanting branches
throughout the UK CHS offers
Its customers expert advice
and thousands of parts for
sarne day or first thing next
day delvery

In 2013 the Group acquired
Solfex Energy Systerns
Limited a distrbutor of
renewables technology The
business trades from one site
in the north west of England

INDUSTRY
Tocls and hardware
wholesaler

LOCATIONS
3 distributing

around the UK

INDUSTRY
Plumbing
and heating

LOCATIONS
1 distributing

around the UK

INDUSTRY
Heating spares

BRANCHES
283 facias
around the UK

INDUSTRY
Renewables
technology

LOCATIONS
1 distnbuting

around the UK
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@ CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The Group has a
strong platform
fromn which to
take advantage of
the cpportunities
for sustainable
growth presented
by the increasing
confidence of Its
customers

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

INTRODUCTION

Although 1t 1s still early days for

the recovery the outlook for the
buillding materials market continues
to iImprove In 2013 the Group
finally saw its markets come out

of recession as confidence In the
building industry, driven partly by
the Government's Help-to-Buy
scheme, picked up However, it's
worth noting that the UK market for
bullding and construction materials
Is still, at December 2013, 13%
below the peak levels of 2008

Travis Perkins is led by an experienced board and
executive team that has adopted a measured
approach to trading and investment throughout the
last frive years It has a strong pertfolio of businesses
that give it national reach considerable product
breadth a divarsified custorner base a market
leading supply chain capability and leading positions
in each of its markeis Managements track record
of successfully combining organic and acquisitive
growth has led to a consistent cutperformance in
total returns to shareholders Overall this means
the Group has a strong platform from which to
take advantage of the opportunities for sustainable
growth presented by the increasing confidence of
its custormers

Managing top management successicn is the
most important task undertaken by the Board of
directors Working closely with Geoff Cooper the
Board commenced over two years ago to plan
for orderly succession 1n so doing the aim was




to ensure best in class practice and mitigate any
nvester uncertainty

Since early 2011 the Board has held frequent
Norninations Cormmittee meetings examined the
Company's long term strategy 10 evatuate the need
for external or internal succession and to clanfy the
balance of complernentary skilis required at the top
Investars were kept closely informed of the process
and a clear successicn pracess was initiated

+ In October 2012 Tony Buffin was announced as
the Group's new CFO following Paul Hampden
Smith's announcement of his intention to retire
after 17 years

In July 2013 Geoff Cooper’s retirement was
announced as CEQ in December 2013 and
John Carter's appontment as CEC from

1 January 2014

In September 2013, dohn Carter reorganised his
senicr management team and annaunced the
new group structure

Finally in December 2013 the Group's naw
executive team presented to the Capital Markets
its plans for leveraging the Group's position as the
largest supplier of bulding materals in the UK
Detals can be found on the Companys website
and in the evolution of the Groups strategy
sechon of this report on page 31

The aim throughout has been ta mitigate investor
uncertainty around these changes and ensure that
our investors share our confidence in the future
prospects of Trawvis Perkins

RESULTS
Although the poor weather impacted the start to
the year 20713 has been a successful year for the
Group Revenue increased by 6 3% 10 £5 Tbn
{2012 £4 8bn} whilst adjusted profit before tax rose
by £35mor 12 4% to £321m (2012 £286m)
Adjusted earnings per share rose by 14 3% to
1036p (2012 206p)

As the bullders merchanting market starts to
grow the Groups working capital requirements
Increase Even so despite Increases in both capital
investment and returns to shareholders the Group
continued 1ts recent trend of reducing debt levels At
31 Decermnber net debt was £348m sorme £104m
lower than at the previous year-end (2012 £452m)

Expansion remains a cornerstone of the Groups
strategy so the acquisiions of Solfex and an
online heating products distribution cormpany
were welcome additions to the Groups portfolio of
businesses In addiion a net 43 sites were opened
during the year increasing the number of trading
premises to 1939 by the year-end

DIVIDEND
The Board remains confidert about the Groups
prospects and believes that it should continue with
Its pregressive policy of iIncreasing dvidends at a
faster rate than the rate of increase 1N earnings to
achieve its re-stated target dividend cover ratio of
between 2 Hx and 3 25x for 2014 and onwards

Accordingly the Board 1s pleased to recommend
a final dwvidend for 2013 of 21p per share gving a
total dwvidend for the year of 31p (2012 25p) an
Increase of 24% over 20712 The final dividend will
be paid on 30 May 2014 to shareholders on the
register on 2 May 2014

The total cash outflow for dividends declared in
2013 will be approximately £75m

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As a fast moving trading business operating in
competitive markets the Group has benefited
significantly from having a very settled Board of
Oirectors to guide it through the difficult markets
It experienced over the last few years The Boards
drectors have all had sigrificant P&L and operating
experence mostly either as CFOs or CEQs of
large businesses so they bring to the Board table
a vast array of expenence in dealing with most
business situations

One of the key factors in the Groups success
15 Geoff Cooper who has led the Company with
considerabile skill and expertise over the last ning
years the results of which are that Travis Perkins 1s
now the largest supplier of building materials in the
UK and during 207 3 it joined the FTSE 100 for the
first time i 1ts hustory | would like to place on record
rmy own thanks to Geoff for his leadership and
support and | am sure that shareholders colleagues
and other stakeholders in the Group will join me in
wishing him well for the future

John Carter, who became Chief Executive on
1 January 1s an deal replacement for Geoff He has
extensive knowledge and expernence of the bulding

STRATEGIC REPORT @
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

materials industry and 18 widely respected by his
peers He has worked i the Travis Perkins group
for over 30 years having started out in the Groups
Tranee Scheme and 1s ideally placed to take the
Group into the next phase of its development

Last year, the Board announced the impending
retirerment of Chns Bunker He stepped down
{rom the Board in Noverber having served as a
non-executive director for a little over 9 years Phiip
Jansen who has been a director of the Cormpany for
Just over four years retired from the Board in May
due 10 other commitments Both Chnis and Philip
have been canstant sources of wise counsel to the
Board and will be missed They retire with the thanks
of the Board

Chnstopher Rogers joined the Board as a
non-executive director on 1 September 2013 He
has held senior positions In a number of companies
and s0 brings a wealth of experience to the Group

A key challenge facing the Board in the coming
year Is to ensure that we have an equally strong and
experienced group of non-executive directors as
John Coleman and Andrew Simon complete their
nine years service in 2014 and 2015 respectively

EMPLOYEES

The success of the Group 1s founded on the quality
of the people it employs The results for 2013 are
testament once agan to the many thousands of
colleagues who work throughout the Group | would
like to thank them all for their commmitment during
the vear to the success of the business

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2043

OUTLOOK
The outlook for 2014 s encouraging However the
Board will continue to monitor the market carefully
for any sign that the recovery may be slowing
l.ead indicators suggest that an iImprovernent in
the level of housing transactions 1s well underway
with mortgage approvals ncreasing and consumer
confidence improving although stll negative
End-user markets are also showing improving signs
and our analysis suggests that n 2014 only new
build in the public sector will continue to contract

After several years of following a policy of
targeting investrment towards those projects with
very shart payback periods and maintaining strong
control over costs the Board 15 now sufficiently
confident In the market’s prospects to increase
imvestment for the future The Board therefare
expects capital expenditure 10 increase to around
£130m - £150m i 2014 This nvestment in
new stares implants supply chain and IT along
with the network restructuring i the P&H dmsion
will also incur additional operating expenditure
The Group will continue to devolve responstbility
to its divisions whilst evolving the Groups partfolio
model and increasing the focus on returns on capital
employed at dvsional business and branch level
This approach should enable the Group to extend its
market leading positions

For the coming year the Board 1s encouraged by
the many positive lead indicators for construction
and trade markets Howsaver it 15 also cognisant that
stirmulus measures rmay be withdrawn and that retail
spending remains fragile with custormers looking for
value when deciding to invest in therr homes

Robert Walker
Chatrman
25 February 2014
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BUSINESS MODEL -
WHAT TRAVIS PERKINS DOES

The Travis Perkins Group operates a diverse range
of UK-based bullding matenals and praducts
distribution businesses The businesses are organised
Into four divisions, General Merchanting Plurmbing
and Heating, Contracts and Consumer The (Group
supplies matenal through physical branches stores
and increasingly online, pravides nationwide delivery
services and has a broad range of businesses in
terms of scale and custormers served

The unique breadth of businesses in the Group
and diverse supply channels provide resilience
to future changes in customer buying behaviour
Wickes Tile Giant and Toolstation are well placed to
benefit from the trend amongst smaller customers
seeking fixed prices and online convenience Similarly
BSS, CCF and Keyline provide the level of service
and bespoke framework agreements which are
increasingly Important to larger contract customers
The Group 1s arganised by customer type product
and operating rmodel as follows

TRAVIS PEPKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

The Group differentiates its customer proposiuon
through its

Size and brand strength

+ The size of the Group allows it to benefit from
economies of scale in comrmon and direct product
sourcing selective centralised distribution and
access o property eslate

= The Group trades through 17 well recogrised
brands each of which has developed a unique
customer proposition and clearly defined brand
position

Product solutions

= The range of businesses the Group operates
enables it 10 access and distribute products in
almost all bulding matenal product categories

« The Group 15 committed to buying products
commensurate with its custorners’ needs from
ethically responsible manufacturers

» The Group has developed a wide range of own
brand products which supplement the supply of
branded goods

« Excellent relationships with suppliers ensure ihe
Group beneftis from product innovation and keen
prices which it can pass through to its custormers

Excellent availability and fast and efficient delivery

« Nearly 70% of the Group's sales are delivered to
customers with two thirds of these routed through
the branch network

» Over 1650 colleagues 192 lormes 24 central

warehouses and 2 400 local delivery vehicles

enable the Group to operate an efficent delivery

service

The operation of lightside primary distribution

centres heavyside regional distnbution centres and

dedicated retall supply chains mean the Group

can offer superior access to range and excellent

availability

« Telephone mal order and internet ordering
channels enable customers to access the product
they need at their convenience

-

Excellent customer service

s Each business has developed a proposition which
concentrates on avallability service, range and
value for money which fit wath its customers’ needs

« The Group aims to employ develop and retain the
best people n the sector




THE GROUP'S MARKETS AND ITS
MARKET LEADING POSITIONS

The total UK construction and home improvernent
materials market 15 worth approximately £64bn
Travis Perkins’ addressable market 15 £33bn which
excludes certain trade and DIY categories and direct
from manufacturer to end-user supplies

Many of the Greups businesses hold market leading
positions and those that dc not are generally the
number two In therr respective market Therefore
ihe Group s well postioned to benefit from the UKs
economic recovery that 1s underway and further
enhance shareholder returns

The Groups largest nationwide competitars
account for less than half the turnover in the Groups
addressable markets Independents and regional
largely private companies make up the remainder of
the market There are categones with an addressable
market of approximately £11bn in which the Group

does not currently aperate These categories provide
potential opportunittes Into which the Group may
extend ts reach

LEAD INDICATORS
The Groups businesses supply greater volurnes to
the more resilent RMI market albert with a small
but important component of group turnover coming
from the supply of matenal to the new build market

Both new build and RMI markets saw a dramatic
contraction between 2007 and 2009 Market
volumes did not improve significantly between 2009
and 2012 however a meaningful recovery has
been underway since the first quarter of 2013 The
government’s action to encourage first-time house
buyers through Initiatives such as the Help-to-Buy
scheme has helped ease credit supply with the result
that secondary housing iransactions have shown
encouraging growth through the majonty of 2013

The Group tracks several market Indicatars from
the housing retall and construction sectors in order
to determine levels of investment and inform the
Groups trading stance Housing transactions and
consumer confidence remain the kay indicators
that most closely correlate ta future performance
Tradmonally there has been a lag of around nine
months between a change in those key indicators
and a corresponding Uplft in dernand volurnes

The most recent iead Indicaters suggest consistent
signs of improverment across all sectors in which
the Group operates The Group 1s well placed to
benefit from the upturn In UK bulding actvity and
in particutar the strength of secondary housing
transactions The Groups businesses serving general
trade and plumbing and heating customers have
experenced the highest levels of ‘mproving demand
however consumer markets remain weak with
modest growth experienced only in the final quarter
of 2013

Whilst the lead indicators the Group monitors and
industry body forecasts indicate significant growth
across all new build and RMI channels further
market shocks would inevitably change the pace
and shape of recovery Risks and uncertainties are
discussed further on pages 39 to 41

The fallowing chart shows some of the key lead
ndicators the Group tracks

STRATEGIC REPORT @
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THE GROUP'S MARKETS AND ITS MARKET LEADING POSITIONS

Looking in more detail at a number of the lead
indicators the Graup tracks the chart below shows
the recent recovery In mortgage approvals Despite a
modest iImprovement In mortgage approvals owing
to easing credit supply, Improvements in customer
confidence and the government’s Help-to-Buy
scheme approvals remain around 65% below the
levels achieved in 2007

Generally an upiurn in mortgage approvals leads
to an increase In housing transactions The increase
in secondary housing transactions in 201 3 appears
to have followed this general trend Similarly to
rmortgage approvals secondary housing transactions
remain well below the peak volumes achieved in
2006 and 2007

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

Consumer confidence although still negative
began to improve dunng the year That said the
return of confidence remains fragle with consumers
circumspect about how much they spend and when
and where they 1nvest in their hormes The following
chart sets out movernents in consumer confidence
between 2004 and 2013

MARKET TRENDS AND CUSTOMER
PROPOSITIONS

Custorners buying behaviours continually evolve and
it 15 Important that the Group stays ahead of these
changes End-users are becorming more confident

in challenging tradesrnen on matenals prices with
improvernents in technology enabling increasing
levels of price transparency In some of the Groups
markets In specific categonies and for smaller
tradesmen there 15 an emerging trend towards more
fixed rather than negotiated prices Larger customers,
quite nghtly, continue to demand both increased
levels of service and better value




« Increasing price transparency

« End-users chellenging tradesmen on matenal
prices

+ Jobbing tradesmen able to belter compare prices

« Lightside and high-value products

« Large custormers demanding increasing levels of
service and vatue

The Groups assembly of businesses serving large
and small customers across a broad range of
categories through onbine and offline channels and
its nationwide delivery capability means 1t 1s vary well
placed to adapt to and benefit from any changes in
customer behaviour and buying patterns

Whilst the internet s having a profound effect
on the High Street online penetration of bullding
matenal supply 1s around 3% and for DIY itis 7%
Penetration 1s expected to grow but the nature of
heavy and bulky goods supply means it 1s likely to
be weighted to lighter products or products with a
high urit value The following charts descnbe the
historic and projected growth in anline penetration,
from industry forecasts of the DIY and buillding
products rmarkets

Desprite the expectation of relatively modest
growth in penetration of online sales, the Group
15 cognisant of monitoning and responding to
the changes in technology buying behaviour
and supply arangements across the Group The
Groups acquisition of Toolstation in 2012 and
an online heating supplies business n 2013
alongside investment in new multichannel platforms
demonstrate the Groups intention to ensure 1t retains
and enhances its market leading positions whatever
the customers channel of choice

The Group will continue to moniter changes in
end-user and customer buying behaviour to ensure
that 1t 1s well placed to invest in ang benefit from any
changes underway Beyond changes to the channels
through which products are distributed the Group
has identified further outsourcing opportunities
where larger end-users such as local authoriies
have requested full service supply agreements
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The Groups markets began to show consistent
growth in 2013 and contnbuted to ancther solid
year of perforrmance The merchanting business was
the first to expenence an improvernent In its markets
as they picked up during the second quarter The
consumer markets remaned subdued untit towards
the end of the year when they also started to exhibit
modest signs of growth

Turnover and operating margin both increased
with costs being well conirolted Gross margins
reduced shghtly due to a combination of some
targeted investment In prices to grow volumes
changes in the mix of product sold and competitive
pricing The Group alse benefited from slightly
hugher than expected property profits on disposals
completed at the end of the year, a number of
one-off sourcing gains and income from short-term
supply contracts

In September 2013 a new divisional structure
was announced The Group will report on the new
divisional basis fram 1 January 2014 Accordingly
the results for 2013 are reported on the old
divisional basis

REVENUE
General  Speciabst Plumbing and
Merchanting Merchanting  Consumer Heating Total
% % % % %

Volume 67 95 47 52 61
Price / mix (08) (37) (C4) (11)
Like-for-like
per day 67 87 10 48 50
Trading day
impact 04 04 (03) 04 02
Expansion /
disposals 13 03 17 08 11
Total revenue
change 84 94 24 60 63

Total revenue grew by 6 3% driven by a combination
of a 50% increase in lke-for-lke ( LFL) sales
continued network expansion and one extra rading
day in the merchanting and plumbing and heating
dwisions

After a slow starl to the year belter weather
combined with an increasing level of confidence
saw sales wnprove from April The trend continued
through the year owing in part to the Governments
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Help-ta-Buy scheme bt also to the sustained
increase In housing transactions and house prices
By the final quarter of 2013 all dwisions were
experiencing good volume growth

The very weak market conditions experienced
in the first four months of the year created poor
conditions for passing through price increases from
suppliers resulting in product sales deflation for the
Group of approxmately 1 5% in the first half With the
exceptien of the Consumer division where Wickes
continued to invest In lower prices and plumbing
and heating which expenenced intense competition
resulting in deflatonary prices throughout the year
the pricing outlook improved as the year went on By
the end of the third quarter the general and specialist
merchanting businesses were seeing consistent
month-cn-month seling price inflaticn

Expansion into complementary business areas
continued to be an important part of the Groups
strategy In January Solfex was acquired distributing
sustainable solar and heating product installation
packages and in July the Group purchased a
51% stake in an online business distnbuting
heating products

The Group continued to organically grow its
trading estate and by 31 Decernber it operated
from 1938 sites (2012 1 896) The Group
accelerated 1ts plans to intensify existing space
opening Taolstation concessions within Wickes
stores new Benchrmarx kitchen implants in Travis
Perkins branches and introducing toalnire outlets in
BSS branches

ADJUSTED OPERATING MARGIN

The poor weather at the start of 2013 contributed
to aggressive price discounting 1n the critical first
quarter when custorners annual coniracts are
negotiated Effective cost management helped to
offset gross margn declines for the Group as a
whoale resulting in adjusted operating profit increasing
by 67% 10 £348m (2012 £326rn) and the
related adjusted operating margins growing by 0 1
percentage point to 6 8% (2012 6 7%)




General  Specialist Plumbing and
Merchanting Merchanting Consumer Heating Total
% % % % %
2012
operating
margin 115 52 56 45 67

Gross margn (0 2) (15) 11 06 (04)

Overheads (02) 10 08 03 05
Property profits Q1 (01)

2013

operating

margin 112 45 53 54 68

DIVISIONAL PERFORMANCE

General Merchanting

2013 2012 Change
Revenue £1579m £1457m 8 4%
LFL growth 6 7%
Segment proft  £176m £167m 54%
Operaling margn 11 2% 115% (03)pp

New housing activity continued to drive market
volurne growth coupled with improvements in
sentiment amongst the Groups trade customers
dunng the second half of 2013 Sales price deflation
experienced in the first half as expected reversed
in the second half of the year As the demand for
heavyside products iImproved a number of brick
and block products expenenced longer supply lead
tmes These supply constraints added to second half
price inflation as manufacturers increased prices In
exchange for certamnty of supply

General Merchanting revenue grew by B 4%
6 7% on a like-for-like ('LFL) basis Momentumn
accelerated from 2 7% LFL in the first half to
10 1% in the second half All product categories
contributed to this recovery with particularly
strang perfarrmances in the lghiside and tool-
hire categones Gross margin improved in the
second half owing to effective price managerent
and growth in higher margin categories Daspite
robust cost management and operational gearing
operating investrments meant there was only a
madest reduction in the overhead to sales ratio for
the year as a whole

Travis Perkins continued to develop and tnal its new
branch format The Leamingten and Luton branches
were successfully moved and co-located with ather
graup businesses on two of the Groups Trade Parks
Timber, forest products and ightside categones
were reviewed during the year and the “Trade Offers

fixed pnce promotions continued to help improve
price perception A new multi-channel IT platform
implemented across the Group will be extended ta
Travis Perkins 1n 2014 and this should enable the
introduction of online product ordering to implement
the already well established telephone-based ordering
and tocal delivery infrastructure

The extensicn of tooirire implants continued
with 14 pew implants added in the year Seven
new branches were opened along with two new
managed service outlets which operate solely to
service local authonties registered social landlords
and therr contractors Towards the end of the year
the Wemington Regional Distnbution Centre (RDC )
was successfully relocated with no service 1ssues
Work started on the Cardiff ROC which will come on
stream during the third quarter of 214

These RDCs will enable a wider range of heawyside
products to be made mare readily avallable to
branches and thus custormers

The division's senior commercial and operational
teams were re-crganised in the latter part of the year
lo bring ciearsr accountability for the improvement
programmes throughout the business and an
enhanced focus on operational performance
The dwisicn cantinued to refine its zonal delivery
nitiative to improve avalability of transport to meet
custormers reguirements and new equipment and
In-branch practices were introduced to Improve
safety for tearmn members and their customers

Specialist Merchanting

2013 2012 Change
Revenue £660m £604m 94%
LFL growth 87%
Segment profit £30m £32m (411%
Operating rrargn 46% 52% {09 pp

The division made good progress improving the
depth of product range avallable to its customer base
which was rewarded with strong volume growth

The diisions revenue grew by 9 4% owing to
range improvements selective pnce investments
and the reduction in capacrty from a significant
competitor falure Lack of product inflation
particularly in the first half compstitor activity and a
change in sales mix resulted in a reduction In gross
margin The reduction in grass margin was lower
in the second half with the onset of more positive
trading conditions Animprovernent in the overhead
10 revenue ratio mitigated some of the impact of the
decline In gross margin

Cespite the poor weather expenenced In the first
quarter Keylines range extension and customer
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service focus enabled it to deliver double digit
revenue growth in both the first half and second half
of the year Further specialisation improved sales but
in part resulted In maore direct to site sales which
In turn attract a lower gross margin Gross margns
improved slightly in the second half

Investrment n expertise to support market
specialisation was increased in order to access
the rail and utlities markets and 1n particular in
drainage and geotextile products The expansion of
the contractor customer base and access to new
customers in the rail and utlity markets provides a
solid base for future growth Levels of actvity In the
new housing market were encouraging and resulted
in an increased level of demand by speciatist
groundwaork contractors

After a sluggish first quarter CCF's revenue growth
wnproved N each successive quarter recording double
digit growth in the second half and gaining market
share for the year The developrment of new market
sectars for the business such as the introduction of
the Sektor brand late in the internal partitions market
and an improving product mix helped to offset gross
margin declines In commaodity categones which faced
Intense competitive discounting

The opening of Belvedere branch, which has
perfarmed 1n line with expectations, brought the
total network to 31 branches The business online
presence continued to grow albeit from a relatively
small base

Benchrmarx Kitchens and Joinery completed
the restructunng of 1ts cusiomer praposition The
end-to-end review of the customer expernence
product set and the supply chain started 1o yield
further Improvements to profitability in the second
haif New standalone branches which were opened
with sigrificantly lower set up costs on the Groups
Trade Park sites in Luton and Leamington have
resonated well with custormers On 1 January
20174 twenty seven kitchen fascias in Travis Perking
branches were re-branded Benchmarx A new
website was also developed during the year with
encouraging results

Sales improved throughout 201 3 following the
protracted cold weather at the start of the year
The improvernents in gardening related sales in the
summer were however less marked in Wickes given
its limited range in outdoor categories

Wickes continued ta invest In lower prices through
its red pencil price reduction programme and
stronger promotional deals Wickes pnice investment
accelerated in the second half with volumes growing
as a result however gross marging were impacted
by these investrments Improvements In sourciNg
changes i the distnibution of ordered bathrooms
and the removal of the Mycard reward programme
helped reduce the impact of the greater price
investment and deeper promotional offers

Wickes increased its focus in reducing operating
costs and in daing so reduced iIts cost to sales
ratio dunng the year Good progress was made
In consoltdating warehouse operations improving
labour productivity following the introduction of auto-
replenishment systems and through the downsizing
and sub-letting of oversized shops Four stores were
relocated or dewnsized dunng the year and two new
stores were opened New web and mobile platforms
were introduced offenng customers a better online
shopping experience

The significant Investments in pricing and
prormotional offers meant Wickes 2013 profit
declined madestly compared to the prior year

Toolstation had another encouraging year of sales
growth and network expansion Double digit LFL
revenue growth was driven by a continued focus on
customner service strong avallability and investrments
In ensuring the lowest prices in the market 24 new
shops were opened dunng the year including 9
implants In Wickes

Although 1t 1s stil early in the development of the
proposition Toolstation implants in Wickes appear to
be resonating well with customers Those implants
are helping Wickes drive additional footfall and are
contributing to rent costs Toolstation s benefiting
from Wickes footfall thereby achieving profitabiity
faster than in many of its new standalone shops

Consurner Plumbing and Heating
2013 2092 Change 2013 2012 Change
Revenue £118Cm €1152m 24% Revenue £1730m £1632m 60%
LFL growth 10% LFL growth 4 8%
Segment profit £63m £65m (27)% Segmeni profit £94m £73m 288%
Operatng margn  53% 56% (03)pp Operating margn =~ 54% 45% 0%pp

Revenue in the consumer division increased by

2 4% n the year despite a challenging customer
environment and inclement weather throughout the
first quarter

The challenging trading conditions experienced

in 2012 continued nto 2013 and were further
exacerbated by the poor weather in the first quarter
However trading conditions improved significantly
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duning the year resulting in sales growth of 60% and
LFL growth of 48%

Dermand for domestic plumbing and heating
products grew steadily during the year as
housebullder activity increased RMI activity also
increased and the government backed ECO (Energy
Company Obligation) schames further assisted the
number of boler installations The ECO schernes will
centinue through to 2014 but most likely at a lower
level of actvity than experenced in 2013

The cormmercial plurmbing and heating market
dispiayed good growth during the summer months
however a number of project delays impacted
volumes towards the end of the year

Despite the cormmercial and industnal market
sectors remaining weak BSS performed well due
to an increased focus on the industnal market LFL
growih was cver twice that of the division as a whole
Ten industrial centres of excellence were opened In
the year slocking a wider range of products coupled
with greater service and technical expertise

Gross margns for the division increased despite
market conditions and Intense competitive pricing
This was achieved through strong partnerships with
key suppliers and impravements in sourcing and
oroduct mix as well as a number of one-off short
term cantract benefits which are not expected to
recur at the same level in 2074

QOverheads were well contralled with the ratio
of cost to sales reduced during the year The
Improverment In the cost ratio was achieved despite
further investrnent N the expansion of toolhire in BSS
and the continued roll out of new showrooms and
spares mplants through the existing branch network

Seven BSS toolhire mplants opened in the year
bringing the total nurmber of branches to 18 Seven
PTS and F & P sites were closed in the year with the
majority of business transferred to nearby locations
Four new City Plumbing branches were opened and
are performing in ine with the Group's expectations

Within CPS the very successful Endeavour
bathroom showraom offer was extended to 76
showrooms |n addition the spares product category
delivered impressive growth and market share gains
Spares service was extended with orders now being
taken up until 8pm for next day delivery

The BSS industnal network has been expanded
dunng the year with the opening of two new concept
branches one as an implant brarch at a Keyline
site and ane as a standalone small foatprint branch
These branches have traded well in the final quarter
of the year and gve the Group cenfidence that these
forrnats could be extended nto other catchments
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SUPPLY CHAIN
For the third year running the innovation and
skills of our supply chain teams were recognised
by the industry The supply chain team achieved
short-listings for awards in safety, Innovation and
technology and one of our tearn members achieved
the award for nsing star at the Furopean Supply
Chain Excellence Awards

These awards reflect the importance the Group
places on building supply chain skills Over 100 of
our team mermbers attended tallored courses at
Cranfield Universty This investment in people skaills
coupled with continued nvestment in the Group's
supply chain systems and infrastructure are helping
to bulld the bullding matenals sectars most effective
and efficient supply chain This will become more
important as customers increasingly adopt mobile
and other muli-channel technology

Dunng the year significant progress was made in
implermenting the Groups supply chain strategy
« Consolidating one of the Wickes warehouses inta a
sister site
Extending the reach of the Warrington heavy side
RDC by relocating to a larger site
Bringing our kitchen supply and districution
in-house far Benchmarx
Increasing capacity for Toolstation through a new
warehouse opening
Annauncing the development of a second heavy
matenals RDC in Cardiff
Announcing the development of a new Primary
Distribution Centre (PDC) for lghter products
which will open in Warringion early in 2015
« Completing a tender for the development of our

new supply chain and warehouse sysiems
The supply chain team also achieved a further
30% reduction In time lost to injuries on top of an
excellent safety performance 1n 2012

CENTRAL SERVICES

The streamlining of central services has continued

through the devolution of more responsibiity to

dwsional management whilst retaining the benefits

ansing from the scale of the Group Divistonal

boards have been established and business

partnerng from central teams implernented
Projects have staried which will see considerable

investrment 1n the Groups IT systems in the coming

years under iwo broad themas

« Irwesting for the future developing the Groups
new web based trading platforms and other
systems to Improve customer propositions

» Re-engineenng and mirastructure which will result
In the replacement of exsting hentage platforms
that are approaching the end of their useful lives
and upgrading networks to support future growth
and capacity demands




FINANCIAL REVIEW

MANAGING THE GROUP'S FINANCES
The Group undertook a review of Its strategy
duning the year which was presented at the
Capital Markets day in December 2013 The well
docurnented recovery In the Groups end-user
markets means there are more opportunities to
invest for organic growth than has been the case
for a number of years

As a result it was nght that the Group's financing
strategy be reviewed and financial targets and
metrics be modified to take account of these
Investment opportunities These investment
oppartunities mean the business 1s likely to need
access to deeper pools of funding to implement
its strategy of expansion To this end the Group
intends to run the business to investment grade
metrics This 1s important as it will enable the Group
to access debt at reasonable cost dversify its
sources of finance to avoid being overly reliant on
one form of financing and improve its covenant In
negotiatians with landlards the pension schemas it
operates and suppliers

Over recent years the Group has been reducing
on-balance sheet leverage as the avallability of
bank and other credit has becorme bath scarce
and relatively mare expensive This strategy of
deleveraging will continue until the Group has
access to sufficient capital at reasonable cost and
1s confident that this position can be mantained At
the same time the Group 18 cognisant of continuing
to provide strong returns to shareholders

Balancing the desire to access capital at
reasonable cost to enable invesiment for growth
whilst maintaining strong shareholder returns
means the key financial metrics of the Group have
been modified The Groups ambition 1s to achieve
sel targets over the next three years primarily as a
result of increasing the level of earnings

The Groups strategy 1s also clear inits ambition
to devolve more accountability to the management
leams In each business This means management
teams taking a mare active role in competing
for capital as well as driving earmings growth and
therefore 1t 1s important to place more weight on
lease adjusted return on capital (LAROCE') than
operating margn as a measure of success than
has hisioncally been the case The revised financial
targets of the Group which were announced on 3
December 2013 are set out as follows

l_
o
O
a
[
(5%
Measure Current performance Medium term ambition %
Adusted eamings Double digit Lui
per share {note 116) 1036p growth pa Z
Lease adusted ROCE {note 37)  100%  +200 - 30Cbps | =
Lease adjusted debt v
to EBITDAR (note 36) 30x 25x
Fixed charge cover (rote 36) 29x% 35%
Dvidend cover {note 12) 33x 250% - 325«
The Groups success 1s based on its people Finance
15 no different, and with the sharper focus on
LAROCE and competition for capital it 1s essential
to improve the quality of financial management
throughout the business and the strength of the
finance teams This work 1s well underway
FINANCIAL RESULTS
The operating performance of the Group has been
taid out in the Business Review on pages 20 to 24
of this report The key financial metrics and targets
have been set out above however the key Income
staternent metnics are shown below
2013 2012
£m % £m
Revenue 51487 63 48449
QOperating profit 3297 100 2996
Profit before tax 3126 45 2992
Tax 479 (GH! 505
Profit after tax 20647 64 2487
Basic EPS 109%9p 54 104 3p
Throughout this annual report consistent with the
approach in prior years the term adjusted has been
used to signify that the effects of exceptionat items
and arnortisation of Intangible assets have been
excluded from the disclosures being made The
ad)usted operating profit and profit before tax are
shown below
2013 2012
£m % £m
Adjusted operating profit 3476 67 3257
Adjusted profit before tax 3211 124 2858
Adusted EPS 1036p 143 90 6p
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Amortisation of goodwill and intangible assets

The annual amortisation charge was £18m (2012
£17m) International Accounting Standards require
the Group to conduct an annual review of the
carrying value of goodwill and intangble assets

to deterrnine whether any iImparrment should be
recognised in the financial statemenis As shown in
notes 13 and 14 the Directors have concluded that
the future cash flows of each business are sufficient
to support the balance sheet carrying value of
goodwill and intangble assets therefore no provision
for mpairment 1s required

Finance costs

Net finance costs which comprnise interest on debt
mark-to-market farr value adjustments and other
financing type costs associated with pension schemes
provision discounts fund raising costs and interest on
tax were £26rm some £14m lower than last year
(2012 £40m)

Borrowing costs on outstanding debt were
£6m lower at £23m (2012 £29m) as a result
of reduced debl levels repayment of $200m of
the Groups private placerent notes and lower
cormmitment fees following the reduction In the
Groups bank faciliies in April The average interest
rate on the Groups borrowings during the year was
36% (2012 39%)

The mark-to-market impact of dervative contracis
outstanding at the year end was £4m lower n 2013
with a £1m gain baing recorded (2012 £3m loss)

Other financing type costs were £4m lower at
£4m (2012 £8m)

Exceptional items

Reported profit before tax was £14m higher than
last year at £313m (2012 £299m) despite lower
net exceptional crediis ansing principally from the
fair value accounung treatrment of the outstanding
Toolstation consideration which 1s due 1o be setiled
during 2014

Tax charges
The statutory tax charge far the year was £48m
(2012 £51m) The underlying tax charge before
exceptional iterms was £68m (2012 £66m)
which represents an effective rate of 22 4% (2012
24 5%) which is slightly below the standard rate
of corporation tax of 23 25% (2012 24 5%)
applicable to profits in the United Kingdom The
difference 15 mainly due to the value of non-taxable
property profits exceeding the value of expenses not
deductible for tax purposes A full reconcilistion of
the actual to standard tax rates 1s included in note
10 to the accounts

The difference between the actual and the
underlying tax charges is due to the impact of the
- £20m (2012 £13m) exceptionat deferred tax
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credit caused by the 2% corporation tax rate
reduction from April 2014 and a further 1%
reduction from April 2015
» The £2m tax mpact of the £8m (2012 £10m
tax impact of £39m) of non-taxable exceptional
iterns included within profit befare tax
The Group's balance sheet tax provision includes
£45m relating 1o an uncertain tax posttion currently
under discussion with H M Revenue and Customs
{HMRC) which arose in a prior period Should the
Group's flled tax positon be agreed with HMRC
the tax charge in the group Income staternent
in a future period will be reduced by the release
of the £45m provision If after concluding all
possible avenues avallable to the Group 1t becomes
necessary to amend the Group's filed tax position
then a tax payrment of £45m will be made o
HMRC at that time

Earnings per share
Profit after taxation rose by 6 4% to £265m (2012
£249m) which resulted In basic earnings per share
growing 5 4% to 1099 pence (2012 1043
pence) There is no significant difference between
basic and diluted basic earmings per share

Adjusted profit after tax was £249m (2012
£216m) which resulted in adjusted earnings per
share increasing by 14 3% to 1036 pence (2012
906 pence) The increase reflects the improvemnent
in trading profit lower financing costs and the
reduction In the standard rate of corporation tax
There 1s no significant difference between adjusted
and diluted adjusted earnings per share

Capital employed and LAROCE

Net assets at the end of 2013 were £2,515m
{2012 £2 256m) which contributed io capital
employed of £3008m (2012 £2,878m) (note 37)

The Groups adjusted (for exceptional items and
amortisation) pre-tax return on capital for the year
was 118% (2012 11 5%) After adjusting for
property leases at a rate of 8 trmes the annual lease
charge the lease adjusted return on lease adjusted
capital employed was 100% (2012 98%) On
both a reportec and lease adjusted basis returns
are well above the Groups weighted average cost of
capital of 9 7%

The Group's property team made a further
important contribution to prafits by realising £17m of
gans (2012 £15m) from ten significant projects the
largest of which was the final stage of the St Pancras
branch development This was better than anticipated
as a number of smaller projects were completed In
the final quarter of the year Consistently delivering
property profits has become a feature of the Groups
property management strategy and the intention 1§
to continue to manage the property estate to ensure
that the Group has access to the best operating




sites whilst at the same time maximising value from
its praperty portfolio over tirme At the year end the
carrying value of the freehold and long-leasehold
estate was £308m (2012 £287m)

During the year the dally closing share price
ranged betwaen 1 088p {2012 784p) and
1872p (2012 1 149p} The shares closed
the year at a price of 1872p (2012 1088p)
increasing the Groups market capitalisation over
the year by 74% to £4 62bn (2012 £2 66bn)
This represented 71 8 times shareholders funds (37
Decernber 2012 12 times)

Dividend
The proposed dividend for the year of 31 pence
represents a 24% increase compared to 2012
(2012 25 pence) An mterim dwidend of 10
pence was paid to shareholders in Novernber
2013 at a cost of £24 2m If it 1s approved the
proposed final dvidend of 21 pence will be paid on
30 May 2014 and will cost the Group £5Tm

A 370 full year dvidend reduces dwidend cover to
3 3 times (2012 36 tmes) adjusted earnings per
share bringing dwvidend cover closer to the Board's
re-stated target cover of between 2 5x and 3 25x
from 2014

FINANCING STRATEGY
Strong financial capial management 1s a
fundamental component of the overall group
strategy The Group maintains a capital structure
that 1s both appropriate to the on-going neads of the
business and ensures It remnains within the covenant
Urrits that apply to its banking arrangements
The current preferred capiial structure of the
Group consists of debt which includes bank
borrowings and US private placerment notes cash
and cash equivalents and equity attnbutable to
equity holders of the parent comprising issued
capital reserves and retained earnings However the
Board regularly reviews the sources of debt avalable
to the Group and 1t 1s the intention to diversify
sources and maturities aver the next two years
The capital structure is formally reviewed by the
Board as part of its annual strategy review but it 1s
kept under review throughout the year As necessary
the Group will rebalance its capital structure by
Investing In the business raising or repaying debt
Issuing equity or paying dvidends
The strategic capital management ambition of the
Group 5 to
« Target nvestment grade credit metncs
« Diversify sources of debt to maintain an acceptable
matunty profile whilst lowering overall funding costs
= Maintain group funding flexibility to allow for
property purchases and branch infill and category
acquisitiens
» Balance the need to ensure avalable funding with

the desire for an efficient cost of capial
Generate sufficient free cash flow to enable the
Group to follow & progressive and sustanable
dividend policy through the cycle Specifically this
will result in
+ Adwidend cover range from 2014 of between
25xand 325x
» Moving towards the centre of the range over the
following 12 to 24 moriths
Whilst the Group has brought down debt levels in
recent vears deleveraging aver the rext two years
rmay be more modest given the Group's
* Value adding investrment plans
« Need to increase investment In warking capital as
the Group expands
« Intention to operate a progressive dvidend policy
The Group 1s also party to a large number of leases
most of which relate to prernises occupied by the
Group for trading purposes The weighted average
duratien (the time untl the Grougs first opportunity
to exit the lease) 1s approximately 9 5 years
At 371 December 2013 property leases
capitalised at 8x the annual rent roll were
approximately 81% of the Groups combined on
and cff balance sheet funding with an annual rent
roll of approxmately £184m (2012 £175m) It
15 likely that property leases will become a smaller
camponent of the Group's financing structure n
future nonetheless they will remain a significant
and important part of the Groups funding structure
In addition the Group paid approximately £12m
(2012 £14m) in respect of nan-property
operating leases
Note 30 gives further details about the Group's
operating lease cormmitments
The capital structure of the Group at 371
December comprised

2013 2012

£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents (80) {139)
Bank loans 235 264
US private placement notes at fair value 129 261
Loan notes 3 3
Finance leases 24 26
Liability to pension scheme 37 37
Net pension fund daficits 57 97
Goodwill written off 93 83
Exchange adustrnent (4) (20)
Equity attributable to shareholders 2515 2256
Total balance sheet capital employed 3009 2878
Property operating leases (8x rentals} 1474 1405
Total lease adjusied capital employed 4483 4283
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NET DEBT, FUNOING AND LIQUIDITY

Strong working capital control in the final quarter of
the year enabled net debt to finish the year ahead of
the Groups expectations at £348m (31 December
2012 £452m), a reduction of £104m (2012
£131m) Adjusted free cash flow for the period was
£240m (2012 £242m) (note 35)

Despite the business tending to increase working
capital as trade sales grow when compared with
2012 the net movement in debtors and creditors
15 very similar However, we have increased
stockholdings to ensure that avaitability one of the
core pillars of our custormer proposition has been
further improved

Gross capital and investment expenditure totalled
£119m (2012 £110m) Capital replacement
expenditure totalled £44m (2012 £54m) and
aggregate expansionary capital was £75m (2012
£56m)

In addition to its equity, the Group 1s financed
through a cornbination of unsecured bank
berrowings and unsecured guaranteed US senior
notes at fixed and floating rates of interest The
Board regularly reviews the facilities available and
seeks to maintain them at a level sufficient ta
faclitate execution of its strategy whilst ensuning
thai liquidity headroom will cover most reasonably
possible eventualities

The Group has no immediaie need to refinance
existing facilities however it will seek to diversify
funding sources over the next two years At 31
December 2013 the Groups commuitted funding
comprised
« Arevolving credd faclity of £550m which runs

until December 2016 advanced by a syndicate of

10 banks
« 5200m of unsecured guaranteed SUS senior

notes due for repayment in January 2016
= A £50m bilateral revobving credit facility

committed to 31 March 2015
Since the year-end the Group has signed another
two bi-lateral agreerments each for & £50m revolving
credit facility which expire in March 2015

The peak and minimum levels of daly drawn
borrowings on a cleared basis during the year
were £684m and £397m respectively (2012
£827m and £468m) The maximum month end
cleared borrowings were £603m (2012 £682m)
At 31 December 2013, the Group had undrawn
comrutted facilities of E360m (2012 £475m)

EFFECTIVE FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The overall aim of the Groug's financial nsk
management policies 1s 1o mintise potential
adverse effects on financial performance and net
assets The Group manages the principal financial
rnisks within policies and operating parameters
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approved by the Board of Directors and does

not enter Into speculative transactions Treasury
activities are managed centrally under a framewark
of policies ang procedures approved by and
monitored by the Board

The Groups policy 15 to enter inio dervative
coniracts only with members of its bank facility
syndicate provided such counterparties meet the
minimur rating set out in the Board approved
derwvative policy

The Group's hedging policy I1s to generate its
preferred nterest rate profile, and so manage its
exposure to Interest rate fluctuaticns by using
interest rate derwvatives Currently the policy 1s
to maintan between 33% and 75% of drawn
borrowings at fixed interest rates

The Group has entered into a number of
interest rate dervatives designed io protect it
from fluctuating nterest and exchange rates on its
borrowings At the year-end the Group had £116m
notional value of interest rate derivatives resulting
In interest rates being fixed on approximately 42%
{2012 39%) of the Groups cleared gross debt
{before cash and cash equivalents)

The Group settles its currency related trading
obligations using a combination of currency
purchased at spot rates and currency bought
in advance on forward contracts lts policy 1s to
purchase forward contracts for between 30% and
70% of its antcipated requirements twelve months
forward At 31 Decemnber 201 3 the nominal
value of currency contracts all of which were SUS
dencminated was S83m (2012 5113m) which
gave a 42% (2012 57%) coverage of forecast
reguirements for 20714

To fully protect itself aganst adverse currency
mavements and enable it to achieve its desired
Interest rate profile the Group has entered into two
cross currency swaps and four forward currency
contracts in respect of s $200m of SUS private
placerment notes

The Group 15 a substantial provider of credit
to a large portfclio of small and medium size
businesses throughout the UK together with some
of the country's largest companies It manages its
exposure to credit nsk through a strong credit control
function that works closely with the business and
Its custorners to ensure the Group offers credit
sutficient for the needs of those custormers without
expasing the Group to excessive risk The bad
debt charge in 2013 was approxmately O 35% of
credit sales, which s at the lower end of the scale
previously achieved by the Group

In summary the kay aspects of the Groups
financial nsk managernent strategy are to
= Target investment grade credit parameters
« Reduce the Groups reliance on the bank market
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for its funding by having a diverse mix of funding
sources with a spread of maturities
« Seek to maintain a strong balance sheet
» Accord a high prionty to effective cash and
working capital managernent
« Maintain liquidity headroom of over £200m
and continue good relationships with the Group's
bankers
= Manage counterparty risk by raising funds from
a syndicate of lenders the members of which
maintain Investment grade credit ratings
« Operate banking covenants within comfortable
margins
« The ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA
(earnings before interest tax depreciation and
armortisation) has to be lower than 3 0x, it was
0 7x at the year-end (note 36)
= The nurnber of urnes adjusted operating profit
covers interest charges has to be a least 3 5x
and It was approximately 18x at 31 Decernber
2013 (note 9)
= Have a conservative hedging policy that reduces
the Groups exposure to currency and interest rate
fluctuations

TAX STRATEGY AND TAX RISK MANAGEMENT
The Groups objectives in managing and controlling
Iits tax affairs and related tax nsks are as follows
» Ensuring compliance with all applicable rules and
regulations under which the Group cperates
= Maintaining an open and co-operative relationship
with the UK Tax Authorities to reduce its nisk profile
Tax nsks are assessed as part of the formal
governance process and are reviewed by the Chief
Financial Officer and reported to the Groups Audit
Cormmittee on a regular basis
Sigruficant tax risks implications ansing from these
nsks and potential mitigating acticns are considered
by the Board when sirategic decisions are taken
» The tax rnsks of proposed transactions or new
areas of business are fully considered before
proceeding
= The Group employs professional tax specialists
to manage tax nsks and takes appropriate tax
advice from reputable professional firms where it
Is cansidered to be necessary

PENSIONS

Adjustments to prior period results

IAS 19 (revised 2011) and the related
consequential amendrments have impacted the
accounting far the Groups defined benefit schernes
by replacing the interest cost and expected return
on plan assets with a net interest charge on the net
defined benefit scherme liability The comparatives
for 2012 have been restated with the result that
profit before tax decreased by £14 1m and actuanal
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losses In the staterment of other cormprehensive
incorne were reduced by ££714 1m The combined
net defict of the schernes at 31 December 2012
was unaffected and there was no impact on
reported cash flows

Duning 201 3 the Financial Reporting Review
Panel 1ssued guidance in respect of IFRIC 14
Prepayments of a Minimurm Funding Requirernent’
This caused the Group to abtain further legal
advice which has resulted in the Group amending
its accounting treatrnent of pension scheme
schedules of contributions In these accounts the
Group has included the schedule of contributions
in 1ts calculation of pension scheme liabilities
recognised in the balance sheet Although the
change has resulied 1n a restatement of the pension
Labilities and associated deferred tax assets for
the Travis Perkins schemne for previous year-ends
{net adjustrment 2012 £53m, 2011 £58m), the
change has not impacted upon reported profits or
cash flows Further detalls are given In note 28

Current funding position and contributions

At 371 December 2013 the combined accounting
gross geficit of the Groups defined benefit pension
schemes after allowing far the minimum funding
schedule of contributions was £71m {2012
£126m)

The Travis Perkins scherne saw a significant
improverneant in its funding level as a result of strong
asset returns At the year-end it was 99% funded
on a technical provistons basis giving a gross deficit
of £6m (2012 £67m) Once the scheme s fully
funded, the Campany will have no further cbligation
to make minimum funding contnbutions untess
the funding level returns to below 100% when the
value of contributions will depend upon the value
of the defict, the Cormpany's iInvestrment rating and
dividend policy

Following the Government's deciston to introduce
penston auto-enrolment for employees the Group
comrnenced 1its preparations in 2012 ltsetup a
new rmaster trust and consolidated all its existing
defined contnbution schemes into one

The Groups staging date was 1 March 2013
On 1 June auta-enrolment commenced and
approximately 9 200 colleagues joined the scherne
with only 2% opting out

The Group contnbuted £12m (2012 £7m) of
cantributions to its defined contribution scheme
during the year

Tony Buffin
Chief Financial Officer
25 February 2014




EVOLUTION OF THE
GROUP’S STRATEGY

Foliowing the improving outlook for the overall market
and changes to the Group's executive directors
the Group reviewed its strategy and presenied it
to nvestors at a Capital Markets day in Decernber
2013

As explained on page 17 the Groups markets
are showing signs of Improverment As many of the
Group's businesses accupy market leading positions
they are well positoned to exploit opporiurities
offered by improving markets

The Groups main aim over the last five years
has been to protect its margins through careful
rnanagernent of prices whilst holding volurmes
generally stable Its careful control of costs, working
capital and capital expenditure has helped maintamn
the strength of the balance sheet The improving
market conditions now give the Group the confidence
to modify Its strategy through increasing its capital
Investment programme to intensify sales and profit
densities from existing space reinvest in is customer
propositions and continue to use its scale to Improve
service to custormers and returns to shareholders

To enable the Group 1o deliver its strategy the
divisional structure was refined with effect from 1
January 2014 The most significant change was 1o
combine the three businesses that supply products
under contract arangements to large construction
companies and project contractors into one contracts
division In so doing the division can better track
major project activity for all three businesses Keyling
BSS and CCF

The financial and operating sections of the Annual
Report has however been prepared using the
divisionat structure In ptace throughout 2013

The diagram below shows the revised structure as
a result of the changes made on 1 January 2014

THE GROUP’S MODIFIED STRATEGY

The refocused strategy s designed to deliver long
term sustainable value through the following levers
of value creation

* Improved customer innovation

= Optimising the Groups store and branch network

» Scale advantage
« Portfollo management

The levers of value creation and key components of

each lever are set out In the diagram below
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[ What | [ How ]
Portfolio
Scale managernent
Optimsing || 9ventage Streamlined
Customer network Supply chain ?enlral
AREVAton TP ex Investment unclions
pansIon Devalued
and Leverage evaly
LEEZJVGO' modernisation property managerment
capability responsibility
Extended Wickes Disciined
range national Group ISCipline:
footpnnt sourcing plac?”'”gt l
Product f and capita
developroent Plumbing and benefits allocation
Heating Shared
Format format clarty || technology REELLJJBF
renewal Implants investrment E::?:Irate;s
Technology intensify
enabled returns
Multi-channel || Trade parks
| Enabled through people and evolution of unique culture |

Portfolio management
Starting with the Group's revised approach to

managing its portfolio of businesses the Group has

developed a more robust planning approach enabling
it to allocate capital 1o the opportunities which are
expected to deliver the most material value for
shareholders. Aligned with this approach to managing
capital allocation 1s a revision 10 the metrics upon
which the Group 1s managed Future lease-adjusied
return on caprtal will becorne an increasingly
important measure of success as the Group believes
it best aligns investment decisions with the ulimate
goal of shareholders, therr return on equity

In order to improve lease adjusted return on
capital managerment responaility for both earmings
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and capital employed will be devolved further down
through the business This greater accountabulity
and autoncmy will be managed and monitored
through iImproved pracesses for governance As
management In each of the businesses take more
control for managing returns central functions will
be streamlined to ensure all teams are closer to the
businesses they support and ulurmately customers
This revised approach to capital allocation 1s creating
more competition for capital
Capital expenditure 1s expected to increase in the
medium term to take advantage of developrment
opportunities in the market and will be tiered based
upon the risk and return profiles of the varous
investment opportunities iIdentified The tienng of
capital spend will be managed under four broad
headings
1 Extending the Groups leadership investment In
proven businesses delivering attractive returns
2 Investing to grow investment in customer
propositicns to adapt to changing custormer needs
and cement the Groups market leading positions
3 Infrastructure investment investment to enable
future outperformance
4 Divest where there are better uses for capital to
grow or return to shareholders

Scale advantage
One of the key value creation levers 15 using the
Groups scale to improve efficiency and deliver a
better customer proposition

The Group's supply chain ambition 1s to provide
branches and customers with easy access to the
broadest range of products reliably efficiently safely
and on time
= Ordering will be made simpler for branches
with improved range management tools and
automated stock replenishment systerns
The Groups distribution centre (DC ) footprint will
undergo further change increasing lghtside DC
capacity and rolling out regional heavyside DCs
» Route planning tools and further optimisation

of the vehicle fleet will reduce the cost of and

enhance the local delivery proposition
The strength of the Greups balance sheet enables
businesses within the Group to access properties
they would otherwise fing it difficult to occupy
Furthermore by developing multi-fascia sites the
Group 1s able to provide opporturities for the Groups
smaller operating businesses to co-locate with the
Groups larger businesses and benefit from greater
foot traffic
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The Group is also focused on using is buying
scale to source products directly from manufacturers
at lower cost and in creating mare commonality 1n
product ranges such that it can further consolidate
volumes so reducing costs further

For many years the Group has benefited from
efficient low-cost IT systerns These systems are
approaching the end of therr useful life and therefore
a clear four point strategy has been developed to
ensure better [T systems capacity and flexibility in
the future
= Delivering a common and shared trading platform

across the Groups merchanting businesses
+ Delivering an appropnate multi-channel presence

for each brand making it easier for customners 1o

order buy and receve delivery
» Simplifying back office systems to enable

decoupling and enhance efficiency
* Increasing systermn usability and the experience for

colleagues and customers so that the Group 15

easier to do business with

Customer innovation and optimising the

branch and store network

The underpinring actimties to improving the
custormer proposition and Improve the network
including offering better value extending range better
avalability format renewal modernising TP branches
and creating national networks in a number of the
Group’s businesses are Included n the plans for each
of the divisions in the following sections

GENERAL MERCHANTING DIVISION STRATEGY
Trawvis Perking 1s and for the foreseeable future will
continue o be the Groups core business It 1s the
Groups largest business by sales profitability and
one of the highest returning businesses operated
within Lhe Group

The business benefits from national coverage
with over 640 branches an efficient ightside
central distrbution network access to a range
few competitors can match a modern vehicle
delivery fleet and branch managers with an
unparalleled relationship with customers Branch
manager incentives are based on return on capital
Improvements setting the business apart from its
competitors which 1s a key component of Travis
Perkins market outperformance

The following chart sets out the key components
of the plan ta improve Trawis Perkins combiring
both sales and profit drivers and wnwestments in
enabling nfrastructure
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There 1s significant scope for netwark expansion
and relocation Travis Perkins 1s targeting 5-15
net new branches per annum and to Increase
the number of Benchmarx Kitchens and Toothire
equipment implants Furthermare the Group
recognises the need to modernise the branch
network with plans underway to develop a new
branch format, TP 2018’ alongside further
development of TPs muli-channel proposition

The plans to imprave the TP multi channe! offer
are set cut below

Measure Current Medium term
ambition

Network 645 TP 5-15 net new

expansion branches branches pa

Like-for-like sales

growth outperformance  0-5% 1-4%

Operating margin Sector

impravernent prospects  leading Sustain

Capital expenditure cddm* £40-60m pa

Lease adjusted ROCE - Add 200-300bps

*Year enced 31 Decarrber 2013

Custorner experience Infrastructure

Where
we are
now

« Clean and functional  « Branch to site delvery for
* Passive heavyside
+ Non-transactional = Branch coliection only for
lightside
= Branch acting as calt centre

Next
steps

« Transacticnal capability » Heavyside distnbution
» Integration to pricing improvements expanding
systems range and avalability

» Account management « Lightside range access from

« Click & collect DCs
+ DC direct to stte picking

3
Where
we will
get to

« Leading online gateway » Cross-channel fulfilment for

= Interactive and social lightside
hub « CRM and account

» Seamlass expenence management systems
across channels development

« Integrated CRM

« Contact centre coordination

In surnmary the Group is confident that Trawis
Perkins can maintain its market leading position
and further drive iImprovernents to the customer
prapesition and value to shareholders The targets
far improvernent are set out as follows
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Outperformance through

» Local customer relaticnships

» Consistent range and range exiension

Better avallability

» Sourcing and own label development
Product knowledge and ease of transactions
» Format improvements

Network and mulis-channel developrment

+ Managed services expansion

*

PLUMBING AND HEATING DIVISION STRATEGY

The strategy for the Plumbing and Heating division

has three key elerments

1 Developing clear proposiions serving plurnbing
and heating bathroom installer and contract
customers The focus on bathroom installers local
plumbers and mid-sized plumbing contractors
will provide solid returns through effective pricing
and range substitution including through greater
penetraticn of the Groups 'flo exclusive ranges

2 Intensifying use of space through the Group's
shiowroom concept and spares implants The
new ‘Endeavour showrooms are designed to help
tradesmen win new business New showrooms
have been opened in 6% locations and are
generating healthy returns Approximately 40
new showrooms per annum are planned over the
medium term

3 Developing multi-channel, sustainability and
own label product offerings The acquisition of
an online heating equiprment distributor gives
the P&H division access to growth in the online
channel Furthermore the dvision 1s developing
an additional muttichannel capability to enable
ordering account management and online
transactions as well as providing enhanced
product nformation tools to its installer network
Further work 1s underway 1o enhance the
exclusive brands the Group owns including
iflo and BOSS and to continue the progress
already made in launching Sustainable Bullding
Solutions’ which accesses Government funding
for improvements in household energy effictency




represented as follows

outcompete In its markets

The plan for the P&H dwision s graphically

The targets for the division are shown below
alongside how the P&H dmsion intends to

Measure Current Medium term
ambition

Network 525 ~10 net new

expansion branches branches pa

Like-for-like sales

growth outperformance  0-3% 0-3%

Operating margin

improverment prospects - Good

Capital expenditure £1im® £10-20m pa

Lease adjusted ROCE -

Add 150-250bps

Year ended 31 December 2013

Outperformance through
« Enhanced branch pricing tools

« Spares Implants

» CPS network expansion

» Endeavour showroom rollout
« Multi-channel establishment
« Sustainable sclutions growth

» Clanty of contracts and instalier propositions

+» Sourcing and own label development

CONTRACTS DIVISION STRATEGY

The key compaonents of the strategy for the
division are set out below

STRATEGIC REPORT @

As with the other divisions the Group has clear
perfarrnance targets for the division including
Increasing the level of capital iInvestrment wath the
arnbstion of outperforming market peers

Measure Current Medium term
ambition

Network 181 1-2% net new

expansion branches space grawth

Like-for-lke sales

growth outperformance  0-3% 1-3%

Operating margin

IMErovernent prospects Good

Capilal expenditure £i2m* £10-20m pa

Lease adjusted ROCE - Add 200-300bps

Year ended 31 Decerrber 2013

Outperformance through

= Deeper product knowledge and custorner service
« Fxtended ranges

« Selective netwark expansion

« Category expansion

= Sourcing and own label developrment

CONSUMER DIVISION STRATEGY
The key elements of the consumer division's
strategy are to

The Contracts Division was formed on 1 Janwary
2014 bringing together the three businesses that
supply products to large consiruction companies

and project contractors These businesses all track
rmajor commercial and infrastruciure projects and by
brnging thern together mto one dmvsion, this will assist
project tracking and selling into major contraciors

« Enhance Wickes proposition to tradesmen and
serious DiYers

« Gan nationwide coverage through Wickes store
estate including renewing its store format

« Expand the Toolstation network through Wickes
implants and standalone shops

» Continue muli-channel development

Wickes ambition 1s to always offer lower prices than

its competitors alongside ranges to include brands

that trade and senious DlYers demand which enable

customers ta complete any DIY or trade RMI project

Plans are progressing to improve online and in-store

Travis Perkins®
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availability improve ranges and enhance the level
of customer service Wickes already has a growing
multi-channel business which holds its fair share of
the onling market however the Group believes there
15 opportunity 1o further enhance sales through this
channet by adding additonal ranges

Wickes plans 10 contnue to expand its network by
between 5 and 10 new stores per year

The early signs from the recent Toolstaticn store
implants in Wickes have also been encouraging
Thase implants contrbute to Wickes rental cost are
driving additienal footfall and producing solid returns
in their own right for the Toolstation business without
increasing the Groups lease commitments

The Wickes plan 1s graphically represented below

Toolstation 1s planning to continue ta open both
Wickes imptants and standalone stores with an
arbition to open approximately 100 shops in the
medium term Toolstations fixed prices, excellent
avallability delivery promise and service proposition
are resonating strongly with jobbing tradesmen
and general DIYers who are not able to negotiate
larger volume discounts from trade outlets The
performance of both standalone Toolstation stores
and Wickes implants gives the Group confidence to
extend the rollout of new shops

The perforrmance targets for the Consurner
division are set aut below

Outperformance through

» Clearer and sharper pricing

+» Catalogue and online range extension

* Improved availability in Wickes

= Format renewal and network expansion
» Toolstation expansion and implants

+ Tile Grant implants only

+ Drving multi-channel harder

HOW PERFORMANCE WILL BE
COMPARED TO STRATEGY
The Groups ambition 15 to deliver long term
sustainable value to shareholders There are a series
of financial and non-financial measures which the
Group tracks to monitor performance

The Groups medwm term KPls are set out below

Key performance indicator Meadium term target

MNetwork expansion 20 35 net new branches pa

Like-for-like sales
growth outperformance

Cutperform ndustry sales
growth by 1-4 % pa

Operating Sustan sector leading margins

margin in General Merchanting

Impravement Add 150bps to operating
margins in each of Consurner
Contracts and Plumbing and
Heating dwmisions.

Lease adjusted return
on capital employed

Add 200-3C0C bps to
tease adusted ROCE

Measure Current Medium term
ambition
Network 227 Wickes 5-10 nat new pa
expansion 108 Tile Giant  implants
143
Toolstation ~20pa

Like-for-like sales

growth outperformance  Flat Above market

Operating margin
improvement prospects - Good

Capital expenditure £18m* £30 40mpa
Lease adjusted ROCE - Add 150-250bps

‘Year ended 31 December 2013
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Operationally success 1s measured through a
comprehensive set of key performance indicators
All of these indicators are aligned to achieving
the Grougs strategic ambition The Groups actual
performance against thase key indicators for 2013
15 shown in the dmisional performance section on
pages 21 to 24 and in the Corporate Responsibility
section on pages 42 to 45

RISKS

The Statement of Principal Risks and Uncertainties
on pages 39 to 41 sets out the key nisk factors that
are considered by the Directors to be matenal to
the business These include those risks which are
deemed to be material and may iImpact upon ihe
successful delivery of this strategy In addition there
are a number of nsks which are set out in the table
below that are not deemed to be matenal to the
Group as a whole but are relevant when setting out a
balanced commentary on a dvisional basis




Group value

Dision Strategic Intent KPls Risks drvers
General Cementing mixed merchant leadership = Rate of multi-channel rrugration
Merchanting | through better prices range available today higher than assumed 4
and exiended ranges tormorrow = Unable to source property to meet
on-time delivenes when custormers need it expanston plans
Backed up by a fast and efficient » Pricing changes do not increase
ordenng process credit for cusiomers volurmes
and a reliable and consistent in-branch + Lack of avallable product 10 supply
experience
Network
Plurmbing To create the market leading domestic expansion |« Lack of suitable sites for expansion
and plumbing and heatmng business buli upon plans
Heatng custarmner focused and truly differentiated « Project delays Custormer
propasitions Like-for-ike |+ Busimesses not adapting to the innavation
The plans build on the businesses’ sales growth | evolwing customer
recognised stay safe culture high + Lack of available product to supply
employee engagement and development Cpurnising
of talent In addition the division will QOperating network
grow market leading positions in new margin
seclors renewables Internet trading and
sustainable buiding solutions Scale
Capral advantage
Conlracts | Grow business thraugh network expansion | expenditure |« Lower prices and extended payment
and selling of key praducts to targeted terms to customer
customer segments with highly engaged + Lawer specification products offered Portfolio
colleagues providing excellent customer | Lease by competors management
service adjusted « Disintermediation of custorners by
ROCE manufacturers
Consumer | Rebuilding Wickes into the UK's best do » Consurners accelerate trend towards
a house up store serving local tradesmen fixed price marchanting and online
and senous DlYers with the lowest priced {positive)
building matenals for therr projects « Competitor response
Always n stock with delivery to home ar « |nability to secure stores for
site when it suits the custorner relocations v

STRATEGIC REPORT @

STRATEGIC SUMMARY

The Group 1s well placed to benefit from the
upturn in UK building actmty Housing transaction
growth should boost those businesses that serve

» The Group has an evolving portfolio model 1o
exploit opportunities
Its strategy s geared towards achieving long term

trade related customers whilst improving customer
confidence should benefit the consumer businesses
However the Group recognises that all customers
are searching for even greater value and it 1s
therefore imperative that the Group continues (o
modify and modernise its customer propesitions
As many Travis Perkins businesses occupy market
leading postions it 15 well positioned to exploit new
opportunities [ts strategy 1s to ensure it delivers long
term sustainable growth which 1s achievable because
» Market growth indicators are encouraging
= Market gevelopments create compelling
opportunities
+ There are significant opportunities for structural
growth

shareholder value with its medium term targets
fully aligned with this strategy Group returns will be
improved by

= Continuing to outperform in each of our markets
» Operating margin prospects

+ General Merchanting - sustain

» Plumbing and Heating - good growth

+ Contracts - good growth

« Consumer - good growth

Targeting medium term double digit EBITA growth
pa

Adding 200-300bps to lease adjusted ROCE
over the madium term

Delivening strong and consistent growth in
shareholder returns

Travis Perkins®
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STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The Group operates In a market and an incustry
which by their nature are subject to a number
of inherent nsks The Group 1s able io mitigate
those nisks by adopung different strategies and
rmaintaining a strong systern of internal control
However regardless of the approach that 1s taken,
the Group has to accept a level of sk in order to
generate suitable returns for shareholders

Details of the Groups nsk management
processes are given in the Corparate Governance
report on page 59 The nsk enviranment in which
the Group operates does not remain static The
nature of nsk 1s that its scope and potential iImpact
will change over ime As such the list below should

Risk descnption Impact

nol be regarded as a comprehensive staternent
of all poteniial nsks and uncertainties that may
manyfest themselves in the future Addiional risks
and uncertainties that are not presently known
to the Directors or which they currently deem
immaterial could also have an adverse effect
on the Groups future operating results financial
condition or prospects

This section describes the current nsk factors
that are considered by the Board to be maternal,
therr potential impacts and the factors that mitigate
thern The inherent risk {before the operation of
cantrol} 1s stated for each nisk area together with an
Indication of the current trend for that nsk

Risk mitigation

Market conditions Inherent nsk see  Trend «»

The Groups producis are sold to tradesrmen and Adverse
retait customers for a broad range of end uses in | effect on
the bullt environment The performance of the financial

market 15 affected by general economic conditions | results
and a number of specific drivers of construction
and DIY actmity including housing transactions net
disposable income house price inflation consurner
confidence interest rates and unernployrnent

The Board conducts an annual review of strategy which
Includes an assessrment of likely cornpetitar actvity market
farecasts and possible future trends in products channels
of distnbution and custormer behaviour

The Group maintains a comprehensive tracking system
for lead indicators that nfluence the market far the
consumption of bullding materals in the UK

Sigrificant events including those n the supply chan
that may affect the Group are monitared by the Executive
Cornmittee and reported to the Board monthly by the Group
Chief Executive

Should market conditions deteriorate then the Board
has a range of aptions dependent upon the seventy of
the change Historrcally these have included amending
the Groups trading stance cost reduction, lowering capital
investrnent and cutting the dividend

Market trends particularly in respect of customers | Adverse
preferences far purchasing matenials through a effect on
range of supply channels and not just through financial
our traditional cormpetitors may affect the Groups | results

performance so making traditional branch based
operations less relevant

Public sector buying groups could reduce sales
if public bodies chose to buy direct from the
manufacturers

Disintermediation may becorme more of a threat
if manufacturers decide to deal directly with the
end users

Campetitive pressures Inherent nsk see Trend «»

Changes to market practice are tracked on an cn-going basis
and reported to the Board each month

The Group 1s bullding multi-channel capabiities so they
cornpliment its existing operations and provide its custorners
with the oppertunity to transact with the Group as they wish

The Group 1s leading the industry in terms of the
development of new and Innovative supply solutions and
warks closely with custorners and suppliers on a programme
of continuous IMprovements.

The Group continues to refine pricing strategies to ensure it
retains competitiveness

The Groups branding strategy allows It to use sites flaxibly
Alternative space utibsation models are possible including
mantaining smaller stores and implanting additional services
nto existing branches

Inherent nsk. Hgheee  Medumes Lowe

Trend Increasing 4 Static 4»

Reducing »
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STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk description

The operations of the Group depend on a wide
range of complex IT systems both In terms of
the availability of hardware and the operation of
software operating efficiently and effectively

The rapid expansion of the Group together with
an increasing demand for (T services particularly
as the Group embrraces modern platforms such
as multi-channel, could resuit in development
programmes being delayed

Should the system becorme unavailable for
an extended period aither through deliberate act
or through accidental falure it would impact the
businesses ahility to trade

Increasing levels of cyber cnme represent
a significant threat to all businesses with the
potential to cause loss of system avalabilty or
financial loss

Impact

Adverse
effect an
financial
results

Adverse
effect on
the Groups
reputation

Risk mitigation

Information technology Inherent nsk e Trend <»

The strategic dernands of the business, the resources avalable
to T the performance levels of key systemns and IT secunty are
kept under review by the Executive Committee

Plans that require continual investrment in the (T
infrastructure have been approved and are being
implemented Mantenance 1s undertaken on an on-going
basis 1o ensure the resilience of group systerns with
escalation procedures operating 1o ensure any performance
1ssues are resolved at an early stage

The Groups three data centres murror each other with data
processing switched from one to the other on a regular basis
An IT disaster recovery plan exists and is tested regularly
together with the business continuity plan Arrangements
are in place for alternative data sites for both trade and
consumer businesses Off-site back-up routines are n place

A programme of nsk crniented reviews 15 underiaken
to ensure the level of control around the IT systems
remains robust

Colleague recruitment, retention and succession

The ability to recrust retain and motivate surtably
qualified staff 15 an important driver of the Group's
overall performance

The strength of the Groups customer
propositicn 1s underpinned by the quality of people
working throughout the Group Many of thermn have
worked for Travis Perkins for sorme considerable
time during which they have gained valuable
knowledge and expertise

Ensunng proper development of employees and
the succession for key positions Is important if the
Group s to continue to be successful in the future

Inability to
develop and
execute our
development
plans

Competitive
disadvantage

Inherent rsk e Trend 4w

The Group Human Resources Director maonitors staff
engagement and turnover by job type and reports to the
Executive Committee regularly and ta the Board annually
Succession plans are established for the most senior
positions within the Group and these are reviewed annually

Qur reward and recognition systems are actively managed
to ensure high levels of employee engagement

A wide-range of training programmes are in place
10 encaurage staff development whilst managernent
development programmes are used 1o assist those identified
for more semior positions

Salanes and other benefits are benchrnarked annoally o
ensure that the Group remains competitive

Supplier dependency and direct sourcing Inherent nsk e

The Group 1s the largest customer of many of its
suppliers In some cases those suppliers are large
enough to cause significant supply difficulties to
the Group If they become unable to meet ther
supply abligations due to etther economic or
operational factors

Alternative sourcing 1s avallable but the volumes
required and the time it may take those supplers
to increase production could result n significant
stock-outs for some considerable time

The Group has become more reliant on
overseas faciones producing product as the
Group has rapidly expanded its direct sourcing
capabilities This has increased the Groups
exposure 1o sourcing quality trading, warranty and
currency ISsues

There is a potential for European anti-dumping
legislation to be extended to encompass further
Asian countries which could increase the cost of
sorne imported products

Adverse
effect on
financial
results

Adverse
effect on
the Groups
reputation

Trend <»

The commercial and financial teams have established strong
relationships with the Groups key suppliers and work closely
with them to ensure the cortinuity of quality materials

To spread the nsk where passible contracts exst with
more than one supplier for key products

The Group has made a significant investrnent in its Far
East infrastructure to support its direct seurcing operation
wihich allows the developrment of own brand product which
reguces the reliance on branded suppliers

Comprehensive checks are undertaken on the factones
producing proguct the quality and sutability of that product
before itis shipped to the UK

Inherent risk. Higheee  Medumee Lowe
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Risk description Impact

Risk mitigation

Defined banefit pension scheme funding Inherent nsk @@ Trend w

The Group 1s required by law to mantam a Adverse
minimurn funding level in relation to1ts on-going effect on
obligations to provide current and future pensions | financial
for members of its pension schermes who are condition

entitled to defined benefits

Sorne 1ssues could adversely affect the funding
of these ablgations including poor performance
of the pension fund investrments and mereasing
tongewvity of pension scherme members.

The level of contributions required from the
Group to meet the benefits prormised in the final
salary schemes will vary depending upon the
funding position of thase schemes

All of the Groups final salary pension schemes are closed to
new méembers

For the Travis Perkins scheme pensionable salary inflation
has been capped at 3% per annum

The schemes investment policy 15 kept under regular
review 10 ensure asset profiles are kept in line with the
orofile of labilities

The Group has agreed deficit paymeni plans which
currently require 1 1o pay up 1o £26m per annum 10 1s
defined benefit pension schemes The repayment plans will
remain in place until the next actuanal valuations when in
coryunciion with the scheme Trustees thay will
be reassessed to take into account the circumstances at
the time

continued expansion of its UK branch network effect on
Large scale acquisiions in existing UK markets | financial
are unlkely to be avallable to the Group due to the | results

concerns of the Office of Far Trading to ensure
competitive markets Therefore the Group will
rely on developing small scale opportunities N
new catchment areas or within existing sites or on
expanding nto adacent markets in which it does
not have a presence

The Group also needs to ensure that funding Is
avallable to support its plans The Group s reliant
on the bank market for funding, a market that
has contracted in recent years and which may
continue to contract in the future

Trend a»

The Groups strategic plans are predicated on the | Adverse Responsibility for identifying opporturities to expand i1s given

to each of the dwvisional boards with capital being deployed
to those giving the best return on capital

The Group has rdentified a sigrnificant nurmber of
opportunities for expansion throughout the UK and
continues to develop alternative farmats that will open up
addiional opportunities in future

As part of its capital management strategy the Group
has developed plans and instituted a series of metncs that
are designed to provide opporturities to extend sources
of funding to reduce relance on one principat source of
funding with generally short term durations

Inherent nsk Higheee  Medumes Lowe Trend Increasing a

Siatic 4»  Reduang v
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Travis Perkins understands that as a major UK ple it
has a responsibility to conduct its business N a way
that recogrises its obligations io all its stakeholders
as well as to society as a whole As such 1t actively
seeks to embed the principles of good corporate
responsibility In 1its day-to-day actvities throughaut
the Group

HEALTH AND SAFETY
The continued health and safety of all people who
come into contact with Travis Perkans 1s given the
highest prionty throughout the Group and 1s kept
permanently at the forefront of its activities The
Groups aim is to elrminate all bealth and safety
related incidents so that nobody 1s Inured when
they are involved in any activity influenced by the
Group whether it 1s in its branches &t its custormers
premises or In the factories of suppliers of the
products it sells Not only 15 this the morally correct
stance to take but it also brings significant benefits
to the business

The Group has an established health and
safety committee chared by Andrew Simon a
non-exacutive board director that sets standards
for health and safety throughout the Group and
regularly monitors progress made towards achieving
thern However it 1s the Groug's philosophy that
whilst standards should be set at the highest level all
colleagues have a responsibility for ensuring there
15 a safe working environrent they are expected to
adhere to the Group’s Stay Safe’ philasophy

'Stay Safe’ continues to be the philosophy which
guides the Group's approach to safely In 2013 it
established a clear statistical ink between aspects
of 1ts organisational culture and Injury rates This has
helped it identify whera the focus 1s needed and
which new ways of working need to be introduced
to effectively and significantly improve safety
performance |t has also discovered that sharing best
practice quickly and positively has greater leverage In
its businesses, and helps it deliver mare sustainable
safety improvernenis

Safety ultimately 1s about making it easier to keep
everyone In the business safe and this was part
of the ratonale for placing responsibility for safety
closer 10 businesses This divisional alignrment has
resulted in more effective leadership which owns
and drives the safety message mito the businesses,
along with a greater sense af personal responsibility
Its also given the Group the oppartunity to simplify
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Its message 1ts Systems and procedures so theyre
better understood and easter to act on And it seems
1o be working

In 2014 the Group will continue to embed thrs
approach to safety at branch and store levet moving
frorn compliance to proactive discretionary effort
and safe behaviour Branch and store managers will
be the local safety leaders changing the culture by
demonstrating visible leadership and inculcating the
habits of regular safety conversations safety ‘nudges
and praise within branches and stores The Group will
continue to seek external perspectives from experts
in this field as it continues to strive for safety for all

A repert outlining the Groups health and safety
activities Is set out on pages 46 to 48

ENVIRONMENTAL
As the UK largest supplier of bulding materials
Travis Perkins has a significant environmental
footpnnt which It takes great care to try and
rmirimise It 1s a business bullt on relationships and
by sharing ideas and inspinng positive change 1t
will make the biggest difference The teamwork
across the organisation the dialogue with customers
and the collaboration with key partners 1s proof
of this and presents opportunities to adopt more
sustainable behaviours every day

Profitability 1s no longer divorced from
responsibility and its much easter to empower
people to demanstrate therr commitment to a
sustainable agenda if they are also successful
busiess ambassadors This combination creates a
win-win siuation for both the business and for the
environment Travis Perkins 1s comrmitted long-term
10 profitability and sustainability within a well-
governed framework

As explained in the environmental report on
ihe group website at wwwiravisperkinsplccouk/
citizenship/emvironment which 1s surmmansed on
pages 50 to 51 of this report, targets have been set
and many intiatives have been underway for some
time to further lower the Groups carbon footprint
by reducing its direct and indirect consumption of
energy water and fuei

Focus 15 also put on reducing the Groups impact on
the local environments in which it operates Pollution
and nuisance prevention 1s a key part of the Groups
environmental agenda with the aim of avoiding ary
reportable incidents ar complaints frorm those pecple
that are affected by the Groups activities
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The last strand of the Groups environmental efforts
concerns the products it sells Customers of the
Group are becoming Increasingly environmentally
aware s0 together wiih suppliers considerable effort is
expended trying to maximise the quantity of product
obtained from sustainable sources

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Groups businesses and emplayees are
encouraged to support community sctivities in

the areas where they live work and operate They
are passionate about the chantable work they
undertake, the enthusiasm and commitrment shown
by the Groups ernployeas as they fundraise s
sormething that inspires us all Each of the Groups
17 busingsses along with its central functions has
a strang and extremely valuable partnership with a
number of British charities each of which 1s selected
by employees Thetr reach touches many including
Parkinsons UK, Alzheimer's Society Mind, AgeUK and
the RNLI amongst others

COLLEAGUE ENGAGEMENT
For the Trawis Perkins Group engagemeant 1s about
attracting, recruriing developing and inspinng great
people so they can make a difference share In the
success of its businesses and have some fun along
the way As such 1t has created an inclusive working
environment where everyone can ceniribute because
everyone 15 Iistened 1o valued and respected

The Groups people strategy 1s a fundamental
part of what drives it forward Every one of its
23000 people s a direct caninibutor to whichever
of the 17 businesses they work in and as such
they are key to the Groups success

The 'famty feel of the business has created a
strong inclusive culiure over many years and thats
something the Group strives to maintain by making
sure that people throughout the organisation feel
able to voice opinions and concerns and that thair
views are respected It1s recognised throughout the
Group that people make all the difference

The Group's business goals and culwral values are
clearly defined and regularly shared with employees,
therr feedback 1s regularly sought The Groups culture
1 reinforced In all aspects of its recruitment, training
and developrment prograrmmes where behaviours
practices and ways of working are clearly articulated
brought 1o life and can be seen in practice

Further detalls of the work undertaken by the
Group to recrutt retain and develop colleagues and
of therr efforts to help the cormmunity are set out on
pages 52 1o 54

ETHICAL POLICIES
The Trawis Perkins Group 15 a leading supplier
to Britain's building construction and home

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

improvernant iIndustry Its reputation for providing
excellent customer service with the highest integrity
15 the direct result of the collective effart of its
employees all of whom are caretakers of that
reputaiion How the business conducts itself and how
it treats others will continue to determine how the
world views Travis Perkins

The Group has established clearly defined principles
amed at helping all its employees 10 uphold the
highest ethical legal and business standards across all
the business actmvities 1t is Involved in

Group colleagues are made aware of the
standards expected of them through the Groups
‘Doing the Right Thing' mitiative which draws
together under a single umbrella three separate
but closely related policies on business principles
diversity and encouraging equal treatrment

The Group has clear policies that set out the
expectations that colieagues will not have any
involvernent with acts of bribery will avoid conflicts
of interest will ensure they comply with all aspects
of all applicable laws when perforring thar duties
and will not becorme involved with any aspect of
nsider dealing

In summanising the Groups commitrent to
integrity to acting honestly and ethically and to
complying with the law the initiative has provided a
one stop guide for colleagues when considering how
they interact with customers suppliers shareholders
and the communities 1In which they operate In
essence It sets out the Groups commitment to
Doing the Right Thing

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES AND DIVERSITY
The Group 15 committed to promoting ecuality of
opportunity for afl employees and job applicants
Decisions releting to any aspect of employment are
based upon ability and potentizl rather than age sex
race religion or belief disability or sexual onentation
gender reassignment civil partnership status
pregnancy or maternity

The Group complies with national legal
requirernents m respect of wages and working hours
It supports the International Labour Organisations
(iLO’) standards regarding child tabour and
mirimum age It is also carmmitted to warking only
with suppliers who embrace standards of ethica!
behaviour that are consistent with its own

A waorkforce with a difference allows the Group
to maxirmise the unique and iIndwvidual qualiies of
its people A diverse workforce 1s at the heari of a
strong business perfarmance 1t delivers increased
engagement, umproves output and generates betier
financial returns

The Group employs 23000 people n 17
different businesses across both the retaill and
merchanting seclaors




Around 40% of the work force in the Groups retall
seclor businesses 1s fernale, across the Group as a
whale it 15 22% reflecting the fact that warnen find
the merchanting warkplace less attractive than retall
or other areas of the Group's business, although it
is worth noting that over half of these women are
in managerent positions The following table sets
out more detalls of the mix of men and wormen
employed by the Group at the year-end

Men Waomen Total
Number % Number % Number %

Colleagues 13280 759 4225 241 17505 100
Managers 4803 8586 811 144 5614 100
18083 782 5036 218 23119 100

The Group 1s hearing through its research that
rmore men than women ke and are interested
In bricks blocks and timber This has come frorn
women who have worked for it or have considered
working for 1t and chosen not to The Group will
however continue to work hard to create a working
environment which equally supports develops and
recognises the contribution both men and women
make to 1ts business

At a senor leadership level 18% (2 out of 11) of
the operating Executive and 13% of the Board
(1 oul of 8) are female

John Carter
Chief Executive Officer
25 February 2014
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STAY SAFE REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

OUR STAY SAFE PHILOSOPHY AND
OBJECTIVES
Our underlying philoscphy 1s that all injunies are
avoidable and that everyone involved in our
business should return home safe and well at the
end of every day

To achieve this we have devolved Stay Safe
responsibility to our business dvisions, rather than
dictating a central approach Devolving responsibility
to a dvisional level has cultivated a more committed
level of ownership which i1s underpinned by
= Effective leadership - that owns and drives the

Stay Safe message in each of our businesses
= Everyone taking personal responssbility for their

own actions and believing that our behaviour can

affect Stay Safe perfermance
« Simplifying safety systems and procedures so that

they are understood and respected by all
In lne with our strategy a particular emphasis of our
investment of time and effort this year has been
developing our safety leadership We belreve the
tone and culiure created by each of our business
leaders - nght down to store and branch level In
ther businesses - has a key influence on overall
Stay Safe performance

In 2013 we were able to actually confirm the
strong statistical tink between elerments of cur
organtsation culture (as measured by our employes
opinion survey which includes a measure of
engagement’) and our injury rates In doing so we
have helped our business leaders identify which
elements of culture may need to be focussed upon
to improve safety performance and reduce aceidents
In their areas n particular the ways of working that
they establish as leaders eg the challenge meaning
and varety of work done by colleagues the freedom
to express ideas effective two-way communication
and conversations about safety etc can significantly
improve safety performance

The bar chart shows that the more engaged
areas of our business have half the injury frequency
compared to areas where engagerment 1s not so high

The key message More engaged businesses have
fewer injures
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STAY SAFE GOVERNANCE

Throughout 201 3 all Stay Safe activity continued

to be reviewed by the Plc Stay Safe Cornmittee
which comprises me as Chairman with Group Board
members Ruth Anderson John Carter and Robert
Walker In addition Stay Safe performance s also
discussed at monthly Plc Board meetings

DATA TRENDS FOR 2013

The graph below shows a ‘plateau effect in the lost
ume frequency rates during most of 2013 for the
Group as a whole Whilst some Dimsions are making
more progress the combined effect for the Group

15 not as positive as we had hoped However these
statistics will only reinforce our commitment to
Increasing awareness and understanding as to ihe
kind of inciderts that we sheuld be reporting

We have seen encouraging signs particularly in
our Supply Chain function and retail businesses
where we have achieved a 10% and an 11%
reduction respectively i lost time injunies when
compared with 2012 levels This was achieved by
a reduction in manual handling-related injunes in
our Supply Chamn areas and a reduction In slips and
tnps’ in our retail outlets

Maore than 6 Q00 'near misses were recorded tn
the Travis Parkins Group in 2013 and we believe
that by recarding and learning frorm such incidents,
we are seeing a corresponding reduction In the




number of physical Injuries across the Group

Our firrm view 15 that a focus on what 1s working
well has greater leverage as we seek to deliver
improvernents N our safety performance and
15 & more powerful engagement tool than a
preoccupation with what has not worked or has faled
As such we are measuring and communicating the
‘safe branch concept in the Group

SAFE BRANCHES
During 2013 85 4% of our branches were free
from any reported lost ime injuries This means
that duning this ume just aver 1 500 branches
and stores covering 98 5% of our colleagues
did not report a lost ime injury However we are
disappomnted that there were 257 which did report
alost tirme injury and we shall be working closely
with those branches and stores to improve their
safety performance in 2014
The ‘highest standard benchmark for all our
branches 15 to be recognised as a safe branch’ In
achieving the slatus of being a safe branch three key
critena have (o be satisfied
+ No tost time injuries have been reported
« Near miss acaidents are being reported using our
online reporting systern
= The Group's audit team has not given the branch a
red / amber rating on is most recent Stay
Safe audit
Lising this internal stretch cntenia only 38 1% of our
Group branches could truly call thermselves a 100%
safe branch by the end of 2013 However some of
our Divisions do achieve higher levels (over 50%j of
safe branches against these stringent criteria

TYPE OF LOST TIME INJURIES IN 2013

The type and pattern of lost tirme injuries that we

are expenencing has not changed since 2011 with

manual handling contributing to most lost trme injuries
Therefore n 201 3 we targeted the most

commonly occurnng lost ime injuries 1e those

acquired duning manual handling Durning ihe year we

developed ihe Lift project wath the assistance of the

strength and conditioning coaches at our partners

Northampton Saints Rugby club

Lift 1s the Groups newly
developed manual handling
programme launched dunng
the second half of 2013 to
imprave lifting techriques of our
colleagues It 1s designed to nol
only tackle the actual fting but also the rool cause
of manual handling problemns

To follow up in 2014 we will dedicate rmore time
to educating colleagues to think differently about
bfting This will nclude implermenting Lift ‘charnpions
in all branches who wilt carry out the practical
elernents of Lift ncluding training and identifying
local issues (iIncluding storagg) that present a nsk of
manual handling injury

NON-COLLEAGUE INJURIES

There were $58 injunes to people not employed
by the Group reported in 2013 (2012 789) of
which 59% were In our consumer businesses
However with well over 30 mullion stare wvisits in
those businesses dunng 201 3 these regrettable
Injury statistics can be viewed more in context The
majority were hand cuts when handling products
As 1s always the case for our colleagues we do not
set out to Injure our customers and all incidents are
thoroughly investigated and ary lessons learned are
acted upon

STAY SAFE INNOVATIONS IN

OUR DIVISIONS IN 2013

Empowering our divisions to develep Stay Safe

initiatives and activities that match therr type of

business and calibre ts a rmajor part of our strategy

It has allowed our Divisions and busmesses to tailor

inibatives to the specific 1ssues they face Listed

below are some examples of the innovations they

have intraduced 1n 2013

= In the General Merchanting and Contracts
divisions, the intraduction of the new Pro Pole tool
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(with its range of tool heads) for drivers eliminates
any reasan for them to work on the flat-bed of
their vehicle In another project, by working with
therr supplier TP Merchanting were able to reduce
the size of reinforcing mesh siocked to rmake it
easler and safer o be manually handled in the
branch and by our customers
In our Transport function the findings of a tnal last
year confirmed that the introduction of CCTV into
vehicles made our drivers drive more safely As a
result we will be fiting 360 degree CCTV wision
cameras Into all new vehicles Also by investing
in rore vehicle driver risk assessors who coach
drivers about safety and risks we have seen a
reduchion in accident insurance claims which has
resulted in savings of crca £100k year-on-year
and all this during a time we have 120 more
HGV trucks
To promate the health of our supply chan
colleagues we have been trialling a personal fitness
trainer in one distribution site to raise engagerment
levels and give colleagues access to personal
health and fitness assessrments
In Wickes we found that many ermployees did not
wear safety gloves because they could not easily
carry them around The simple introduction of 2
glove clip meant that gloves could be carned were
always visible and managers could wear thern
to show therr support for the Stay Safe’ intiative
Following the full roll-out of glove clips by May
2013 Wickes has achieved a 26% reduction in
cut injunes
» Qur Crty Plumbing business produced the Stay Safe
8 aide-memoaire card for all managers and leaders

SAFER ROADS INITIATIVE

We have made a great start with our
Safer Roads carnpaign aimed at aur
drivers and as a result instances of
speeding by our drivers have dropped by
58%

In 2013 the Group was a finalist 1n
four Motor Transport Industry Awards
From a safety perspective we were
finalists for the Safety in Operation
Award This was predorminantly for our

brick grab modification to aur crane fleet which
reduced the amount of tmes drivers had to get on
the bed of the vehicle and made delivery of bulk
bags much quicker and safer

The Group were also finalists for the following
awards |nnovation Award Best use aof Technology
Transport team of the year

LOOKING AHEAD TO 2014
In 2014 our aim 1 to build on the great progress
rmade in 2013 by continuing to drive forward the
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embedding of grass roots behavioural safety at our
branch and store level - to move from compliance
to preactive discretionary effort and safe behaviour
We will target a branch ‘'shop floor safety culture
through our branch managers to achieve this

Through our branch managers we wili focus on
ways of Involving our people in developing safety
mprovernents and ensuring safety conversations
and observations are part of everyday life in our
branches and slores Branch managers as safety
leaders will be key to making this happen through
creating a Just culture showing visible leadership and
inculcating the habits of regular safety conversations
safety 'nudges praise etc within the branch

We will be engaging external safety experts 1o
assess and provide a fresh independent perspeciive
on where each of our Divisions {down to branch /
store level) has got to on their Stay Safe journey by
referencing where they are today on what experts
call 'the safety cutture ladder

This external safety expertise will conduct
qualitative research and assessment of ‘where we are
now' and help point out to our leeders and managers
what needs to happen locally to nudge us forward
where needed beyond the today position especially
where statistics suggest we have plateaued

[ look forward aver the coming years to reporting
on a real improvement in colleague and customer
safety statistics and | want to thank all colleagues
who are engaged in making Improvemeants to ther
own and others safety | sincerely hope that the
excellent nngvations and inihiatives being taken
across the Group will result in a meaningful reduction
in the number of accidents next year and beyond

Andrew Simon
Charrman Plc Board Health & Safety Committee
25 February 2014
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ENVIRONMENTAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3i DECEMBER 2013

ESSENTIAL ENVIRONMENT

We break down our environmental approach into

3 areas, buying responsibly operating responsibly

and selling responsibly this generates a sustainable
competitive advantage This 1s a summary of our
environmental performance in 2013" This summary
has been venfied by the independent company
LRQA More details about this verification and a copy
of the venfication staternent can be found at

www travisperkinsple couk/ciizenship/environment

LEADERSHIP

We have previously been given awards for innovation

and leadership for our environmmental approach

We have started 207 4 with a new set of actions

that will deliver against our vision We have adopted

leadership positions with Sustainable Bulding

Solutions {('SBS) and in making public our 'other

indirect Greenhouse Gas (GHG ) emissions’ (known

as Scope 3)? we will keep our actions and our

perfermance reporting meaningful by

= Retaining the role of our Non-executive
Environmental Advisory Panel

» Continuing to talk and bisten to a wide range of
stakeholder voices

BUYING RESPONSIBLY

Buying tmber better

The $3% performance figure {a 3% increase on

last year) reflects improvernents in the kitchen and
floonng categories in the Consurmer division We have
tightened our control on supply during 2013 and
have been working with suppliers to ensure they can
meet our requirements for legal and credibly cartified
products Avalability of certain special orders can be
an issug, but there 1s no doutt that the 95% certified
level by the end of 2014 which was stated in last
year's report 1s achievable

" Thes report excludes awtmties end data relaiing to Salfex Energy Systemns Lid Rinws

Emerging resource efficiency practice

We are exarmining whether a 5% consumption
decrease In materials energy and water is achievable
in our supply chan [t may be possible to achieve
this order of reduction through collaboration and
knowledge sharing alone

OPERATING RESPONSIBLY
Reducing our carbon footprint
We have considered direct GHG ermissions {Scope
1) and indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) from
all activities and operations where the Group has
operational control over the business All emission
sources were analysed including fugitive emissions
frorn domestic refngeration vehicle and building
arr condiioring However as these ermissions were
not material compared to our overall emisstons
they have been excluded from this report We have
reported on all of the emission sources required
under the Cormpanies Act 2006 (Strategic Report
and Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013

Scope 1 and 2 emissions are calculated using the
UK Government Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting 20713 95% of Scope 1 and 2 data
is fromn measured sources with the remainder
extrapolated from expenditure on fuel

Carbon Dicade Equivalent (CO,e)
Reference Reporting
year 2012 year 2013
Scope 1
Direct emissions from
burning gas and solid fuel 129183 136614
for heatng and from road  tonnes tornes
fuel use for distribution®
Scope 2
Indirect emmvssions from 69681 68904
our use of electricity tannes onnes
Intensity
Tonnes of Co,e from
Scope 1 and 5 sources 8373 5436
per million pounds tonnes tonnes
of inflation adjusted sales
We have recalculated 2012 emission data from tonnes of CO,
1o tonnes of CO2e (equivalent)

Qur secope 1 and 2 emissions are 1 1% more
carbon intensive In 201 3 than in 2012, but nearly
5% less than our 2005 baseline year'® The man

Supplies Ltd. The Mosax Tie Company Ltd and Toalsta 1on stes in the Nethedands and the Wickes.

franchise in Ireland which ceased in Feb 20132 Scope 3 emissions not ver fied by LROA ¥ Scope 1 CO2e ernissicns include 27291 from bu ldings and 109323 from transport * The 2005 baselne
carbon diceade ermessions data s an estriate based upon financial efarmabon and nat drect consumphion data, untke succeedng years 2 In the absence of a CO2e comersion facton

year
for 2005 we have applied the 2009 CO2¢ corversion factor the first year it was introducad
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cause of the mtensity change 1s a dramatic increase
In gas consurmption {16%) which 1s lkely to be
weather related Our interm 2014 target of a 20%
decrease in ntensity on 2005 levels looks beyond
us. However the introduction of divisional cost
saving envirenmental improvement plans will ensure
sustained and deeper reductions mn subseguent
years Our ambition remains to almost halve (48%
reduction) our Intensity by 2020 on 2005 levels

Waste
In 2013 we generated 34 069 tonnes of waste a
17% reduction on 2012 We recycled or recovered
27 374 tonnes

QOur performance was achieved by reducing the
nurnber of generat waste collections at our branches
and increasing the number of dry mixed recycling
bins We also continued our successful backhaul
operation where materials such as cardboard and
plastic are collected at our distribution centres and
sold to reprocessors

We have exceeded our 2014 target of a 90%
reduciion in the tonnage of waste per mithon pounds
of adjusted yard and core sales over 2005 a year
early and we still expect to be a zero waste to landfill
business by 2017

Operational environmental management
Qur Enviranmental Management Systern {EMSY)
was successfully re-certified to the ISO14001
standard in 2013

We experienced 27 inaidents in 2013 an increase
of 11 from the previous year but only 12 were

reportable one less than in 2012 The mgjonty
relate to spillages of pant and ¢l in branches and
frorm our vehicles We will be focusing on mproving
aur management of spillages in 2014 to reduce the
overall number of incidents

We are In no ongoing conversations with
enfarcement bodies where there s a nsk or threat
of prosecution

SELLING RESPONSIBLY
Qur multr award winring SBS service continued
to develop a capability and capacity to train and
change the way people think about low impact
bulding In the merchant and contract dvisions sales
of products with an in use environmental benefit
typically account for 15% of total sates We are
expanding the range all the time and improving our
communication to custcmers on the bensfits Some
of our sanitaryware will for example be amangst the
first to carry new voluntary water efficiency labels
We have detected a nse in demand for credibly
certified timber materials over the year and have
responded by rentroducing chain of custody contrals
nto Keyline branches so that they could service
custormer requirements We plan to introduce similar
controls into CCF and Benchmarx over 2014

RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES
Our new environmental approach sets out clear
areas where sustainable compelitive advantage can
be gained Environmental improvement measures
netted more than £9m and sales of producis
which have an in use environrental benefit were ¢
£330m in 2013 There 1s more growth potental in
both these areas

We have not identified any high unmitigated risk
to the business from enviranmental i1ssues We have
been recognised by CDP gving clear consideration
to identifying the 1ssues, nsks and oppartunities
around climate change

John Carter
Chief Executive Officer
25 February 2014
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ENGAGING PEOPLE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The Group's unique approach 1o 1its people has
been a key factor i its successful record of

growth The Trawis Perkins Group 1s committed o
empowering those who work in its businesses and
central functions providing a collaborative learning
environrment In which they can develop rewarding
thern farrly and creatively and supporiing chantable
activity that inks 1ts businesses to their communities

BECOMING AN EVEN BETTER PLACE
TO WORK
Engaged employees are a vital part of any successful
cornpany and the Group recognises that Its people
are central to the fundamental objective that drives
Its business - serving its custorners as best they can
Trawis Perking works hard to attract and retain the
best people creating opportunities sa everyone can
make a difference as they work to centribute to the
success of each of the businesses and the Group
That focus helps dnive employee engagement which
in turn helps to make the Group an even better
place to work
The Group regularly undertakes surveys to
measure how employee engagement 1s changing
Colleagues are regarded as engaged If they respond
positively to each of four questions they are asked
= Would they recommend the Group as a good
place to work 1o people outside the business?
= Would they recommend the Groups products and
services to people outside work?
= Are they proud to work for the business?
« Are they motivated to perform weil n thew job?
Colleague engagement 1s one of the Groups key
perforrmance indicatoars the three year engagement
trend 15 shown on page 6

Recognising and rewarding our peaple

People who are happy and engaged in ther work
do a better job which ultimately makes it easier
for them to delight customers with better, faster,
more responsive service The Group s full of
those whao ga the extra mile with the range of their
achrevements and successes being recognised in a
nurnber of ways

a Industry-leading compensation and benefits
The Groups Sharesave scheme continues to be a
great success In 2013 around 1 750 employees
shared close to £20m of gains from three and five
year schernes which matured at the end of the
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year Following the invitation for the new Sharesave
plan more than 8 500 employees are now active
Sharesave participants (2012 7 500)

Duning the year the implementation of pension
auto-enrolment to bring all eligible employees into
a retrement benefit arrangement was completed
with the hugely encouraging outcome that 19000
employees are now pension plan members

Opportunities 1o bring engaging and innovative
benefiis to colleagues are continually being sought In
2013 the PERKS brand for employee benefits was
launched and in 2014, 1t 15 planned to launch 2 new
online benefit offering under the mMyPERKS banner
which will provide everyone with an increasing range
of benefits and greater flexibility to select benefits
which best suit ther requirements

b Indmidua! awards and recognitions
In addition to 1ts extrernely popular Sharesave and
pension schemes the Group has a reward system
which recognises hard work and commitment
as colleagues all sinve to delver business goals
everyone 1s able to quallfy for the sll colleague bonus'
Recognising those who “go that extra mile’is
also important Simon Kemp a yard supervisor in
the Keyline business receved a hero award in the
summer of 2013 thanks to his constant drive for
impravement and innovation at our Miltor Keynes
branch Credit Control Manager Ann Green has
been recognised for long service and layalty to the
Group having delvered outstanding support to the
businesses frorm her Group central function role
Travis Perkins businesses can probably clan
the highest long service total of any group in the
UK and the Group 1s enormously proud that many
people make working in the Group their Lifes work
Therr contnbution s recognised i many ways but
one that really generates traction s the ‘long service
award systern which recognises long service at
key rnilestones and rewards with badges as well
as financial ncentives The badges are something
people are proud to wear and strive to achieve
The Wickes business encourages employees to
submi Ideas and suggestions via a Bright Sparks
INitiative a mechanism which certainly generates
interest and engagement It can also generate
£500 for the employee if therr 1dea 1s iIntroduced
Into the business
Getting 1t Right' awards are also a feature of
the Groups business ife and the scheme allows




employees 0 be recognised at a local level for
making a difference ta customers, therr colleagues or
the performance of the business Line managers are
encouraged to present colleagues with a £50 High
Street voucher, examples range from exceptional
customer service to coninbuting to remerchandising
a branch after a refit

¢ External recognition

in 2013 the Group HR team led by Group HR
Director Carol Kavanagh reached the final of the
'HR Team of the Year award at the Personnel
Today awards This leading industry award 1s
highty regarded and the Group was delighted that
Jjudges recognised the Irnmpressive cost-effective
deployment of HR business partrers and reduction
In MR costs as a percentage of sales that the
Groups sustainabte HR rmodel has delivered a
model which has contributed to an improverment
year-on-year in the Groups employee engagermnent
score This HR business partner model also better
supports the Groups divisions and its businesses,
by identifying best pracices cost-efficiencies and
improvernents In the areas of talent management
reward and cornmunication

THE LAW OF ATTRACTION. AND RETENTION
The success of the Group and the shape of its
businesses are shaped by the people who work in
therm Indeed ts driven by thern and its a privilege
that the Group s able to attract the most talented,
cornmitted, hard-working people In the bulding
materials sector The Groups diverse culture is
something it's enormously proud of and its that
divarsity of backgrounds of skills of experuse

and expenence that can be drawn on developed,
moulded and encouraged at every level of the Group

a New ways of engaging people

The changing face of recruitment has probably
been a surpnse to some but for Travis Perkmns it
has represenied an opporiunity and a challenge

It has been quick to embrace It has made a
sigrificant investment in LinkedIn and 1s actively
encouraging employees to develop therr networks
through this platform which in turn gives the
Group's resourcing function better access to kay
talent at no or low cost

b Developing people and careers

The Group canstantly checks and benchmarks
itself to ensure (i 1s beiter positioned to stay ahead
of its competitors as each tnes to attract and retain
the best peaple in the market During the year a
review has been undertaken of the effectiveness
of the structure of the resourcing and succession
leadership and training and developrment functions

which has identified a number of sigrificant

improvement opportunities This has led to new

approaches being developed in the following areas

« Product knowledge sales and service skills so

colleagues can provide even better custormer

service

Apprenticeships group management trainee

schemes and graduate programmes so the early

careers of the young entrants brought into the

business can be accelerated

Qualifications in leadership development to help

rmanagers get the best from ther people

Fast track development programmes to

strengthen the Groups talent pipeline as it grows

People are able to move batween brands shanng

best practice and great 1deas

Taltored safety development to keep colleagues

and custorrers sefe

« A new in-house search company that helps line
rnanagers make excellent recrutment decisions

-

*

AN INCLUSIVE CULTURE

Internal communications activity regularly shares
group-wide divisional and business specific
information with employees using nurmerous print,
digital and face-to-face channels and mechanisms
The Group has recently ‘gone google’ and so now
colleagues have a number of google plus sccial
media channels to draw upon The Groups intranet
15 widely used and 1s currently being redesigned to
rmake it even better

CHARITIES AND COMMUNITIES -

A COLLECTIVE RESPONSIBILITY

Durning the year colleagues across the Group have
engaged In a wide variety of community and
chariable aciivities Here are just a few examples
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ENGAGING PEOPLE

a Engaging with communities

o Travis Perking supported the next generation

of bulders by donating matenals to Live Train

a London-based training scheme which equips
unemployed people with the skills and expenence
to start a sustainable career :n the construction
ndustry 1t has also donated part of its branch

in Vauxhall London to house a new Live Train
training centre

Wickes continued its support of the VIY (Volunteer
It Yourself ) prgject which comibnnes volunteering
and DIY by challenging young people aged

14-17 to tearn trade and building skills on the

job by cornmitting to repair local youth club and
community centre bulldings

In September colleagues from Wickes' Tottenharn
store Jjoined 40 tradespeople and 270 young
people n a VIY Challenge Weekend in Septernber

to renovate four community spaces across London
The stare contnbuted rmaterals and store manager

Ra) Patel supported the Seloy Trust Community
Centre in Tottenharm with his leadership skills
helping to coordinate participating tradespeople n
mentoring young people on the job

b Chanty partnerships

» Those who work for City Plumbing Supplies
have stepped up therr fundraising activities In
2013 i support of ther new partner Teenage
Cancer Trust Scott Hurcomnbe, manager at City
Plumbing Gloucester described running the
London Marathon this year as the greatest and
maost rewarding achievernent of my lfe’ Scott
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raised over £5000 and 1s one of many across
the Group who have etther trekked across the
Highlands jumped out of planes broken out of
jall climbed mountains tackled challenge events
entered our TP's Got Talent competition or simply
baked cakes

The Clympic legacy left by Great Britain's cycling
team has insprred many employees to fundraise
through pedal power this year In August, 14
Trawis Perkins branch colleagues completed the
famous 300 mile London to Panis cycle nde
raising a staggenng £22 000 while colleagues
from Tile Giant conquered the 103 mile trek
along Hadnans Wall to raise £8,300, and eight
people from our Group Property & Environment
team completed the 55 mile Londcn to Brighton
bike nde raising £4 500

Internally ernployees can support additional
chantable actmity threugh payroll-giving and a
‘Colleague Lottery’, and the populanty of these
schemes remains undimirushed Thanks to
wanderful activities ke these the Group 1s pleased
to have donated more than £19m (2012 €2 1m)
through Group activities including £142 212
(2012 £165,716) directly from the Group to
worthwhile causes In the fields of cancer research
suppart for children and young people and the
hospice maovernent to name a few

John Carter
Chief Executive Officer
25 February 2014
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DIRECTORS

Chairrman

Robert Walker was appointed as a non-executive
director in September 2009 and becarne
Chairman in May 2010 He s chairman of
Enterprise Inns plc Amencana International
Holdings Ltd and Somerset-Ladbroke Investments
Ltd and a senior independent director of Tate &
Lyle PLC He was previously charrman of

W H Smith PLC Willliams Lea Group L.td and BCA
Europe and Group Chief Executive of Severn
Trent Plc He spent over 30 years with Procier

& Gamble McKinsey and PepsiCo and has also
served as a non-executive director on a number
of other FTSE 100 and 250 boards He 1s
Chairman of the Nominations Commuitee and a
member of the Remuneration and Health & Safety
Committees

Chief Executive

John Carter joined Sandel! Perkins as a
managemenit trainee 1N 1978 He held a number
of regional management positons before being
appointed Managing Director Operations in 1996
and a drector of Travis Perkins plc in July 2001
He became Chief Operating Officer in February
2005 and Deputy Chief Executive in Decernber
2011 He was appointed Chief Executive on

1 January 20714 He s a trustee of the Bulding
Research Establishment He 1s a member of the
Health & Safety Cormmrmittee and Charman of the
Executive Committee

Chief Financial Officer

Tony Buffin was appointed as Chief Financial
Officer on 8 April 2013 He 1s a chartered
accountant and was prevtously with the Coles
Group in Australia where he was Chief Financial
Officer frorn 2009 Prior to that he was Chief
Executive Officer of the Loyalty Managernent
Group He 1s member of the Executive Commitiee
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Non-Executive Directors

Ruth Anderson was appointed as a non-execuiive
director n 2011 She 15 a non-executive director
of Ocado ple, Coats plc The Royal Parks - an
executive agency of the Department of Culiure
Media and Sport and a trustee of the charty the
Duke of Edinburghs Award She 1s a chartered
accourtant and held a number of positions

n KPMG (UK) from 1976 10 2009, being a
member of its board frarm 1998 to 2004 and
Vice Charr from 2005 to 2009 She s Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Health & Safety Committee

John Coleman was appointed as a non-executive
directar in 2005 He 15 a chartered management
accountant and Charman of AGA Rangermaster
Group pic and a non-executive director of
Bonrmarche Holdings plc He has previously been
Charrman of Holiday Break plc Chief Executive
of House of Fraser plc and Chief Executive of
Texas Hornecare and of a number of businesses
within Burton Group PLC He becarne Senior
Independent Director in January 2013 and

1s a member of the Remuneration Audit and
Nominations Commitiees

Christopher Rogers was appomnted as a
non-executive director on 1 September 2013
He s a chartered accountant Managing Director
of Costa Coffee and a director of Whitbread PLC
of which he was Group Finance Director from
2005 to 2012 He was Group Finance Director
of Woolworth Group PLC from 2001 to 2005
and previously held seror roles in both finance
and commercial functions in Comet Group PLC
and Kingfisher PLC He was also a non-executive
director of HMV Group PLC from 2006 to 2012
He 1s a member of the Audit Commitiee

Andrew Simon OBE was apponted as

a non-executive director in 2006 He s a
non-executive director of Finning International Inc
(Canada) Management Consuling Group ple
SGL Carbon SE (Germany) Exova Group plc lcon
Infrastructure Management |LLP (Guernsey) lcon
1A GP Ltd Bntish Car Auctions and Gulf Keystone
Petroleumn Ltd (Bermuda) He was previously
Deputy Chairman of Dalkia plc Chairman and / or
Chief Executive of Evade Group ple and has also
held non-executive directorships with Severn Trent
Ple Ibstock PLC, Laporte Plc Associated British
Ports Holdings PLC and Brake Bros Holdings Lid
He 1s chairran of the Rermuneration and Health
& Safety Committees and @ member of the
Nominations Committee
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COMMITTEES AND
PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS

COMMITTEES

Secretary
Audit Committee
Remuneration Commitiee

Nominations Commiitee

Health & Safety Committee

Executive Committee

PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS

lnvestrnent Bankers / Adwisors
Corporate Broker

Bankers

Solicitors

Auditor

Registrars
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Deborah Grimason
Ruth Anderson (Chairman) John Colernan Chnistopher Rogers
Andrew Simon (Chairman), John Colerman, Robert Walker

Rabert Walker (Chairman) John Colerman Andrew Simon
Chnstopher Rogers Ruth Anderson

Andrew Simon (Chairman) Ruth Anderson John Carter Robert Walker
John Carter (Chief Executive and Committee Chairman)

Tony Buffin (Chief Financial Oificer)

Norman Bell (Group Development Director)

Arthur Davidson (Dvisional CEQ General Merchanting Division)
Frank Elkins (Dmsional CEO Contracts Division)

Deborah Grirnason (Company Secretary & General Counsel)
Carol Kavanagh (Group HR Director)

Martin Meech (Group Property Director)

lan Preedy (Group Buying Director)

Robin Proctor (Group Supply Chain Director)

Paul Tallentrre {(Divisional CEO Plumbing and Heating Division)

HSBC Bank plc Noermura International plc

Citibank Credit Stisse

The Rayal Bank of Scotland plc Barclays Bank plc Lloyds Bank ple
Linklaters LLP Londdon Clifford Chance LLP London

Deloitte LLP Londen

Capita Asset Services




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the following pages we explain how the Company has

applied the principles and prowsions of the UK Corporate

Governance Code (the Code’) during 2013 Since

mewitably and despite our best efforts the following pages

can make faily turgid reading and might appear somewhat

‘bailerplate | would like to make the following points by way

of introduction

« The Board considers that the Company has complied
with the provisions set out In the Cade

+ The Board invesied considerable time and effort ta

ensure Geoff Coopers retrerment as Group Chief

Executive and John Carters appointment as Geoffs

successor was properly planned and executed

Cur iniabive of mvolving our non-executive directors

more extensively In the Groups businesses has continued

successfully although rotating businesses among them

has bieen defayed due to current and future changes in

our non-executive bench

« Although | conducted an internal evaluation of the Boards
performance this year additanal steps were taken 1o
ensure Board performance was kept up to date with best
practice externally John Coleman (Senior Independent
Director) and | held a separate meeting with Egon
Zehnder (who have conducted over 400 external board
reviews) to compare best practice

« We welcome extensive and regular shareholder
engagement Each year we am to engage early and with
as wide a range of shareholders as possible We da this to
ensure that we have sufficent tme to address significant
shareholder concerns

.

The following pages surnmanse the Campanys governance
practices by reference to the five main sections of the Cade

1 LEADERSHIP

Al 31 December 2013 the Board was made up of five

nor-executive directors (including mysell as Chaiman)

and three executive directors John Coleman is the Senior

Independent Director The Board has a schedule of matiers

reserved to It whichis reviewed annually Four tems were

added in Decernber 2013

» Any decision lkely to have a matenal mpact on the
Group from any perspective including strategic financial
or operational

« Appraval of a conflicts of mterest policy and authorsation
of any conflicts

= Policies on bribery prevention

» Processes for ensuning a satisfactory dialague with
shareholders

Tha Boards key responsibiliies are for averall group strategy
policy on corporate governance approval of expansion
plans and major capital expendiure consideration of
significant financial and operational matters and the Groups
exposure to key nsks It also reviews the strategy of the
individual businesses. therr annual budgets and progress
towards the achievernent of those budgets and long-term
objectives Legslative envircnmental health and safety and
ermployment 1ssues are also considered

The Board has approved a written staterment of tha
dwision of key responsibiliies between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive This 1s reviewed annually and no
changes were made 1in 2013

The Campany mamtains dwectars & officers insurance
in respect of the nsk of clams against directors This1s
reviewed annually and has been increased for 2014

All directors have direct access to the Company Secretary
/ General Counsel and may take independent professional
advice in the furtherance of their duties If necessary

| agree the agenda for board meglings In conjunction with
the Chief Executive and the Company Secretary / Gereral
Counsel Agendas are based upon an annual plan but also
include matters of particular interest or concern to the Board
at any particlar ume

{ montor the Information provided to the Board to ensure
it1s suffioent kemely and clear

I generally contact all the non-executive directars in
advance of Board meetings to suggest the key issues for
discussion In particular | discuss the meeting papers with
any director whe 1s unable to attend o obtain that directors
views At the meetings as Chairman | ensure that each
director Is able to make an effective contribution within an
atrmosphere of transparency and constructive debate

Between board meetings | maintain frequent direct
coniact with the executive directors and keep the
non-executive directors informed of matenal developments
| held a number of meetings dunng the year with ail the
nan-executive directors without the executive directors
being present

Board meetings
We held ten Board meetings in 20713 (one 2-day meeting
and one by conference call) Two meetings considered the
Groups long-term strategy Eight meetings included either
wisits to parts of the Groups operations or presentations
by senior executrves on therr areas of respansibility
Non executive directors also made indmidual visits {o
operational sites In addition 1o the regular board meetings
key financial information 1s cireulated to directars autside
of meetings

The number of board and committee meetings attended
by each director (in whole or 1n part) dunng the year 1
detalled in the table on the next page
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PLC Board Audit  Remuneration Normination  Health & Safety Executive
Na No No. Na No Na
Number of meetings 10 4 5 3 3 7
Attendances
Ruth Anderscn 10 4 2 3 2
Tony Buffin! 3 1 2 5
Chris Bunker? 7 3 3 3
John Carter 10 3 2 2 3 7
John Colernan 10 4 5 3 -
Geoff Cooper 10 - 3 3 7
Paul Hampden Smith? 1 1 - 1
Philip Jansen? 3 - 1 2 -
Christopher Rogers® 4 1 - -
Andrew Simon 9 - 5 3 3 -
Robert Walker 10 4 5 3
* Appanted April 2013 2 Retired September 2013 ¥ Retired February 2013 * Rered May 2013 * Appointed September 2013

Board committees
We have five board commuittees the Audit Commuittee the
Remuneration Commuttee the Nominations Committee the
Health & Safety Committee and the Executive Committee
which cperate within defined terms of reference which
we review annually These are available on the Companys
website ar may be obtamed from the Company Secretary
The minutes of committee meetings are circulated to all
the Directors

The Executive Commuttae 1s chaired by the Group CEQ
and its members are listed on page 58 Other executives
are Invited to attend from tme 10 bme in relation to specific
matters. The main purpose of this Commuttee 15 to assist
the executive directors in the performance of their duties in
relation in particular to
+ Strategy operationa! plans policies procedures and budgets
+ The monitornng of operational and financial performance
+ The assessment and control of nisk
« The priorisation and allocation of resources
On occasions during 2013 sub-committees of the
Executive Committee met to carry out more detailed
reviews of particular areas

2 EFFECTIVENESS

The Board 15 satisfied that { and the non-executive directors
are all Independent In particular none of the specific
circurnstances set out in Code provision B1 1 apply
Appointmenis of new directors are made by the Board on
the recarmmendation of the Norminations Commiitee | charr
that Committee and all the other members are independent
non executive directors A report of the Committees work in
2013 15 on pages 83 to 84

Appomntrments of non-executive directors

Our policy 1s to recruit people of the highest calibre with

a breadth of skills and experience appraopnate for the
Companys business The Groups businesses both trade and
retall are trading businesses Given the highly competitive
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and fast moving nature of the markets in which the Group
operates our preference in seeking future non-executives
Is to attract Indmvduals who have had sigrificant Profit and
Loss experience as CFOs or CEOs additional expertise in
areas relevant to the Groups businesses is also valuable
We support the principles of the Davies Review and the
need for a diverse board although we do nat intend to
cornmit to specific quoias. We use search firms who will
abide by the voluntary code of conduct which followed the
Davies Review Our diversity policy s summansed in the
Nominations Cornmittee Report

Non-executive directors are appointed for a period of
three years at the end of which the appointment may
be renewed by miutual agreement It 1s the Boards policy
ihat non-executive directors should generally serve far six
years (two three-year terms) and that any term beyond this
should be subject to a ngorous review This review takes inta
account the need for progressive refreshing of the Board
mantenance of a balance of skills and expenence and the
pariicular requirements of the Company at the tume of the
possible extension

Non-executive directors do not have a service contract
but each has receved a letter of appontment These
appointments expire on the following dates and the length
of service at that date s also shown

Ruth Anderson October 2014 (3 years)
February 2014 (9 years)
August 2016 (3 years)

February 2015 (9 years)

Septemnber 2015 (6 years)

John Coleman

Chnstopher Rogers

Andrew Simon
Robert Walker

The letters of appointment will be avallable for inspection at
the Annual General Meeting

During 2013 Chnistopher Rogers joined the Board
Chnstopher had most recently been Group CFO &t




Whitbread plc and 1s currently Chief Executive of Costa
Coffee part of Whitbread In view of the pending retirement
over the next three years of three of our four non-executive
drectors and In order to secure continuity during this period
of change John Colernans appoiniment was extended
beyond his normal retirement date of Febiruary 2014 This
extension will be for a maximum of one year and major
shareholders were consulted on this well iIn advance

Induction

We have an induction process for new directors which is
facilitated by the Company Secretary / General Counsel

In particular this includes a programme of meetings

with senior management in both operations and central
functions and visits to a range of dranches and stores |
ensure that all directors recewe appropriate {raining on
appointment and then subsequently as required taking into
account the need to update thew skills and ther knowledge
of the Companys business Non-executive directors are
also regularly provided with information on forthcorming
legal and regulatory changes and corporate governance
developments and briefings on the key nsks facing the
Company including those identified In the Statement of
Principal Risks and Uncertainties on pages 39 to 41

Executive mentornng by non-executive directors

Each non-executive directar 1s allocated to one or more

of the Groups businesses and one of the Groups central
functions The precise mentonng process 1s for each
non-executive director to decide but involves contact and
meetings with the management of the allocated businesses
or functions and site visits The intention is to give the
non-executive directors a better understanding of our
businesses and functions their people and strateges while
allowing them to use therr skills and experience io bring a
fresh iIndependent viewpoint to those parts of the Group
This mentoning arrangement will contirue in 2014

Evaluation of board performance
Each year the Board undertakes an evaluation of its
perforrmance and the performance of ts committees and
individual directors The Boards policy 15 to engage an
external facilitator to assist this process every three years In
2007 and 2071 the Boards performance was reviewed
externally by Egon Zehnder The Board had no conflict
of interest with Egon Zehnder who have conducted over
400 exiernal reviews significantly more than mast other
comparable practitioners. In the Boards experience finding
qualified pracutioners in this area has been particularly
challenging Many companies have emerged to provide this
service with little or no expenence in boardroom practice
and fittle deronstrable value added, in a sense “taking your
waitch 1o tell you what the ume 1s” We welcome the recent
imitative 1o develop a code of practice in this area although
the first draft crculated in February 2014 1s unsatisfactory
In 2012 the Board camed out an internal review of iis
performance Reviewing the actions identified at that tire
the Board has generally performed well on most 1if not all
itemns Executive succession has been comprehensively
managed and progress I1s underway on fulure non-executive
succession Considerable time was invested In group and
individual strategic business inatives including an externally
facilitated process of challenge this led 10 a Capital
Markets day presentation on 3 December 2013 Further
streambining our financial reparting for the Board remains

a work in progress but should be completed this May As a
Board we still need to spend more time on management
successton and developrment beyond the senior 1eam
Finally we continued to involve appropriate and challenging
external experuse in Board discussions

Turning to 2013 when we once again conducted an
internal performance review This entaled each director and
the Company Secreiary completing a questionnaire about
the performance of the Board and its committees followed
by iIndmiduat interviews with myself Fallowing a separate
meeting with Egon Zehnder to compare best practice
and referred to above | prepared a report for the Board in
Decermnber Additionally the Seniar Independent Director also
conducted a review of my own performance

As aresult the Board determined that it had effectively
managed the achievernent of the Companys objectives
during the vear that the mix of knowledge and skills among
Board members were appropniate and that the Board
worked cohesively

For 2014 the following areas for focus among others
were Identified
» Contnuing 1o manage non-executive SUCCessIon
« Horung board processes
« Refreshing the Companys nisk processes
In 2014 an external review of the Boards performance will
be conducted

Re-election
At the AGM all directors will submit thernselves for
re-election As a result of the board evaluation exercise
as Charrman | am satisfied that each director continues
to show the necessary level of comrmitment to the Group
and has sufficient time avallable to fulfil his or her duties to
justify therr re-election The other directors in a process led
by the Senior Independent Director have reached a similar
view In regard 10 my own re-election

The Baard believes that there 1s presently a blend of
skills and exparence among the non-executive directors
which 1s appropriate for the Group The skills required
for our Board include experience in the merchanting and
retaill sectors capital project and M&A evaluation and
expenence of international markets as well as the essentral
understanding of financial controls and accountng
background An understanding of information technology
IS Increasingly important

3 ACCOUNTABILITY

A review of the performance of the Groups businesses

and the financial posttion of the Group 1s Included in the
Strategic Report on pages 20 to 30 The Board uses the
Strategic Report to present a full assessment of the Groups
position and prospects its business rodel and its strategy
for delvenng that model The Dwectors responsibilities for
the financial staternents are descrbed on page 88

Going concern

After reviewing the Groups forecasts and nisk assessments
and making other enquines the Directors have formed a
judgement at the tirne of approving the financial statements
that there 1s a reasonable expectalion that the Group and
the Company have adequate resources to continue in
operationat existence for the foreseeable future For this
reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
prepanng the financial stalements
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In arrving at therr opinion the Directors considered the

Groups cash flow forecasts and revenue projections

Reasonably possible changes In trading performance

Commutted facilities avallable to the Group to late 2016

and the covenants thereon

Groups rabust policy towards iquidity and cash flow

management

» Group managements ability to successfully manage the
principal nsks and uncertainties outlined on pages 39 to
41 during periods of uncertain ecancmic outlook and
challenging macro economic conditions

Internal control
The Board is responsible for the Groups system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness In the design
of the systern of internal control consideration has been
given to the sigrificant nsks to the business the probability
of these nsks manifesting thernselves and the most cost
effectve means of controlling thern The threat posed
by those nsks and any perceived change in that threat 1s
reviewed quarterly by both the Executive Committee and
the Board The system manages rather than eliminates risk
and therefore can only pravide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss

The day-to-day operation of the system of internal contral
15 delegated to executive directors and senior management
but the effectiveness of the systern 1s regularly reviewed
by the Audit Commitiee and the Board in a process that
accords with the Turnbult Guidance

Risk assessment
It 15 the responsibility of the Board to estabhsh the risk
framework within which the Group operates The Board
and the Executive Cormmittee receve reports on specific
areas of nisk at each meeting 1n accordance with a rolling
timetable They also receve reports of Internal Audit reviews
If appropriate these reports include recommendations
far improvement in controls or for the managernent
of those risks Measures to integrate nsk rmanagament
processes Into the Groups operations to extend awareness
of the importance of sk managerment and to ensure
that recommended impravernents are mplemented are
regularly reviewed and refreshed Senior executives and
managers are asked each year o confirm the adequacy
of internal controls in therr areas of responsibility identify
any control weaknesses and to confirm the accuracy and
completeness of infarmation given to the directors and to
the external auditor

In comunction with the Audit Cormmittee the Board has
carmed out an annual review of the overall effectiveness of the
systern of internal cantrol ang nsk management dunng the
year and up until the date of approval of this Annual Report

Audit committee and auditors

The Board has estabhshed an Audit Committee consisting
of three independent non-executive directors lts key
responstilities and a description of its work in 2013 are
contained In its report which 1S set out on pages 64 to 67

4 REMUNERATION

The Board has established a Remuneration Committeg
consisting of the Chairman and iwo independent

non executive direciors Its responsibiliies include
rermuneration policy a review of the performance of
executive directors prior to determining their remuneration
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and the approval of incentive arrangements including
performance critena The rermuneration of the non-executive
directors 1s determined by the Board as a whole except that
the Remuneration Commitiee makes a recommendation in
respect of the Charrmans fee No director plays a part in the
discussion about their own remuneration

The Cammittees key respansibilities and a description of
its work in 2013 are contained in its report which i1s set out
on pages 68 0 82

5 RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company encourages twa way communication with
both its institutional and private investors and responds
promptly to all enquines receved Each year the Company
reviews i1 strategy for engaging with shareholders In 2013
the Senior independent Director the executive directors and
| either separately or together attended a large number of
rmeetings with analysts and with sharehoiders representing
about 50% of the 1ssued share capital

In December we held our Capital Markets day which was
attended by more than 100 investors and analysts as well
as a nurnber of representatives from the Groups banks
The executive directors together with mernbers of our
Executive Committee outhned the Groups future strategy
for creating sharehaolder value our divisional plans and our
capital managerment strategy A copy of the presentaticn is
available in the investor section of our website at
wwaw travisperkinsplc couk

We make the Senior Independerit Director avalable as a
direct contact for shareholders if they wish The Chairman
and executive directors report 1o the Board on any meetings
with shareholders or analysts In addiion writen reports
about the Company by analysls or brokers are arculated 1o
all directors

As regards governance 1ssues | aim to meet with major
shareholders shortly after the previous years annual
shareholders meeting These meetings are detberately
tirned early in the year so that the Board can consider and
respond to shareholder concerns well iIn advance of the
following years annual report and shareholder rmeeting |
normally contact our 20 largest shareholders to ensure the
widest consultation possible and particularly given market
volatibity to ensure that the views of a sharehatder who
substanually increases its stake dunng the year have been
fully taken into account

As well as sending the annual report to shareholders
during the year the Group published its intenm results on its
wehbsite and 1ssued two interim management statements
Shareholders receive at least twenty working days notice
of the Annual General Meeting at which all directors are
available for questions and a short business presentation
takes place Each substantive 1ssue is the subject of a
separate resolution { announce the numbers of proxy votes
for and against each resclution at the meeting after the
voting has taken place and these numbers are subsequently
published on the Companys website

THE BOARD'S FAIR, BALANCED AND
UNDERSTANDABLE DECLARATION

At the board meeting during which the Groups results for
the year were presented by the Chief Executive Officer

and the Chief Financial Officer the Board also considered
whether the Annual Report and Accounts when taken as a
whole present a far balanced and understandable overview
aof the Group and its performance




Alfter
= Hearning from the executive directors
*« Recemng a report from the Chairman of the Audit
Committee on that Committees meeting to discuss
the preparation and content of the year end financial
staternents and the audit conducted upon them
+ Discussing the contents of the Annual Report and
Accounts
+ Recognising that the Auditor has stated in ther audit
report cn pages 89 (o 91
We are required to consider whether we have
identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge
acquired during ihe audit and the directors staternent
that they consider the annual repart is fayr balanced
and understandable and whether the annual report
appropriately discloses those matters that we
communicated to the audit comrmuiitee which we
consider should have been disclosed We confirrn that
we have not identified any such nconsistencies or
misleading staterments ™
the Board concluded that the Annual Report and Accounts
are far balanced and understandable and accordingly the
Directors declaration to that effect can be found in the
Staternent of Directors Responsibiliies on page 88

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE
STATEMENT

| am pleased 1o report that the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013 with the
provisions set out in the Code

Robert Walker
Chairman
25 February 2014
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

As Chairman of the Audit Cornmittee | arn pleased to
report below on the Committees activities in 2013

ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Cornmittee 1s primarily responsible for
« The integrity of the financial statements of the Group
and any farmal announcements relating to the Groups
financial performance and reviewing significant financial
reporting Judgrnents cantained therein
Reviewing the Groups internal financial controls and its
intermal control and nisk management systems
Monitaring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Groups
internal avdn function and approving its werk plans
Revievang the audrt plans of the external auditors and for
monitonng the conduct of the audit
Reviewing the external auditors independence and
objectity and the effectiveness of the audit process
taking into consideration relevant UK professional and
regulaiory requirements
Reviewing and implermenting the Groups policy on the
engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit
services taking into account relevant guidance regarding
the provision of non audit services by an external audit
firm
Conducting any tender process for the provision of the
external audit and making recornmendations to the
Board for a resolution to be put to the shareholders in
relation to the appointment and remuneration of the
external auditors
Shortly after each meeting, | report to the Board on the
work of the Committee identifying any matters where
considers that action ar improvernent (s needed and make
recommendations as to the steps 1o be taken

The Commuttees full terrms of reference (which are
reviewed annually and were last updated in Decernber
2013) are avalable on the Groups website
(wwwiravisperkinsplc couk) or on request to the Company
Secretary / General Caunsel
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COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chns Bunker was Charman of the Commuttee unul July
when | assurned the charmanship He remained a member
of the Cornmuttee until 30 September when he reured
as a Director of the Group Christopher Rogers joned the
Commuttee following his appaintrment as a non-executive
direclor with effect from 1 September 2013 Chnstopher 15
a chartered accountant and was previousty Group Finance
Directer at both Whitbread PLC and Woalworth Group
PLC John Coleman was a member of the Commiitee
throughout 2013

All members of the Commuitiee are considered to
be independent and have considerable financial and
commercial experience ganed through a vanety of
corporate and professional appointments. In particular the
Board considers that Chris Bunker had and Christopher
Ragers and | have the recent and relevant financial
expenence required by the UK Corporate Governance
Code (see also the board profiles on pages 56 to 57)
The Company Secretary was secretary to the Committee
throughout 2013

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Committee held four mestings durng 2013 and
attendance at the meetings 1s shown on page 60 The
Group Chairman the Chief Financial Officer the Deputy
Chief Execuive the Group Financial Controller the Director
of Business Risk and Assurance and the external auditor
also attended most meetings At each meeting attended
the external auditor and the Director of Business Risk and
Assurance were given the opportunity to discuss with the
Commuttee any matters which they wished ta raise without
the presence of managernent In addition duning the year
there were a nurnber of meetings between the Chairman
of the Camrittee and the Director of Business Risk and
Assurance and between the Charrrman of the Committee and
the external auditors, without management beng present

WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

The meetings were arranged 1o fit around the Groups half
year and full year financial reporting requirements. The
following areas were covered dunng the year




February May July Novernber

Financial reporting
Consideration of annual report and accounts

Consideration of intenm results

Review of the impact of accounting and gavernance developments [ ) ) .

Internal audn

Terms of reference review

Annual activity plan and resource allocation
Activity review

Appraisal of effectiveness

Systemns of internal controls review

External audit

Auditors report on ther activitias

Auditors independence and quality control processes
Review of effectiveness of the External Auditors
Rewview of intenim / annual terms of engagement
Review of year end audit plan

Review of audit and non-audit fees

Risk management
Rawview of sk management framework
Consideration of fraud bribery and whistleblowing report

Systerns of internal controls review

Audit Committee governance
Terms of reference review

Review of the Commtiees effectiveness

Key topics covered at the meetings and not commented on

elsewhere in this report were

» The secunty of the Group's information technology
sys{ems

« Restructuning the finance departrment 1o reflect the
increasing deceniralisalion of operating and financial
responsibility throughout the Group

+ The impact of decentrabsation on the Groups financial
systems financial analysis systerns and the avalability of
rmanagement inforrmaton

In addion to attending the formal Audit Cornrmittee

meeiings during the year the Committee rmembers regularly

met with operational and finance staff and receved a

number of technical updates
| amn satisfied that the Commuttee receved sufficient

reliable and tirnely information from management to enable

it to fulfil s respansibilies during the year

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES RELATED
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Audit Caommittee receved papers from the Groups
management team and from the Groups Auditors that
provided details of the significant financial reporung
estimates and Judgerments made dunng the preparation and
presentation of the Groups interrm and annual accounts
No matters of matenal significance were identified by the
external auditors during the year and there were no material
audi-related matiers that were discussed with iInvestors
The key 1ssues in respect of the annual accounts
considered by the Committee were the
= Potential for an imparment to the carrying value of
goodwill and other intangible assets A number of
judgements are made by management when determining
therr estimates of the future cash flows of businesses In
the Group Those judgemenis included revenue growth
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rates an-going margins overhead increases and the level
of investment required to maintain the individual busmness
operating capability Additionally the rate chosen by
management at which to discount future cash flows and
the allocation of assets and operations to cash generating
units can significantly impact any calculations
In arrng at its concluston that no mpairment
had occurred the Committee reviewed the board
approved forecasts challenged managernent on the
key assumptions and questioned the Auditors about
managements application of the accounting rules
+ Systems, processes and cantrols involved in determining
the value of supplier rebate income recognised in the
accounts Supplier rebate agreements can be extrernely
complicated and are not always coterrninus with the
Groups accounting year-end As a result judgements are
rnade io {orecast turnover for those deals where the rate
at which rebate is earned varies dependent upon the
volume or value purchased
The Commutiee concluded following presentations
frorn rmanagement and the Auditors that rebate income
had been properly reflected in the accounts
Application of pension accounting rules to the Group's
three defined benefit pension schemes The complex
calculation of pensian scheme funding posttion
undertaken by the Scheme Actuary s dependent upon
key assumptions made by management in respect of
future rates of inflation nvestrment income interest rates
scherme member mortality and contributions in respect of
historical deficits 1n addition the FRRP issued guidance on
the application of the IFRIC 14 dunng the year
After considening benchmarking information
provided by the Auditors and updated legal advice
about the nghts of the Group In respect of any surplus
in the Travis Perkins defined benefit pension scheme
the Committee decided that management's pension
scherme assumptions calculations and disclosures were
acceptable
« Level of provisioning for batilities, which included
insurance, warranties, property leases, bad debts, stock
and tax. in determining the values of provisions required
at the year-end management had to make judgements
often based upon previous experience about the future
recaverability of assets or the likelhood of successful
claims to be made aganst the Group
In each case management presented to the
Committee the basis of the provision and the key
assumptions applied when guantifying it In addition
the Comrmutiee sought the views of the auditors before
arrving at the conclusion that provisicns were fairly stated
in the annual accounts
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Appointment and performance
Deloitte LLP (or its predecessor firms) 1s a leading
international audit partnership and was first appointed as
auditor to group companies more than 30 years ago There
are no contractual restrictions on the Group with regard to
ther appaintment In accordance with current professianal
standards the partner responsible for the audit changes
every 5 years the last change occurred in 2010
In accordance with the recent change to the UK
Carporate Governance Code 1t 1s the Groups intention to
put the audit out to tender at least every 10 years The
Committee decided it was not necessary to tender the audit
m 2013 but intends to do so and the tender process will be
completed n time for the 2015 year-end al the latest
During the year the Committee reviewed the following in
respect of the external auditor
« The policy on engagement of the external auditor for
non-audit wark, as referred to below and the policy on
the employment of anyone previcusly employed by Lhe
external auditor
The plans presented by the external auditor for the
conduct of the year end audit and half-year review
including the related nisk analyses terms of engagement
fees and letters of representation
= The effectiveness independence and otyectwvity of the
external auditor taking into account inforrmation and
written assurances provided by Delaitte LLP on s quality
and ndependence controls and its ethical standards and
reports of the FRC Audit Inspection Unit
The Commutiee specifically discussed the effectiveness
of the external audit process at 1ts meetings of February
and November 2013 and again at its meeting in February
2014 Ineach case the Committea obtained input from
the Companys finance team In particutar the Committee
considered the audit of the 2012 report and accounts the
audit plan for 2013 and the audit of the 2013 report and
accounts the nsk identification process and the future impact
of the divisional reporting structure The Commiltee was
satisfied of the effectiveness of the external audit process

Independence and objectivity

One of the Commmittees responsibilities 1s to ensure
compliance with the Boards policy n respect of services
provided by and fees paid to the external auditor There has
been no change to this policy which 1s summarised below
and 15 1ncluded on the Groups website at
wwwiravisperkinsplccouk

General principle for non-audit work

The external auditors should only be chosen to carry cut
non-audit work where its nature makes it more effective
for the work 1o be carned out by auditors who have existing
knowledge of the Group The external auditars should

not provide non-audit services where It might impair their
independence or objectvity In carrying aut the audit




Avreas of work

Permitted work - audit related

Activities required by law or legislation Lo be undertaken
by the Auditors

Rewviews of interim financial information
Managed service reports 10 housing associations and
local authorities

Perrmitted work — nan-audi related

Tax compliance services
Tax advisary services

Public reporting on mwvestrment arculars and sirmiar
documents

Private reporting to sponsors and similar parties in
connection with investment circulars and similar
documents

Emplayee benefit plen audits

Prohibited wark

Book keeping and work related to the preparation of
accounting records

Financial informiztion System design or implernentation
Appraisal and valuation services

Internal audit services

Actuanal services

Forensic work

Recrutment services

Secondment of staff to a supervisory or management
positicn

Provision of investiment advice broking or tegal services

Value of work

Non-audit services require approval as follows

« £500010 £25000 Chief Financizl Officer

+ £25000 to £50000 Chief Financial Officer and
Commuttee Charrman

» £50000+ Chief Financial Officer and Committee
Charrman following a competitive tender

Formal approval by the Corrrmittee 15 also required if the

aggregated level of forecast fees for non-audit services

exceeds 50% of the statutory audi fee

Reparting
The Chief Financial Officer reports twice annually to the
Committee on fees for non audn services payable to the
auditers

As shown in note 5a to the accounts dunng the year
the Auditors were paid £442 000 (2012 £431000) for
audit-related work and £188000 (2012 £1239000) for
non-audit work

The princpal tems of non-audit fees related to reviewing
the Groups intenm announcerment to shareholders

and sundry tax advice In view of Deloittes detailed
understanding of the Groups operations and accounting
policies and being rmindful of future Auditor reporting
abligations the Audit Commiitee decided that it was
appropriate for Deloitte ta uvndertake this work. In addition
£837000(2012 £347 000) of fees were paid to other
accounting firms for non-audit work, Including advice to the
Rernuneration Commuttea

The Committee understands that the total fees paid by
the Group to Delaitie In 2013 amount to less than 001%
of Delaittes UK fee income and considers that the Auditars
independence and abjectvity has not been impaired by the
nor-audit fees paid in 2013

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Committee reviewed the Groups internat financial
contrals and its internal control and nsk managerment
systems in February 2014 The Commiitee considered
these systems to have been effective duning the year
Addionally the Executive Cornrmuttee nsk sub group met
ten times dunng 20713 to consider risk related matters
There 15 an intentien to review the nsk management
systerns in 2014 to mare closely align thern with the
Groups strategy and corporate plans

INTERNAL AUDIT
The Committee cortinued to review the plans for wark in
2013 throughout the first part of the year and in¢reased
the emphasis on finance maiters At each Committee
meeting the results of internal audits were considered and
the Committee reviewed progress on meeting agreed
recommendations Risk based plans for work in 2014 were
agreed by the Committee in November 2013

The Carnmittee working with the Chief Financial Officer
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit department
and as a result the team will be restructured and
strengthened in 2014 through recrutment and the use of
external resources for sorne specialist area audits.

The Cormmuittes was satisfiied with the overall
effectiveness of the internal audit function

OVERVIEW
As a result of its work dunng the year and taking into
account the result of the Board and Committee evaluation
process descnibed on page 61 the Committee considers
that it has acted in accordance wath its terms of refarence
and has ensured the independence objectivity and
effgctiveness of the external and internal auditors The
Cornmittee has aiso concluded that the Groups internal
contrel and nsk management systems were effective durning
the year

I will be available at the Annual General Meeting 10
answer any questions about the work of the Commitiee

Ruth Anderson
Charman Audit Committee
25 February 2014
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DIRECTORS’

REMUNERATION REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

This report sets out the Groups remuneration poiicies for its
directors and seniar executives and how these policies will
be applied m practice The policy 1s avalable 10 view on the
Companys websita In the investor centre

UNAUDITED INFORMATION
1 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT
Dear Shareholder
2013 was a year of transition for the reporting of
directors remuneration following the intreduction of the
new government regulations on execulve remuneration
disclosure Histarally we have always sought to be
transparent in our disclosures and consulted widely with
shareholders on our remuneration proposais and we
have embraced the new regulations as we believe they
will help us 1o continue to detiver clear and easy to read
remuneration reports

The palicy on directors’ remuneration wilt be subject to a
binding shareholder resolution at the forthcormng Anrual
General Meeting (AGM ) and every three years thereafter
The Annual Report on remuneration which describes how
the policy has been applied duning the year will be subject to
an adwisory resalution at the farthcorming AGM

In addition we ara seeking support via a separate
resolution for the renewal of part of our long term incentive
arrangernenis Dunng consultations last year sharehotders
ware supportive of our reruneration package for directors
and a key element of the package is our co investment
share rnatching scheme (SMS) Participants invest n
company shares using thair awn funds and are cligible for
a matching grant which vests subject to achievernent of
cash return on capital ermployed targets [tis for this scherne
renewal we seek support

In this our first report under the regulations | wani to
explain the context of our remuneration philosophy both in
terms of our recent performance but also in relatien to our
future business strategy

REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHY

We remain commitied to a remuneration policy shat

balances long term shareholder value creation with the

need to motivate reward and retain high calibre executives

The principles of our remuneration policy remain unchanged

from previous years

» Rernuneration should be competiive and contribute to
the delivery of short and long-term superior financial
resuits for shareholders

+ Remuneration should contan significant performance
related incentive elements

+ Reward mechanisms ensure that a significant proportion
of vanable pay 1s delivered in deferred shares with
clawback provisions ensuning that executives retain a
meaningful personal stake 1n the Groups success

+ All colleagues should be able to share in the success of
the Graup through participation in both annual bonus
schemes and longer term share plans
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+ The approach to basic salary increases should be
consistent across all colleagues including no pay
Increases for mergers and acquisitions actiity

PERFORMANCE OUTCOMES
As the Charrrmans report Indicated the strong business
perforrmance n the second half of the year dnven by the
delivery of a number of managerents strategic INtiatives
resulted in very good full vear results Adjusted EPS was
up 14% debt levels lower by £104m and the share pnce
increased from £12 52 at the time of wniting last years
report to £18 72 by the end of 2013 We have cantinued
our progressive dvidend policy - this year declaring a full
year dwdend of 310p a 24% increase on the previous
year Over the longer term the Groups outperformance
has been reflected in the TSR increase from 100% to0
742% aver 5 years and our move into the FTSE 100
dunng 2013 This compares favourably to the market TSR
ncrease from 100% to 200% over the same penod

This performance 1s reflected in the remuneration recerved
by the executive directors for the year under review Annual
bonus awards for executive directors have been determined
by the Commultee based on a rounded assessment of
financial and personal performance There will be an annual
incentive payout for executive directors and central function
rmanagers of typically 50-65% of the maximurm bonus
opportunity This reflects the fact that whilst performance
n the second half of the year was very strong the tough
conditions in the fist half meant that the EPS and ROCE
targets set for 2013 were only partially met These resulis
are set out separately In this report on page 26

As part of determining the 60-65% bonus payment
level the Committee reviewed managements performance
against a range of strategic obyectives which accaunt for up
to 20% of the maximum banus Thase include measures
relating to people and process capability health and safety
improvemnents market cornpetitiveness business quality
growth potential and financial performance Overall the
Remuneraticn Committee has judged these abjectives as
75% achieved with particular success in relation to TSR and
incrermental value of investments but with some work to do
against stretching targets for customer engagerment multi-
channel and safe sites

Levels of bonus awarded therefore reflect actual
perfermance relative to both annual and longer term
expectations

Half of the annual bonus earned has been deferred into
shares which are subject to forfeiture if target share prices
are not achieved over the next two years This mecharusm
ensures that there 15 a meaningful deferral of vanable pay
on an at nsk basis

We are delghted that across our businessas the majonty
of colleagues in our merchanting dwsiens and central
support functions will also receve a bonus in respect of
2013 performance

Both short and long term ingentive performance
measures are directly inked to driving and rewarding




strategic growth initiatives whilst efficiently managing capital
expenditure operating expenditure, costs and cash flows
The perfarmance measures Include the following, EPS TSR
cashflow ROCE and broader goals such as market share
sales growth colleague engagement and health and safety
improvements. We believe that this balanced basket of
measures which management find easy to relate to has
ensured a clear focus on the acuviies which have dniven the
Groups current position as the largest supplier of bullding
matenals in the UK Over the last three years the share price
has increased from £1058 to £18 72 with a 34% increase
in EPS over the same time period This has been balanced
with an investrment and focus on longer term developrnent
areas such as IT health and safety and training where we
plan to increase levels of investment in the future The
consistent outperfarmance in total retums to shareholders
has been achieved through managements track record of
successfully combining organic and acquisitive growth which
is measured and rewarded through the basket of measures

The Commuttee 15 delighted that this supenar longer
term perfarmance resulted n @ maximum payment unger
the three year ndwidual nvestment lnked share award
measured on CROCE and 3 60 7% payout on the measures
nked to the Performance Share LTIP for the awards which
vested 1n March 201 3 Around 200 senior managers
particpate in at least one of these plans

Last year | referred to the Committees decrsion to defer
1ts decision in relation to the January 2013 management
annual pay review untd July 2013 due to the market and
trading performance uncertainty at that tme As a result
of the stronger business performance as the business
approached the second half of the year it was agreed that
in line wath all other management employees the executive
directers would recewve the same 1 5% increase to basic
salary in July 2013 (delayed from January 2013) but this
was not backdated

In respect of the January 2014 pay review an award
of 2% was agreed reflecting the more positive trading
arvironment and outlook This 1s the seventh successive
year in which the same pay Increase has appled to all
employees other than for promotion The average pay
ncrease over the last seven years has been 2 2%

REMUNERATION POLICY
Our Remuneration Policy 1s first and foremost designed to
support the Group goal of creating and mantaining long
term shareholder value and returns through consisiently
outperforming in our markets With this in rmind we continue
to focus our efforts on achieving the night blend of fixed
and vaniable remuneration and ensuring that our senior
executives are paid at a level appropnate to the size of
our Group We are mindful of our responsibilities to ather
stakeholders espectally employees and take this into
account when reviewing pay for serior executives. A key
principle appled for directors and colleagues throughout
the Group 1s that base salanes shauld be competiive and
set at the median for the relevant comparator group Bonus
schemnes are designed to incentvise and reward both
ndividuat and team performance

Appropriate levels of incentrves are Just as Important
External guidance receved indicates that over the longer
term more than 50% of total remuneration should be
perforrnance related The framework we now have in
place means that If all Incentives vested at their maximum
between 75%-80% of total remuneration for the executive

directors would be performance related In determining our
policy all associated nsks are considered so that the gverall
rernuneration structure and targets in ncentive schemes do
not give nse to any undue nsk taking

We believe that 1t 1s mportant for all of our most senior
executives o build up a shareholding in the Company
and so we have implemented an increased requirerent
for executive directors 1o hold shares ta the value of two
times basic salary to be built up over a five year penod
Participation in our lang term incentive schermes will be
restricted or withdrawn If the required shareholding 1s not
acquired and maintained At 31 December 2013 both John
Carter and Geoff Cooper had exceeded therr target level of
holdings Tony Buffin has already built up a shareholding of
over 100% of basic salary

We take into account a number of factors when seting
targets for our Incentive schemes Taken together they
represent a balance that means executives should not be
unduly rewarded for one off short terr factors Insiead
performance over and above streiching targets should
result in greater shareholder value and 0 turn high rewards
for executives

Shareholder consultation

The Rermuneration Committee consulted shareholders

during the year on some of the key challenges it faced and

was pleased 1o gain a high level of support for the decisiens

made in a year of major change as outlined in this report

namely

+ The one off share award in relation ta secunng the
appointment of Tany Buffin as Chief Financial Officer

+ The basic salary implemented cn the appointment of
John Carter as Chief Executive Officer

+ The increase io the fee levels for the roles of
non-executive director and chairman

Rermnuneration challenges and outcornes
2013 has been a busy year of leadership change and
transition for the Group Whlst this has presented a number
of challenges the pninciple gutding bath the Remuneration
and Nominations committees has been to ensure that the
decisions rmade by thern i all related rmatters resulted in
continued outperformance of total returns o shareholders
and eliminated nsk In turn this has fully tested the degree
to which our remuneration philosophy policy and approach
works (n practice

The Committee carefully considered these matters
consulting shareholders and taking external advice where
necessary and dealt with each of the matters within the
remuneration policy framewark set out on page 71

The challenges and outcomes can be summansed
as follows

Recrutment of our Chief Financial Officer

As | set out in last years remuneration report in order ta
secure Tony Buffin as Group Chief Financial Officer it was
necessary to compensate him for part of the significant
cash awards earned at his previous employer but nat yet
paid which he forferted on s resignation The one off
award was structured on a co-investrment basis whereby
Tony Buffin invested £500 0Q0 from his own resources
purchasing 32 902 Company shares and will in turn
recenve 65 804 Company shares, half in June 2014 and
half in June 2015 subject to him continuing to be employed
by the Cormpany and also achieving a number of personal

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE @

Travis Perkins©



DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

objectives in relation to changes and improvements agreed
for the finance function and management iInformation
pravision He will not be able to sell any of these shares until
he has achieved a shareholding of at least twa times basic
salary Full detals of the award are detalled on page 79

Ensuning a smooth transition of the Groups

finance leadership

As the precise timing of Tony Buffins cormencement date
could not be confirmed quickly due to his previous ermployers
notice penod restrictions It was essential to retain the
services of Paul Harmpden Smith for longer than ervisaged
under hus anginal retirerment timetable 1t was agreed that

he would cormtinue in ermployment until Septernber 30th
2013 to ensure a smooth handaver could take place In
recogriton of his comritment and support in this matter
as well as recogrising his significant coninbution to the
Groups growth and shareholder returns over the previous
20 years (demonstrated by the nse n EPS from 21 4p in
1994 to 103 &p) the Remuneration Committee exercised
thew discretion In relation to the vesting of his 2012 LTIP
awards This means that the awards will stll be subject to
performance target testing in the normal way but will not be
urne prorated

Retirernent of our Group Chief Executive Officer
As previously commumicated to shareholders Geoff Cooper
confirmed his decision to retire an his 60th brthday
5 March 2014 and as part of the succession planning
process stepped down from his position as CEO on 31
December 2013 the date of John Carters appontment as
Chief Executive Cfficer All elerments of remuneraticn will be
enacled in ine with the rernuneration policy applicable o
retrement with no discretions exercised in his favour Geoff
has agreed to continue as an adwvisor to John Carter and the
Board for a further 12 months specifically in relation to the
Toolstation business

The salary agreed for his new advisory role 1s £100 000
per annum He will not be eligible for any bonus payments
and no new LTiP awards will be granted dunng this
transitonal pernod He will continue to retain awards granted
to him prior to his stepping down frem his position as CEO
until his cessation of employment at which point any vesting
of awards will be dependent on the rules of the relevant
scheme for cessation due to retirerment

Appomniment of our Group Chief Executive Officer

We cormissioned external benchmarking work to assist

us in determining the base salary level for John Carters
promotion 1o Chief Executive Officer Qur main focus was

to ensure we identified the night salary level for John gven
that banus and LTIP levels are already established for the
Chief Executive Officer position and had been approved

by shareholders at the 2013 AGM [n dong this we took
into account not only key market indicators but also Johns
expenence both in the industry and in seniar roles In Travis
Perkins and the ngorous selection process which ultimately
led to his appointrment We were pleased that the majonty of
our miajor shareholders confirmed their support to beth the
salary level of £660 000 per annum and the ratianale for it
Whilst some shareholders indicated a general preference for
substantiz] pay increases 1a be implemented in two stages
there was recogrition thal this appointrment had been
planned and managed over a few years as demonstrated
by Johns increased responsibilities in the role of Deputy
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Chref Executive Officer this approach ensured that John
Carter hit the ground running and the high level of investor
support we receved was an smportant endorsernent of the
final appointrment decision

As we do not plan to replace Johns previous role as
Deputy CEO there will be a sigrificantly reduced overall wotal
board rermuneration cost

Review of fee levels for the Chairman and

non-executive directors

The Board cornmissioned a review of the Charrmans and
non-executive directors’ fees which had not been increased
for three years Based on the independent benchrnarking a
decision was made by the appropniate directors to increase
the fee levels to a market median competitive level with a
rminimurm of 25% of the fee level being paid in shares as
outlined on page 74 We believe that this achieves a better
algnment of interests between non-executive drectors and
shareholders and were pleased to receve shareholder support
for this recornrmendation and alsc te the decision to bing the
future review tirmetable 1N kne with all other employees

FORWARD LOOKING
On 3 Decernber 2013 the Company held a Capital
Markets day and presented its revised corporate plan
to investors The olan reflected a significant shift in the
investment strategy of the business compared 1o the pror
plan Over recent years the Company strategy has been to
protect returns achieved through judicious operational cost
and capital control The 2013 corporate plan recognises
that to exploit the significant growth opportunities over
the next 5 years a significant cash investment within the
business systern infrastructure and the respective network
portfolio would be required in 2014 and 2015 The plan
was well received and endorsed by investers and analysts
Targets confirmed In last years Annual Report for
long term incentives awarded in March 2013 {just prior
to the corporate plan review) were based upon ranges
of 95-105% of planned cashflow and CROCE targets
reflecuing the pnior business plan The new corporate plan
and the significant investrment In growth outlined therein
means that the cashflow and CROCE ranges for 2013
and beyond need to be amended The revised 2013 and
the 2014 cashflow and CRCCE targets and range ere
delaled in the annual repori on remuneration The levels of
investrment which give nse to the necessity to adjust these
targets will be clesely monitered by the Remuneration and
Audit Commitiees to ensure that they are satisfied that the
adjustment rernains valid and justified LTI grants made
prior to 2013 will not be revisited
The adjustrnent agrecd reflects the changes to the
sinvestment profile supported by analysts and shareholders
and ensures that the management group affected (circa 200
employees) are in the same position as they would have
been had the onginal plan and targets remained unchanged
The Commitiee 1s satisfied that the adjusted largets
are no less demanding than the targets agreed under the
previous corporate plan These will be reviewed and the
outcomes reported to shareholders at the time the relevant
perfarmance measures are tested in 2015/2016

REMUNERATION ELSEWHERE IN THE GROUP

The Committee takes inte account remuneration packages
available to all colleagues when considenng executive

pay As with many companies senior managerment




participate In & wider range of incentives than the majonity
of colleagues We recognise that we have 10 operate on this
basis to attract and retain high-quality managers

All colleagues are entitled to a competitive remuneration
package that includes basic pay bonus pension life
assurance cover Sharesave Buy as You Earn shares
colleague discount tax-efficient benefits such as childcare
vouchers and ihe cycle-to-work scheme a range of
voluntary benefits and paid annuz! leave

In order to imprave the accessibility understanding
and take up of these benefits we launched our colleague
benefits brand PERKS dunng the year It has prowided
improved cormmunication opportunities and helps
colleagues view and value therr total employment
remuneration in the round Wa intend to expand this
inipative dunng 2014 increasing the range of benefits on
offer and further enhancing how these are communicated
and delivered to our colleagues

Over 19 000 colleagues are acuve members of a
group pension scheme Contribution tates made by the
Group range from 1% to 20% of salary under the defined
contribution scherme whilst over 2 300 colleagues are
active members of a defined benefit scherne wheare
company contribution rates are currently 8 8% for the
BSS Group scheme and 12 1% for the Travis Perkins
scherme Other than Tony Buffin the executive directors
are not active members of a company pension scherme
primarily as a consequence of recent changes in lax
rules Instead the Company pays a gross cash allowance
of 25% of salary As this allowance 1s fully iaxed unlke
the contributions to an approved pansion scheme the
equivalent net benefit for executive directors is currently
13 25% of salary The allowance 15 not considered as
salary for the purposes of any benefits or incentive plans
Tony Buffin receves paid pension contributions and paid
allowances totalling 25% of salary

Our Sharesave scherna continues to be a great success

In 2813 around 1 750 colleagues shared close to £20m
of gains from five and three year schemes which matured
at the end of the year The gain for each employee vesting
at the mawimum level in the five year scheme was around
£50000 Following ihe invitation for the new 2013
Sharesave plan over 8 500 (2012 7500) colleagues are
actve Sharesave participants

It only remains for me to thank all the shareholders we
have connected with over the last year for ther tirme and
inpui to the main change issues we consulted them on and
which are described above | hope that by listering and
carefully considering the range of different views expressed
we have reached a mutually acceptable outcome for 2013
which our shareholders feel able ta suppart

Andrew Simon
Chairman Remuneration Comrmittee
25 February 2014

2 POLICY REPORT
Our rermuneraton policies are not unique to our directors
The same principies underpin how we reward and
compensate all our colleagues We am 1o provide base
pay to all colleagues that is market competitive We provide
all colleagues with the opportunity to share in our success
through a vanety of bonuses and incentive schemes where
return an capital employed measures abgns colleagues
from store and branch operations to the CEQ We provide
all colleagues with the opporturity 1o prepare for retrement
through participation in our pension plan and our PERKS
colleague benefit brand launched in 2013 covenng flexible
benefits employee discounts health and welfare benefits
and risk and insurance benefits is all inclusive

How our policies specifically apply to directors 1s detalled
below Subyect to shareholder appraval these policies will
apply from 28 May 2014 It 1s intended that the policies will
apply for three years from the date of approval

FUTURE POLICY TABLE
Link to Maximum Performance Rernuneration
strategy Operation patentizl value metrics Comrruttee discretion

Remuneration element - base salary

and retention
of high calibre
executives

Core element Reviewed annually as at 1 January
of total Factors influencing decision include
package = Role experience and individual
essential perfarmance

10 support = Pay awards elsewhere in the Group
recrutment » External market (benchmarked

aganst the FTSE 75-125
compartes)
» General economic environment

The Remuneration
Comnittee { The
Committee ) normally
considers the relevant
market median as the
maxmum salary level
required

In the normal course
of events the maximum
salary increase for

executive directors will be

in line with the gereral
employee increase

MNone

The Committee
retains discretion
to award salanes
of above median
levels or increases
in excess of the
general population
where necessary to
attract high calibre
candidates to
reflect performance
and recagnise
changes in roles and
responsibiliiies

The Committee
retains discretion
to review the
appropriate peer
comparator
group used for
benchmarking
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Link t0
strategy

Operation

Remuneration element - benefits

Maximum
potental value

Performance
meatrics

Rernuneration
Camrmattee discretion

Maintain
competitive
package

with range of
benefits for the
director and
their farmily

Directors are currently entitled to

» Private medical insurance

= Income protection

= Annuat leave - up to 30 days

s Fully expensed cornpany car (or cash
aliernative)

« Life insurance of up to 5 tirnes salary

Benefit levels reflect
those typically avaiable
o senior managers within
the Group and may be
subject to minor change
The maximum potential
value being the cost to
the Company to pravide
those benefits

None

Helps
execulives
provide for
retirement and
aids retention

Remuneration element - pension

No director actively participates in a
defined benefit pension scheme Up
to 25% of salary i1s provided either as
a cash allowance or as part allowance
and part pension contribution Cash
allowances are paid gross and after
stalutory deductions provide a net
benefit of 13 25% of salary

Pension allowances will not be
included in the salary figure to be used
to caleulate bonus or the level of award
under long term incentive plans

25% allowance or
contnbution

None

Rewards
achievernent
of annual
financial and
key business
strategy
abjectives
Rewards
personal
performance
measured
against key
obiectives
Deferred
elerment
encourages
longer term
shareholding
and aligrs
reward to
sharehaolder
Interests
Claw-back
and forfeiture
Provisions
discourage
EXCAassive
sk taking
and short
term outlook
ensunng ihat
axecutive and
shareholder
interests are
aligned

Rernuneration element - deferred share bonus plan

Targets are set annually In ine with the
performance metrcs (see aside)

Total bonus level s determined after
the year end based on achievernent of
targets

50% of the total bonus 1s paid in
cash within 4 months of the year end
The rernainder of the benus 1s deferred
as shares

Bonus deferred as shares is subject
to forfeiture If target share prices are
not achieved Target share prices are
based upon the average share price
duning the benus year inclusive of a
cormpounded long-terrm equity rate of
return {currently 8%)

The deferred shares are split into two
equal tranches Tranche 1 vests if after
9 year by companson to the highest
30 day average share pnce during the
penod the target share price 1s met If
the target share price I1s not met 50%
of tranche 1 s forfeited

Tranche 2 vests If after two years
by comparnson to the highest 30 day
average share price dunng the period
the target share price 1s met If the
target share pnce 1s not met at the
end of twa years 50% of tranche 2 s
forferted

In determining achievernent of target
share prices dividends paid dunng the
penod will be added

Dividend equivalents on vesting
shares may be pad

Maximum bonus
oppartunity under the
plan 1s 180% of annual
salary

Bonus measures
include
» Financial targets
relating to profitability
and return on capital
» Indwidual or group
targets pertaining
to delivery of the
business strategy
Financial targets are
based on the Graups
Annual Operating
Plan {AOP} with the
bonus threshold and
maximum bonus set
equidstantly around
AQP Threshold will
be a maxmum of 5%
below AQP
Performance below
threshold resuis in
zero bonus Bonus
earned nses frorm 0%
to 100% of maximum
bonus opporiurity for
levels of performance
between threshold and
maxmum targets.
Performance
conditions and
weightings are set out
inthe Statement of
Implernentation of the
Rernuneration Policy in
2014

The Committes
retains the
discretion to review
the weighting of
measures and to set
the performance
targets and ranges
for each metric
(including the long-
term equity rate

of return which
determines the
rate of vesting of
the deferred bonus
clement)

For financial
targets the
Committee wall
determine the
amount of bonus
which can be earned
for achievernent
of the AOP This
determination will
be based upon an
assessment of the
degree of difficulty n
achieving the AOP
taking Into account
rarket conditions
Inmprovemnent
on priar year
performance
requiregd and ather
relevant factors
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Link to
strategy

Operation

Maximum

Parfarmance

potential value  matncs

Remunsration element - parformance share plan

Incentvises
participants
to delwer key
financial tarpets
over a longer
term with
particular focus
on shareholder
return and the
generation of cash
1o fund investment
in grawth and long
terrn sustanability
Helps retain
high performing
executives.

Awards are granted
in the form of nil cost
options (or a mix of
nil cost options and
approved options at
market price) annually
o partiipants
Awards vest after
3 years subject to
achieverment of
performance measures
(see aside)
Participation may
be scaled back where
the shareholding
requirernent sel by the
Committee 1s not met
Dividend equivalents
on vesting shares may
be paid

The
maxmum
annual
award for
all executive
directors 1s
150% of
salary

Performance measures are
« EPS Growth
« Aggregate cash-flow
» Relawve TSR
Vesting critena for aggregate cash flow 1s set
against a range based on threshold and maximum
performance levels deterrrined by the Groups
projections for the next 3 years

TSR awards are measured aganst an
appropriate peer group

EPS growth targets are sel &5 a % growth range
(in addition te RP!) over 3 years

Performance below threshold levels resulls in
zero vesting At threshold the armount of the award
vesting nses from 30% to 100% of maxmum
bonus opportuniyy for levels of performance
between threshold and maximum targets

Perfarmance conditions and weightings are set
out In the Statement of Implementation of the
Remuneration Policy in 2014

Remuneration
Commuittee discretion

The Committee
relains discretion
to review the
weighting applied
to measures and
10 set the target
ranges for each
rmeasure

In addition the
Committee will
review and select
the appropriate
comparator group
for the TSR or
similar measures

Remuneration elem

Encourages
a mutual
commitment
whereby
participants
buldup a
shareholding in
the Cornnany and
are Incentvised
to deliver key
financial targets
over a longer term
Helps retain high
callbre executives

Farticipants are invited
10 participate annually

Each participant buys
shares from theair own
resources

A matching share
award n the farm of nil
cost options 1S made to
each partgipant which
vests after 3 years
subject 1o achievernent
of performance target

Dmdend equivalents
on vesting shares may
be paid

ent - shara matching scheme

Participants
rnay Invest
up to 50%
of therr post
tax salary
Maximum
matching 1s
21 (100%
of salary)

Performance targel 1s Cash Return on Capital
Employed (CROCE)

Vesting range 1s based on threshold and
maxirurm performance levels based upon the
Cornpanys business plan and projections for the
next 3 years

Performance below the threshold results in zero
vesting At threshold the armount of the award
vesting nses frorn 30% to 100% of maximum
bonus opportunity for levels of perforrance
between threshold and maxirmum targets

Performance condihons are set out in the
Staterment of Implementation of the Remuneration
Policy i 2014

The Commuittee
retains discretion
to review the
welighting appled
to measures and
to set the target
ranges for each
measure

A one-off award
made following
consultation
with principal
shareholders in
2009

Structured as a nil cost
share aption The award
vests In equal tranches
after completron of years
four fove and s the first
year being 2009

The award
was made
over
47612
shares

Remuneration element - special award for John Carter

The performance conditions which have

been achieved were linked to procurement
improverment imtialives agreed annually by the
Remuneraiion Commitiee together wath delvery of
John Carters objectives as part of Trawis Perkins
strategic plan

A one-off award
made following
consultation
with pringipal
shareholders in
2013 reflecting
compensation
forfeited on
appointment o
Travis Perkins

Remuneration element - co-investment special

Investrment of own funds
10 acquire £500000 of
Comparwy shares

A matching share
award in the form of nil
cost options 15 made
half vesting 12 months
from grant half vesting
24 months from grant

The award
was made
over
65804 ca
Irwestment
shares

| award for Tony Buffin

Fulflment of specific functional cbjectives
as defined by the CEO and assessed by the
Rernuneration Committee

Travis Perkins©@
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Link to Maximum Performance Remuneration
strategy Operation potential value metrics Commuttee discretion
Remuneration element - all employee share plans

Share plans avalable | HMRC SAYE and BAYE plans In lne with | None -

to all employees 1o HMRC

encourage wider and all

share ownership colleague

and engagement plan limits.

armongst colleagues

Remunaration elemant - shareholding requirements

Aligns the interests Farmal requirernent (not voluntary guidelines) applies - Executive The Committee
of executives and to directors and senior executives Participation in long directors are retains discretion
shareholders term incentives may be scaled back or withheld if the required to hold | to increase

requirements are not met or maintained

will be considered

For the purposes of assessing compliance with the
shareholding requirernent vested but unexercised awards within 5 years

shares valued at | shareholding
two times salary | requirements

In considering approprate performance metrics the
Committee seeks to incentivise and reinfarce delivery of the
Companys strategic abjectives achieving a balance between
delivering annual return to shareholders and ensuring
sustainable long term profitability and growth Measures
will therefore reflect a balance of direct shareholder value
such as TSR and those which reflect appropriate investment
strategies for exarnple CROCE

The Committee calibrates these targets by due reference
to general and bespoke market intellgence lead indicators
and ather Indicators of the economic environment to ensure
targets represent relative as well as absolute achieverment

DISCRETION
The Committee has discretion in several areas of policy
as sat out in this report The Cormmuttee may also exercise
operational and adrministrative discretions under relevant
plan rules approved by shareholders as set out 1 those
rules In addition the Committee has the discretion to
amend policy with regard to minor or administratve
matters where it would e m the opinion of the Committee
disproportionate to seek or await shareholder approval

The Commuttee retains discretion in exceptional
circumstances ta change performance measures and
targets and the weightings attached to performance
measures part-way through a performance year If there
15 a significant and matenal event which causes the
Comrmittee to believe the onginal measures weightings
and targets are no longer appropriate Any exeraise of
this discration will be explained in full to shareholders
Discretion may also be exeraised in cases where the
Cornmittee believe that tha outcome 1s not a farr and
accurate reflection of business performance

It 1s the Committees intention that cornmitments made
in line with its pohcies prior to the date of the 2014 AGM
will be honoured even if satisfaction of such commitrents
15 made post the AGM and may be inconsistent wath the
above polices Such commitments include but are not
limited to
» Awards under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan
« Awards under the Perfarmance Share Plan
« Awards under the Share Matching Plan
Such eommitrments remain subject to the share plan rules
and terms and condiions under which they were granted
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' FEES

Non-executive directars fees are positoned in line with the
same peer comparator group used for executive directors
at median level The following fees were reviewed in 2013
and notwithstanding peer group compansan wall narmally
be reviewed an an annual basis in line with inflation and
general movernent of pay within the Company

Fee type Fee
Chairman £270000
Basic fee for ather non-executive directors £35000
Charr of Audit Committee £12000
Charr of Remuneration Commitiae £12000
Charr of Health & Safety Commitiee £4000
Senior Independent Director £10000

A minimum of 25% of non executive director fees are paid
in shares Non executive directors do not recenve any ather
benefits {other than a staff discount card for purchasing
preducts) and are not eligible to join a company pension
scheme No compensation 1 payable on termination of
therr employment which may be without notice from the
Company They cannot participate in any of the Cormpanys
share plans

RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION
It 1s our policy to recruit the best candidate possible for any
executive board poasition We seek o avoid paying more
than necessary to secure the candidate and will have regard
to guidelines and shareholder sentiment when formulating
the remuneration package

Generelly we structure salary ncentives and benefits for
candidates in line with the above remuneration policy and
accordingly participation in short and long term incentives
will be on the same basis as exsting directors In all cases we
commit te providing shareholders with umely disclosure of
the terms of any new executive hires including the approach
laken to determine a far level of compensation The table on
the next page outlines our normat recruitment policy




Base salary and benefits
The pay of any new recruit would be assessed followang
the principles set out In the remuneration policy table

Pension

The appointee will be able 1o receive aither a contnbution
10 a personal pension scheme or cash allowance in lieu
of pension benefits in lne with the Company's policy as
set out In the remuneration policy table

Annual bonus

The appointee will be ehigible to participate in

the Deferred Share Bonus Plan as set out in the
rernuneration policy table Awards may be granted up ta
the maxmum opporiunity allowatle in the remuneration
policy table at the Rermuneration Committees discretion

Long-term incentives

The appointee will be eligible to participate in the
Companys 2013 LongTerm Incentive Plans (PSP

and SMS) as set out 1 the rermuneration policy table
Awards may be granted up te the maximum apporiunity
allowable under scheme rules at the Rermunerahon
Committees discretion

Sign-on payments

The Groups policy 15 not to pravide sign-on payments
However in exceptional cases payments to an appointee
may be made when the Committee deem it to be in the
best interests of the Company and shareholders In such
exceplional aircumstances the business reason will be
explained to shareholders at the tme of appaniment
and put to shareholders at the next AGM Where
required a paymeni can be made in cash or shares and
may be subject to performance conditions and/ar a
holding penod Any sign on payment will be irmited 10 a
value equal to twice annual salary

Share buy-outs / replacernent awards
The Groups policy 1s not to provide buy out as a matler
of course However should the Commuittee determine
that the indwidual crcumstances of recruitment
stified the provision of a buyout the value of any
incentives that will be forfeited on cessation of a
directors previous employment will be calculated taking
into accaunt the following
» The praportton of the performance penod completed
on the date of the directors cessation of ernployrnent
= The performance condriions attached to the vesting
of these incentives and the kelihood of them being
satsfied
= Any other terms and conditons hawving a matenal
effect on ther value (lapsed value)
The Commuitee may then grant up to the equivalent
value as the lapsed value where possible under the
Companys incentve plans. To the extent that it was
not possible or practical to provide the buyout wathin
the terms of the Cormpanys exsting incentive plans a
bespoke arrangernent would be used

Relocation

Where we require a candidate to relocate in order
1o take up an executive posttion or take up changed
responsibilities we will normally resmburse the
reasonable costs of the relocation

Where an internal candidate 1s prormoted to an executive
posiion we will hanour any contractual commitments made
through their employment pnor to the promotion

Recruitment remuneration for non executive directors
would be assessed following the principles set out In the
palicy for non executive director fees

SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive diractors has a service contraci the date
of which 15 shown below which will be avallable for inspection
at the Annual General Meeting or at the Companys registered
office These contracts prowde for 6 months notice from the
Directors and 12 months notice from the Company They do
not specify any particular level of compensation (i the event
of termination or change of control

+ John Carter - 1 January 2014

« Tony Buffin - 8 Apnit 2013

Non-executive directars do not have a service contract but
each has received a letler of appointment which will be
avalable for inspectian at the AGM or atine Cormpanys
registered office These appointments expire on the
following dates

Director Expiry of appointment [etter
Ruth Anderson Octaber 2014

John Caleman February 2014
Christopher Rogers August 2016

Andrew Simon February 2015

Raobert Walker Sepiernber 2015

No compensation 1s payable on termination of the
employment of non-executive directors which may be with
or without notice

POLICY ON PAYMENT FOR DIRECTORS
LEAVING EMPLOYMENT
Contractual natice peniods for directors are normally set at
& months notice from the director and 12 months notice
from the Company and the Carmpany would narmally
honcur contractual commitments in the event of the
termination of a director Notwithstanding this approach itis
company policy ta seek to mirimise lability in the event of
any early termination of an executive director s contract

We classify terminations of employment arising from
death «l health disability injury retrerment with compary
agreement redundancy or the transfer from the Group of
the ernploying entity as good leaver reasons In addition the
Comrnittee retains discretion under incentive plan rules 1o
determine good leaver status In the event such discretion
15 exercised for example, recognising significant long term
coninbution to achievernent of strategic objectives a full
explanation will be provided to shareholders

Leaver reason may impact the treatment of the varous
remuneration elements as follows
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Remuneration element  Good leaver reason

Other leaver reason

Salary Ceases on cessation of employment (salary may be paidin leu of  Ceases on cessation of employment (salary

notice) unless a pre-exsting contractual term applies

may be paid in leu of notice) unless a
pre existing contractual term applies

Bonus including
Deferred Share
Bonus Plan®

Unpaid bonus from the peniod prior to cessation wall be pard n full  All unpaid bonus payrents lapse
A pro-rata bonus may be paid subject to narmal performance
cenditons for the penod in which cessation occurs

Deferred bonus payments also lapse

Bonus earned and deferred from 2013 onwards will vest at the

norrmal vesting date on a pro-rata basis

Bonus earned and deferred prior 10 2013 will vest in full at

cessation
Benafits Prowvision or accrual of benefits will cease on cessauon of Prowision or accrual of benefits will cease
employment on cessation of employment
PSP Narmal vesting on a pro-rata basis {full vesting in the event of the  Participation lapses at cessation of
il health inury disability or death of the executive) employment
SMS' Vests on & pro-rata basis in year of leaving based on performance  Participation lapses at cessation of
In that penod employment

*eaver vesting provisions are fully defined in the appropriate plan documents

Exceptional circumstances may anse where the Commuttee
considers It appropriate to exercise giscretion in relation
to the terms afforded to departing directors and allow for
pro-rata vesting to be calculatad on a basis other than the
directors leaving date but normal perforrmance conditions
will always apply (other than for the events desenbed in the
table above) and the application of discretion will not be
used to bring forward vesting.

The Commuittee reserves the nght to make additional
payments where such payments are made in good faith
in discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of
damages for breach of such an obligation) or by way of
setilernent ar compromise of any claim ansing In connection
with the termination of a directors office or employment

In reporting paymenis to leaving or past directors we
will not normally report payments below a de minimis level
of £5000

lllustration of the application of the rernuneration policy

Fixed remuneration includes basie salary pension provision and ather benefits
Annual variable remuneration includes annual bonus potential under the
Deferred Share Borws Plan and includes that part of the banus which s
deferred as shares and may be subject to Malus but not subject to further

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

performance targets Long terrn vaneble remuneration includes potential
awards under the Performance Share Plan and Share Matching Scherre

as well as that part of the bonus whech 1s defered as shares and subject to
performance testing Performance in line with expectations assumes, for
annJal varable rermunera wn perforrmance in bne wath annual operating plan
For long term vanable remuneration it assumes mid-range performance
relative to the targets set for each plan Maximurm performance means
performance at ar y excess of mawrmum performance targets

RELATIONSHIP TO COLLEAGUE PAY
Pay levels for employees at all levels across the Group are
determined in relation to a number of factors including
economic conditions, affordability colleague feedback and
market practice Market practice s deterrmined by reference
to relevant market benchrark data and for all employees
we benchmark at market median for base salary Recent
executive salary increases have mirrored those increases
applied to our colleagues as a whole

We do not directly consult with ermplayees when
formulating directors remuneration palicy however we are
kept informed of general remuneration feedback from
across the Group and in particular output from employee
opnion surveys and consultation groups

SHAREHOLDER FEEDBACK

We consult widely and in detail with shareholders on our

rernuneration policy and its execution We welcome therr

constructive feedback and use this to effectively shape our

approach During 2013 we consulted wadely and actively on

the following 1ssues

» The appropriate salary on appointment of the new Chief
Executive Officer

= Review of the Charman of the Boards annual fee

= The one-off share matching award made to the newdy
appointed Chief Financial Officer in recognision of forfeited
cash incentives relating to his previous emplayrnent

The 2012 remuneration report recerved a 77 1% vote in

support at the AGM




AUDITED INFORMATION

3 ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Single total figure of remuneration

Salary  Salary Benefits Benefits Bonus  Bonus LT LTl Pension Pension Other  Other Total Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 201%° 2012 2013 2012 2013° 2012 2013 2012
£000 €000 EOD0O EOQOO €000 €000 E£000 €£000 £000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Geoff
Coaper! 657 652 1 1 375 211 1795 2478 165 164 - - 2993 3506
John
Carter 504 500 33 34 239 135 1418 1604 126 125 17 - 2337 2398
Paut
Harnpden
Srmuth? 294 392 14 18 222 106 1185 1620 74 898 21 - 1810 2234
Tony
Buffin® 365 - 16 - 177 - - - g1 - - - 649 -
Ruth
Anderson 59 50 - - - - - - - - - - 59 50
Chnis
Bunker 44 67 - - - - - - - - - - 44 67
John
Coleman 61 50 - - - - . - - - - - 61 50
Philp
Jansen® 29 50 - - - - . - - - - - 29 50
Chnstopher
Rogers® 18 - - - - - . - - - - - 18 -
Andrew
Simon 69 64 - - - - - - - - - - 69 64
Robert
Walker 235 200 - - - - - - - - - - 235 200
Total 2335 2025 64 53 1013 452 4388 5702 456 387 38 - 8304 8619

1 Geoff Cooper also receved and retainad, in respect of his nan-exacutive
charmanship of Dunelm ple £110000 (2012 £100000) and £66 667
n respect of his non-executive diractorshup of Bourne Lasure Holdwngs Lid

2 Paul Hampden Smith stood down as Finance Director on 28 February
2013 remamning as a paid employee of the Company unul 30 Sep.ember
2013 Paul Hampden Srmuth also receved and retained, £30 507 m
respect of non-executrve drectarship of Pendragon ple and £21 458 for 5
months at Bellway plc.

* Tory Buffin appointed CFC on 8 Aprl 2013
* Chris Bunker retired fram the Board on 30 Septernber 2013
® Phiip Jansen retred from the Board 23 May 2013

* Chnstopher Rogers appontad non-executve diector rom 1 Septermber
2013

? Benefuts for 2013 for John Carter Paul Hampden Smith and Tony Buffin
nclude private medica' nsurance and prossion of company car or car
allowance For Geoff Cooper benefits include prvate medical insurance

8 For Geoff Cooper John Carter ang Tony Buffin 2013 banus payment
reflects half of the bonus earmed The remaming half of the borus s
deferred under the Deferred Share Banus Plan (as detaled in the future
policy table) and will be iIncluded on vesting Borws payments made in
respect of the 207 3 financial year reflected an achievernent of

a 76% achievernent of EPS maxirmum larget (achieved 1036p plan
101p maxamum 108p)  weghted at 50% of bonus

b 33% achievement of ROCE maximum target {achieved 11 8% plan
12%,. masmum 12 8%)  weghted at 30% of borus

c 75% achievernent of Indnadual targets set aga nst group strategic
objectves (including measures retating to people and process capability
market competitveness, business guality growth potential and financial
performance) reviewed and assessed by the Remuneration Commuttee
[20% wesghung) Any greater disclosure of stratepc tracker abjectives
would be commercially sensitve and could provide advantage to our
COMPeUtoNns

2 L71Ps vesting 11 201 3 were under the Perfarmance Share Plan (PSP) Share
Matching Scherne [SMS) and Sharesave (SAYE)

a There were three vestng targets under the PSP

1 Aggregate Cash Flow {40% waighting] - for this element 1o vest in
full aggregate cash flow had to exceed €632m The outcome over
the three years was £7 18m so this element vested in full

u Total Shareholder Return (40% weight ng) - duning the three year
penod the increase n share price 1 combination with the dmdends
paud, resuited in Trams Perkans bang ranked 12 4th of the companies
nthe FTSE 350 just nside the median quartile which resulted in a
12 4% vesting

w Eamings per Share {20% weighting) 1his 15 an absolute targst
measure (rather than relative to AOP) Over the 3 year penod EPS
growth exceeded the minimum target of RPI plus 3% compounded by
39% which was sufficent for an B 3% vesting The maamum target
was RPI plus 10% compounded

b For the connvestment share matching plan the performance target was
average CROCE for 2010 2011 and 2012 which needed to be over

869% for full vesting The average achieved was 9 28%

¢ Awards vesting were as follows.

1 For Geofi Cooper 56 1G9 shares vested under the PSP 71 853
shares under the SMS and 3670 shares under SAYE

n For John Carter 32 730 shares vested under the PSP 50296 shares
under the SMS, 3 670 shares under SAYE and 15 §70 shares under
the terms of his special share award

m For Paul Hampden-Smith 32 7 30 shares vested under the PSP
50 296 shares under the 3M5 and 3670 shares under SAYE

d Veshing LTIPS also includes, where relevani de minimis vesting of awards
under the a'l employee Sharesave plan

“0ther paymenis includes dradend equwvalen.s ansing on exercise of LTIP
awards which vested in prior years for John Carter and Paul Hampden
Srrud For 2013 onwards dwdend equivalents are ncluded in the values
for vesting LTIPS
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DIRECTORS’ PENSION ENTITLEMENTS
The Companys defined benefit schemes are closed to new members Geoff Cooper ceased accrual on 5 Apnil 2006 but
benefits up to that date retan a link to pensionable salary John Carter ceased accnval on 31 Becernber 2010 and Paul
Hampden Srmith ceased accrual on 31 March 2011 The value of the pension under the dafined benefit scherme is calculated
using the HMRC Method

A gross cash allowance of 25% of salary was paid 10 Geoff Cooper John Carter and Paul Hampden Srmith in lieu of
continved accrual Tony Buffin has receved 25% of salary paid as a mix of pension contnbutions to the defined contribution
scherme and a cash allowance

Geoff Caoper John Carter Paul Hampden Smith ~ Tony Buffin
£000 £000 £000 £000
Accrued DB pension at 31 December 2013
including revaluation f applicable 5 271 89 N/A
Normal retirernent age 60 years 60 years 60 years 65 years
Addional value of pension on early retirement O 0 0 N/A
Pension value in the year fram DB scheme
(HMRC Method) 1 N/A N/A N/A
Pensian value in the year from company
contributions 1o DC scheme N/A N/A N/A 37
Pension value in year from cash allowance 164 126 74 54
Total pension benefit accrued n 2013 165 126 74 a1

SHARE INTERESTS AWARDED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
Perfarrnance share plan

Type of Award Basis Face value Vesting penod

Geoff Cooper Performance shares 150% of salary £978 288 Three years
John Carter Performance shares 150% of salary £749990C Three years
Tony Buffin Performance shares 150% of salary £749991 Three years
Measure Weighting  Target detail Vesting range
EPS Growth AD% RPk 9 2 7% over the vesting penod 30% Vests

RPl+ 33 1% over ihe vesting penod 100% Vests

Pro rata vesting between these poinis
Aggregate Cash 40% £664m - £734m’ No Vesting below lower targel
Flow over three years 30% vests at lower target
up o 2016 Full vesting at upper target

Pro rata vesting between these points

Company TSR 20% Upper half {top 50%) 30% Vests
relative to FTSE 50- Upper quartile (top 25%) 100% Vests
150 Index Pro rata vesting between these points

1 The aggregate cash flow target range for the 2013 PSP grant has been adjusted from £767m  £847m to £664m  £734m This reflects the new corporate plan
and the significant mvestment i growth outlined therein, as deta led in the forward looking section ot the Chairman of the Remwneraton Comnmillee staternent All
other plan terms and conditions rermain unchanged

Share matching plan

Type of award Basis Face value
Geoff Cooper Matching shares up to 2 1 matching of shares purchased £647633
John Carter Matching shares up to 2 1 matching of shares purchased £486474
Measure Weighting Target detail Matching range
Cash Return on Capital 061 matching at lower target
Employed (CROCE} 100% 751%-851%" 21 matching at upper target

Pro-rata matching between these points

' The CROCE target range for the 2013 SMS grant has been adjusted from 864% 964% to 751% - B51% This reflects the new corpora.e plan, and the
significant irvestment in grasth outlined therein as detailed in the forward looking section of the Chaman of the Remuneration Comimittee staternent All other plan
terms and condiiens rerman unchanged
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Deferred share bonus plan
Duning 2013 a quarter of the banuses eamed n 2012 were 1ssued as deferred shares as follows

Type of award Basis Face value
Geoff Cooper Shares 25% of 2012 borus £52820
John Carter Shares 25% of 2012 borus £33748

Shares vest three years from grant subject to normal leaver provisions

Specizl share matching award

In June 2013 n connecion with his appontment Tory Buffin was granted an award 1o acgure 65 804 shares Pror (o the
grant Tony Buffin pledged to acquire and hold shares to the value of £500000 by investing his own funds Half of the award
will vest 12 months after grant and the remaining half 24 months after the date of grant 1n both cases vesiing 1s subject 1o the
maintenance of the invesiment Tony Buffin has made as well as the fulfilment of speaific funcucnal objectives set by the CEO
and assessed by the Remuneration Committee

Sharesave scheme
John Carter also tock up maxmurm opportunity under the all employee Sharesave (SAYE) plan

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS

Paul Hampden Smuth stepped down as director in 28 February 2013 but continued to be pad while he supported the new
Group Chief Financial Officer Tony Buffin up until his retirement on 30 Septernber 2013 The full extent of his remuneration
has been reported in the above Single Total Figure of Remuneration iable

PAYMENTS FOR LEAVING DIRECTORS
No payments for loss of office were made dunng 2013

Discretion was exercised in relation 1o the vesting of Performance Share Plan grants made to Paul Hampden Smith in 20174
(56 328 shares the amount to vest 1s subject to normal perfermance conditions and based on current forecasts between
30% - 40% may vesl) and 2012 {54 157 shares the amount vesung 15 subrect to normal performance conditions and based
on current forecasts between 30%-40% may vest) Full performance cnitena will apply however vesting will not be adjusted in
relation to service for the plan years In applying its discretion the Committee took into account not only that
Paul Hampden Smith agreed to continue In employment whilst he ensured a smooeth and complete handover to his successor
when a commencement date had not been confirrmed at the trne but also that he had given outstanding service to the
Cornpany over twenty years and had been part of the management team that had overseen an increase \n EPS from 21 4pin
1994 to 1036p n 2013 through arganic growth and acquisitions.

Duning the year the Company announced the retirerment of Geoff Cooper as CEO of the Group and as a director of the
Board from 6 March 2014 with the appointment of John Carter as his successor Geoff Cooper will remain in the Companys
employment until & March 2015 as a senior management adwviser to the new managernent team The transihon arrangerments
are such that our normal policy for good leavers will apply to Geoff Cooper and as such no discretion was appled by the
Commitiee Full details will be formally reported in the 2014 remuneration report

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AND SHARE INTERESTS

Formal shareholding requiremenis (not voluntary guidelines) apply to executive directors and senior executives Participation in

long-term incentives may be scaled back or withheld if the requirernents are not met or mairtained Executive directars are required

to hold shares valued at two times salary within 5 years Both Geoff Cooper and John Carter meet the requirernent Tony Buffin is in

the first year of the five years aliowed to build up the shareholding and currently meets appraxmately 50% of the requirement
Directors shareholding and share interests as at 31 December 2013 was as follows

Executive Beneficial Conditional Unconditional Vested but Total Interests Exercised

director owner shares granted shares granted unexercised dunng 2013
under LTI Plans'? under LTI Plans options

Geoff Cooper 812006 429 462 - 465461 976129 19862

John Carter 168382 319205 - 10487 498074 261452

Tony Buffin 33113 118306 - - 151419 -

! Includes awards made under Deferred Share Bonus Plan, Performance Share Plan, Share Matching Scheme and Sharesave (SAYE)
2 Vasting of shares subject to plan performance conditions

Non-executive director Shareholding
Ruth Anderson 1231

John Coleman 2669
Chnistopher Rogers 111

Andrew Simon 3653
Robert Walker 846456
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HISTORIC CEO PAY
@ 2009

2010 2011 2012 2013
Single figure rernuneration (£ 000) £1412 £1423 £1338 £3506 £2993
Annuat bonus payout (% of maxmum) 100% 100% 759% 270% 629%
Vesting of share options (% of maximum) 0% - - -
Vesting of Performance Share Plan (% of maximum) - 0% 0% 800% 60 7%
Vesting of Share Matching Scherne (% of maximum) 0% 0% 51% 100% 100%

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Percentage change

in salary earned

{2013 full year compared
io 2012 full year)

CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR UNDERTAKING THE ROLE OF CEO

Percentage change in

bonus apportunity earned
{2013 full year forecast
compared to 2012 full year)

Percentage change in
taxable benefits receved
(2013 full year compared
to 2012 full year)

CEO 08%
Comparative employee group* 13%

359%

179%

0%
46%"

For all employees in the comparative group the iIncrease was 1 1%

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

reporting penods

PERFORMANCE GRAPH AND TABLE
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* Comparative group 1s all colleagues wathun the Traws Perlans Merchantng Dnsion Thes drasion 15 the largest deasion with i the Group covers roles at all levets of
the orgarisation and has wide geographic coverage within the UK and consequently prowides a broad and diverse basis for companson Comparative group data s
provided on a per capita basis ** Average based on ke for lke campanson {ie colieagues employed and in recept of taxable benefits in both penods)

Capital expenditure 1s shown for companson as an indicator af nvestment by the Company in future growth It includes
funds mvested in the purchase of praperty plant and equipment Corporation tax 1s included as an indicator of the wider
societal contnibution facilitated by the Companys operations and 1s the actual amount of corporation tax paid in the relevant

For comparative purpases the FTSE 100 index has been selected as this 1s the index of which the Company 1s a member




STATEMENT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2014
In 2014 the Comparty will mplernent the remuneration policy outlined above in the future policy table using the following

measures weightings ang targets.

Indraidual maximum
Plan oppartunity 1n 2014

Measures and
weighting

Target

Deferred Share  CEO - 180%
Bonus Plan CFO-150%

« EPS 50%

+ LAROCE 30%

» Business strategy
20%

Targets are determined in line with the Annual
Operating Plan for 2014

Thresholds for EPS and LARQCE are set at 95% of
AQP

Performance below threshold results in zera bonus
Bonus earned nses from 0% to 100% of maximum
bonus apportunity for levels of performance between
threshotd and maximurn iargets (105% of AOP)

For achieverment of AOP for these measures 50% of
bonus patential can be earmed?

Performance CEO - 150%
Share Plan CFO - 150%

« EPS Growth -
40%

= Agpregate Cash-
flow - 40%

* Relative TSR -
20%

EPS - threshald of 3% pa in addition to RPI over 3 years
with full vesting at 10% pius RPI

The Aggregate Cash flow range s £802m - £887m
Relative TSR - relative position n FTSE 50 - 150
= Threshold 1s median relative position
* Mawimum 1s upper quartile relative posiiion
For each target performance below threshold levels
results in zero vesting Al threshold the amount of the
award vesting nses from 30% to 100% of maxmum
bonus opporturity for levels of performance between
threshold and maxmum targets

Share Matching 21 matching of amaount

Scheme invested by the executive
from therr own resources

The amount invested
being lmited to 50% of
post tax annual salary

Performance target
15 Cash Return on
Capitat Employed
(CROCE)

CROCE range s 837% - 937%

Performance below threshold levels results in zero
vesting At threshold the amount of the award vesting
rises from 30% to 100% of maxmum bonus opportunity
for levels of performance between threshold and
maximurn targets

! Specfic targels are commercialty sensitve and disclosure of such may prowde an enfar advantage o the Companys competitors However targets, and the
corresponding level of vesiing or bonus eamed wil be disclosed retrospectively in the relevant reporting period

In relation to salares and fees

Salary / fee adjustment

Executive directors Following wide consultation with shareholders John Carter s salary was increased to
£660000 pa with effect from 1 January 2014 on his appaintment to the role of CEQ
(2013 - £507 500 pa post deferred salary increase effective 1 July 2013)

Tory Buffins salary was increased 1o £510000 pa with effect from 1 January 2014
(2013 - £500 000 pa) nline with the general 2% increase awarded to colleagues

Non-executve directors Non-executive directors fees were reviewed in 2013 having last been reviewed in 2010
Following shareholder consultation fees were increased to

Charman - £270000 pa (2013 £200000 pa)
Non-executive director basic fee - £55000 pa (2013 £50000 pa)

Senor Independent Director - £10000 pa (2013 £7 000 pa)

« Charrs of Audit and Remuneration Committees - £12 000 pa (2013 £10000 pa)

Charr of Heslth & Safety Commiitee - £4 000 pa (2013 £4 000 pa)
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CONSIDERATION B8Y THE DIRECTORS OF MATTERS RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The Remuneration Committee 1s responsible for the executive remuneration policy and the remuneration of executives within
the Cornpany It determines all aspects of the remuneration of executive directors and reviews with the Chief Executive the
rermuneration of other senior executives It also oversees the administration of the Companys share plans The Commiitees
terms of reference are avalable on the Company website or from the Company Secretary

n 2013 the Remuneration Commuttee met four tirmes The Cornmittee discussed amongst other iterns the following
matters

Month Key issues considered

February Bonuses
« Review of achievernent against 20712 targets
« Rewised Deferred Share Bonus Plan
LTIP Awards
+ Review of performance conditions and grants for 2013
» Review of awards vesting n 2013
Review of executive shareholding requirement

June Deferred salary and fee review
Leaving arrangements for retirng CEO
Appaintment compensation for CEQ

October Company pay review 2014
Initial review of 2013 remuneration report format
Adyustrnent of 2013 LTIP awards following significant investment changes in the new corporate plan

Decarnber Initia! review of Executive Committes performance against strategic objectives
Approach to 2013 remuneration report
Discussion on targets for 2014 plans
Extension of the new annual bonus plan to other senior managers

During the year the Committee comprised Andrew Simon {Chairman) Chns Bunker John Celeman Philip Jansen and Robert
Walker all of whom are independent nan executive drectors PWC LLP was appainted by the Committee to provide it with
aowvice dunng the year on executive remuneration PWC were selected on the basis of thewr track record of providing robust
salient and independent advice in matters pertaining to executive remuneration PWC 18 a member of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and atirdes by 1ts code Fees are determined on 2 ime and materials basis at prevailing market rates
(£14569 1 2013)

PWC provide additional services to the Company in relation to remuneratien including support in developing and
implementing remuneration proposals compensation benchmarking and other 1ax and consulting services

In addition Geaff Cooper (CEQ) Tony Buffin (Chief Financiat Officer) Andrew Pike (Company Secretary) Carol Kavanagh
(Group Human Resources Director) Stelta Girvin (Deputy Company Secretary) and Paul Nelson (Group Head of Reward) have
assisted the Commuittee in iis work, but never in respect of their own remuneratian

SHAREHOLDER VOTING
At the last AGM the following resolutions in relation to remuneration were out by the Cormpany

Resolution Votes for % For Votes against % Agamst  Votes withheld % Withheld

Approval of the Annual
Remuneration Report 132598424 771% 35232528  205% 4130032 24%

To approve 1he replacement

Deferred Share Bonus Plan and to

authorise directors to make

modifications to the Plan 151206378 880% 20702242 120% 52363 00%

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Andrew Simon
Charman Remuneration Comrmittee
25 February 2014
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NOMINATIONS

COMMITTEE REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Dear Fellow Shareholder
tn intraducing my report for the financial year ending
2013 | thought it would be worthwhile highlighting a
couple of points
Firstly successfully managing Chief Executive succession
is probably the mast important task facing any nominations
committee or board of directors At Travis Perking we have
sought to manage this 1ssue meticulously over the past two
years Qur overrnding objective has been to mitigate any
wwestar uncertanty surrounding this wmpartant decsion To
achieve this we have
» Agreed the Companys long terrn strategy and the
corresponding need far internal or external succession
« Debated and agreed the balance of skills required
between CEQ and CFO
« Announced the appointment of Tony Buffin as CFO
fallowing Paul Hampden Smith's decision to retire
« Established a comprehensive development programme
for John Carter involving each non-executive and
external faclitation
« Announced Geoff Coopers retirement in July 2013 to
allow for orderly succassion
« Enabled John to announce his senior executive tear in
Septerber 2013 and finally
Held a Capital Markets day presentation of future Group
strategy 1n December 2013
Throughout these two years we have scught to keep
our investors fully nformed of the process both to seek
feedback and allay any concerns
Secondly and as we look ahead the key task of the
Nominations Cornmiitee for 2014 will be to plan for the
rotaticn of two non-executives John Coleman in 2014 and
Andrew Siman in 2015 Bath have been key members of
8 Board that has served the Company so well
In seeking to plan for ther succession we are very
clear about the skills and expenence required operating
as we do in fast moving, highly competitve trading and
retaling businesses We believe our Board 1s best served
by indwiduals who have demonstrated a track record of
success In leading such businesses either as CEOs or CFOs
Managing this succession process will be a key challenge
aver the next two years and we plan as before to keep our
shareholders fully nformed of the process

ROLE
Fhe Commuitees principal responsibility 1s to ensure that
the Board compnises individuals with the maost appropnate
balance of expenience skills and knowledge to help develop
and support the Cormpany strategy In arder to achieve
this the Cornrmittee requires procedures to be in place that
enable the nornination selection and succession of the
most capable directors and senior executives

The Committee 1s also responsible for considering and
making recommendations ta the Board on succession
planning far drrectors and other senior executives In thes
sensa the Nominations Commitiee provides a broader role

The Nerminatons Committee comprnises all the

non-executive directors and 1s chaired by me other than
when it 15 dealing with rmatters in relation to me or the
charmanship of the Caompany The Chief Executive Chief
Financial Officer and Human Resources Director are invited
1o attend when approprnate

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
A ngorous selection process precedes the appantment of
all directors by the Board and their recommendation by the
Nominations Committes

The perfarmance of each director the Baard and each
sub-commuttee 1s reviewed annually as pari of the board
evaluation process and | am pleased to confirrn that the
Board recommends the election and re-election of all
directors who are sianding for election and re-election at our
20714 AGM

ACTIVITIES IN 2013

The Cormmittee operates under formal terms of reference
and met four times during the year The principal matters
discussed at the meetings were

» Suceession planning for the Board and senior executives
« The ranagement changes following the decisions by
Paul Hampden Smuth to retire and leave the business in
2013 and Geoff Cooper 10 step down as Group Chief
Executive and retire on his 60th birthday 6 March 2014
The search process and the appontrment of Group Chief
Executive Officer

Considenng and making recormmendations to the

Board for the appointment of two new directors and for
changes to the membership of the Committees

+ The on-boarding process for Tany Buffin on his
cormmencement as Group Chief Financial Officer
Exarnining the operations of the Comrmittee and
reviewing its terms of reference

.

BOARD SUCCESSICON
As mentioned in my introductory note (above) the two
key tasks facing the Comrittee during 2013 were to
successfully manage the succession process and the
appontment of a new non executive director following
the resignation and retirement of Philip Jansen and Chnis
Bunker respectively In both cases and after considenng
alternatives the Cornmitiee appointed Russell Reynolds
as external iIndependent search consultants | confirm
that Russell Reynolds have no other relationshup with the
Company and have signed up to the voluntary code of
conduct covering board appointments following the
Dawvis Review

John Carter as Deputy Chief Executive was the
leading interna\ candidate 1o succeed Geofi Cooper
as Group Chief Executive After considening the needs
of the Cormpanys five year strategy extensive external
benchmarking and a structured development programme
specifically designed for John Carter the Commuttee
decided to recommend Johns appaintment as Group Chief
Executive in July 2013
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NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE REPORT

John Carters appointment as Group Chief Executive was
annaunced in July 2013 In order to assist with the smooth
transition following hus retirement and stepping down as
a directar an & March 2014 Geoff Caoper agreed to
continue as an adwisor to John Carter on Toolstation Europe
for a further 12 month period

The Caommittee also reviewed and approved changes to
John Carters future senior management team that were
announced internally in Septermber 2013

As menticned above the search for a new non executive
drrector was also conducted by Russell Reynolds. The brief
was 10 attract a proven successiul candidate wath broad
experience as a CFO and if possible as a general manager
We were delighted to announce the appontment of
Christopher Rogers previously CFO of Whitbread PLC and
currently Managing Director of Costa Coffee in July 2013

Finally and as a result of Chns Bunker stepping down
from the Board after nine years service the Nominations
Comrmittee made the following appointments
« John Colerman as Senior Independent director with effect

from January 2013
« Ruth Anderson as Charr of the Audit Committee with

effect from July 2013
« Christopher Rogers as a rnember of the Audit Committee

with effect from September 2013
The indmduals involved did not participate in discussions
aboul tharr appointments

To support our new executives In getbing 1o know the
business quickly we launched a new Executive On-Boarding
framework aimed at accelerating performance in role

2014 OBJECTIVES

As previously outined the Committees focus in 2014
will be on succession planming In relation to non-executive
directors who are due to step down from the Board as a
result of therr length of service

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCQUNTS 2013
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BOARDROOM DIVERSITY
it 1s our firm belief that having executives and
non-executives on the Board that are diverse In age
experence nationaldy or gender provides us with different
perspectives This does not just make good commercial
and business sense but 1t1s good for our colleagues and
our customers as well

In additon we have a dlear preference for non executives
of whatever background who have demonstrated success
as CFOs or CECs

As a result our job specifications search processes and
selection cnitena are focused on appomting candidates that
not only meet the cnitena for the role but whe could also
offer different perspectives Therefore diversity including
gender diversity was actvely considered during the year
and thus will continue 1o be reflected in future actaties

We are committed to appointing the best people and
ensuring all employees are able to develop their careers
within the Group and therefore do not believe it 1s
appropriate to set targets in this area

At our most senior director / manager level we have ane
fernale board director (13%) We currently have 18% of
WwOomen on our operaling executive Further details of our
workforce diversity are set out In the Equal Opporturuties
Human Rights and Diversity section of the Corporate
Responsibility Statement on pages 44 and 45

| will be avalable at the Annual General Meeuing to
answer any questions about the work of the Committee

Robert Walker
Charman
25 February 2014




DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENOED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The Directors present therr annuzl report and audited
accounts for the year ended 371 Decemnber 2013 The
Carporate Governance staternent on pages 59 to 63 forms
part of the Directors report

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Groups position developments and future
prospects can be found 1n the Strategic report on pages 5
10 55 Whilst the Group operates predominately in the UK
it does have a few ranches i the Isle of Man Northern
ireland and the Republic of reland

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS REPORTING
Detalls of cur green house gas emissions can be found
the Environmental Report on pages 50 to 51

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group results for the year ended 31 December 2013
and dividends for the year ending 31 December 2013 are
set out on page 92 If approved the final dvidend will be
paid on 30 May 2014 te those sharehiolders on the register
at the close of business on 2 May 2014

BALANCE SHEET AND POST BALANCE -
SHEET EVENTS

The balance sheet on pages 94 and 95 shows the Groups
financial position No significant events have occurred since
the balance sheet date

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
A review of the Groups pnncipal nsks and uncertainties 1s
on pages 39 to 41

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Details of the Groups approach to capital management
and the alleviation of nisk through the use of financial
instrurments are gven in the Financiat Review on pages 28
to 30 Specific quantitative nformation on borrowings and
financial nstruments 1s given in notes 23 and 24 on pages
121 t0 127 of the annua! financial statements

DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS
In accordance with the Companys Articles of Assogiation
Christopher Rogers will be standing for election by
sharehalders at the Annual General Meeting, having been
appointed to the Board since the last Annual General
Meeting The Board believes that Christopher Rogers strong
general management and financial background coupled
with his expenence in a number of operational roles will
greatly benefit the Company compilement the skills of the
other Board members and make him an idea!l choice as a
non execuive director

The UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code)
requires that all directors of FTSE 350 companies are
subject to re-election at the Companys Annual General
Meeting each year and therefore executive direciors John
Carter and Tony Buffin, and non-executive directors Robert

Walker John Coleman Andrew Simon and Ruth Anderson
will all seek ra election at the Annual General Meeting
Chns Bunker will not seek re election because as explained
on page 14 he retired from the Board on 30 Septernber
2013 Likewise Geoff Cooper will not seek re-election
because as explained on page 13 after 9 years as Chief
Executive Officer Geoff Coaper retired as a director on
31 December 2013 However he will rerain as a part
time seror managemeni adviser with a particular brief
to assist with the further development of the Groups
successful Toclstaton business for a penod of 12 months
from his retirement

The names of the Directors at 31 Decemnber 2013
together with therr biographical detals are set aut on pages
56 and 57 All of these Directars held office threughout the
year except Christopher Rogers who was appointed with
effect from 1 September 2013 The executive direclors
have rolling 12 month notice penods in ther contracts The
non-execuitve drectors do not have service cantracts In the
light of the formal evaluation of their performances &s & result
of the process described on pages 60 and 671 Robert Walker
Charman confirms on behalf of the Board that all drrectors
continue to be effective n and commitied to therr roles.

Drirectors and officers of the Company are entitled
to be ndernnified out of the assets of the Company n
respect of any hability incurred n relation 1o the affars
of the Carnpany or any assocCiate company to the extent
the law allows In this regard the Company 1s required
to disclose that under article 140 of the Companys
Articles of Association the Direciors have the benefit of an
indermnity to the extent permitted by the Companies Act
2008 against habilities incurred by them in the execution
of therr duties and exercise of ther powers This iIndernnity
15 currently in force In addiion If proceedings aganst
directors are Instituied subsequent to any person acquinng
control of the Cormnpany the Company has agreed with
each of the Directors that pursuant to article 140(D) of
the Companys Articles of Association the Company shall
provide a director with funds {subject to certain restnctions}
to meet expenditure incurred by that director m defending
any cnminal or avil proceedings

A copy of the Cormpanys Arlicles of Association (which
contains this indemnity) 1s avalable for inspection at the
Campanys registered office duning normal business hours
and will be avalable for mspection at (and duning the perod
of 30 minutes prior to) the Carnpany s forthcorning Annual
General Meeting

None of the Directors had an interest in any contract to
which the Cormpany or any of its subsidianes was a party
during the year

The Company has undertaken to comply with the best
practice on approval of drectors conflicts of interests in
accordance with the Campanys Articles of Assoaation These
provisiens have operated effectively Under the Companies
Act 2006 a director must avod a siuation where he has or
can have a direci or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly
may conflict with the Companys interests
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The disclosable mnterests of Directors at 31 Decernber
2013 including holdings f any of spauses and of
children aged under 18 were as detalled in the Directors’
Rermuneration Report on page 79

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

As al 31 Decermber 2013 the Cornpany had been notified
of the following interests amounting to 3% or more of the
voling rights in the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company (as at this date no other such notificatien from
any other shareholder had been receved by the Cormpany)

MNumber %

Sprucegrave Investment Management 13740380 557%

BlackRock Inc

12660084 513%

Scottish Widows Investment Partnershup 111498396  452%

10447348 423%

AXA Group

9192393 372%

Pzena Investment Management

7967518 323%

Legal & General Investment Management 7862297 319%

As at 25 February 2014 the Company had been notified
of the following nterests armounting to 3% or mare of the
voting rights in the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company (as at this date no other such notification from
any other shareholder had been receved by the Cormnpany)

Number %

Sprucegrove Investrment Management

13734600 556%

Scottish Widows Investment Partinership 10412245 422%

Axa Framlington Asset Management

8845432 344%

Legal & General lnvestment Management 7844251 318%

CLOSE COMPANY STATUS

The close campany provisions of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 do not apply to the Company

EMPLOYEES
Statements on employee matters are contained in the
Caorporate Respansibilty Statement on pages 42 1o 45

Detalls of the number of employees and related costs can
be found in note 7 1o the annual financial statements

The Company is committed to equality of opporturity
and recognises the benefit of dversity within its workforce
Its approach to the matter of dversity on company boards
1S set out In the Nominations Comiruttee report on page
84 and in the Corporate Responsibility Statement on pages
44 and 45 The Company has an equal opportunities
palicy aimed at ensunng that emgloyment decisicns are
based on ability and potential regardless of gender race
colour ethnic origin or sexual orientation age or disability In
particular applications for employment by disabled persons
are always fully considered bearing In mind the aptitudes
of the person concerned In the event of a member of staff
becorming disabled every effort 1s made to ensure that ther
employment with the Group continues and that appropnate
traming s arranged It 1s the policy of the Company that the
training, career development and promation of disabled
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persons should as far as possible be dentical to that of
other employees

The Groups policies and practices have been designed
10 keep employees informed on matters relevant o them
as employees through regular meetings and newsletters
Ernployee represeniatives are consulted regularly on a wide
range of matters affecting thewr interests All ernployees with
more than three months service are eligible to participate
in the Companys Sharesave and Buy AsYou Earn plans
Details are provided in the Directors Remuneration Report

POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Group did net give any money for political purposes nor
did it make any donations to political organisations or incur
any polucal expenditure during the year

AUDITOR

Resalutions to re appoint Deloitte LLP as the Companys
auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix the audiors
remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting

STATEMENT ON DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

TO THE AUDITOR

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval

of this report confirms that

» So far as the director 15 aware there 1s no relevant audit
wnforrnaton of which the Cornpanys auditor 15 unaware
and

= The drector has taken all reasonable steps that he ought
to have taken as a director in order 10 make themself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Cornpany's auditor 1s aware of that nformation

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in

accordance with the provisions of 5418 of the Campanies

Act 2006

SHARE CAPITAL AND CHANGE OF CONTROL
As at 31 Decermber 2013 the Company had an allotted
and fully pad share capnal of 246 786 289 ordinary
shares of 10 pence each with an aggregaie nominal
value of £24 678628 90 (including shares owned by the
employee share ownership trust) The ordinary shares are
listed on the London Siock Exchange All the shares rank
par passu The rights and obligations attaching to the shares
are set out In the Companys Articles of Association Fully
paid shares in the Company are freely transferable There
are no persans that hold secunties carrying special nghts
with regard to the cantrol of the Compary Detals of the
structure of the Companys share capital and changes in the
share capital dunng the year are also included in nate 20 to
the annual financial staterments

As at 31 December 2013 the Traws Perkins Employee
Share Ownership Trust owned 3459161 shares in
the Cornpany (1 40% of 1ssued share capital) for use in
connection with the Companys share schemes Any voting
or other similar decisions relating to those shares would
be taken by the Trustees who may take account of any
recormmendation of the Company

There are no restrictions on voting nghts attaching to the
Companys ordinary shares The Company 15 not aware of
any agreements between holders of securiies that may
result in restnctions on the transfer of securities or on
votng rights

The rules gaverring the appointment and replacement of




board members and changes to the Articles of Association
accord with usual English company law provisions. The
pawers of the Caormnpanys Directors are set out in the
Companys Articles of Association In parbicular the Board
has the power to 1ssue shares and to purchase 1is own
shares and 1s seeking renewal of these powers at the
forthcorming Annual General Meeting in accordance with
the restictions and within the lirmits set out in the notice of
that meeting

There are a number of agreements to which the
Company 1s a party that ray take effect alter or terminate
upon a change of control following a takeover bid None of
these agreements 1s considered significant in the context of
the Cornpany as a whole

There are no agreements prowiding for compensation
for directors or ernployees on change of contral As set
out in the Direciors Remuneration Report on page 75
service contracts for executive directors do not specify any
particular level of compensation in the event of termination
feliowing change of control of the Campany As noted
above the Company has agreed with each of the Directors
that 1t shall provide a director with funds (subject to certain
restrictions) to meet expenditure incurred in defending any
cnminal or cvil proceedings If such proceedings are nstituted
subsequent to any person acquinng conirol of the Company

By arder of the Board
Debaorah Gnmason

Cornpany Secretary and General Counsel
25 February 2014
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’

RESPONSIBILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The Directars are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the financial statements In accordance with
applcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directers to prepare such
financial statements for each financial year Under that law
the Directors are required to prepare the group financial
staternents in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulgtion and have also
chosen to prepare the parent company financial statemeants
under IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion Under
company law the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are sausfied that they give a true and farr view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss
of the Company for that penod In prepanng these finangial
statements International Accounting Standard 1 requires
that directors
« Properly select and apply accounting policies
« Present nformation including accounting policies in a
manner that provides relevant reliable comparable and
understandable inforrmation
Prowide additonal disclosures when cormpliance with the
specific requirements 1N IFRSs are nsufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions
other events and conditions on the entitys financial
positicn and financial performance
» Make an assessment of the Companys ability to continue

as @ going concern
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accaunting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Companys transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Cornpanies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
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hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the carporate and financial information included
on the Comparnys website Legistation in the United
Kingdorn governing the preparation and dissemination of
financsal statements may differ from legislation in other
nsdictions

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confrm that 1o the best of our knowledge

1 The financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU give a true and farr view of the assets liablites
financial position and profit or loss of the Company and
the undertakings included In the consolidation taken as a
whole and

2 The strategic report which s mcorporated into the
Diractors report includes a farr review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of
the Company and the underiakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole together with a description
of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

DECLARATION

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and
Accounts when taken as a whole are far balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Groups performance business
model and strategy

By order of the Board
John Carter Tony Buffin

Cheef Executive Officer Chief Pnancial Officer
25 February 2014




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
TRAVIS PERKINS PLC

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC

In our opinon the financial statements

« Give a true and farr view of the state of the Groups and of
the Parent Company’s affarrs as at 31 December 2013
and of the Groups and the Parent companys profit for the
year then ended

« Have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union

« Have been prepared m accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the group
financial statements Arucle 4 of the IAS Regulauon

The financial siaternents comprise the Group and Parent

Cornpany Income Statemnents the Group and Parent

Company Statements of Comprehensive Income the Group

and Parent Company Balance Sheets the Group and Parent

Company Statements of Changes in Equity the Group and

Pzrent Company Cash Flow Statements and the related

notes 1 to 37 The financial reporting framewerk that has

been applied in ther preparation 1s applicable law and IFRSs

as adopied by the European Union

SEPARATE OPINION IN RELATION TO IFRSS
AS ISSUED BY THE |ASB
As explained in note 1 1o the group financial staternents
In addition to complying with its legal obligation to apply
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union the Group has
also applied IFRSs as 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB)

In our opinion the group financial staternents comply with
IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

GOING CONCERN

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the

directars siatement contained within the Corporate

Governance Statement that the Group is 8 going concern

We confirm that

* We have concluded that the directors use of the gong
cencern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements 1s approprate and

+ We have not identifred any material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt on the Groups ability to
continue as a going concern

However because not all future events or conditions can be

predicted this staterent 15 not a guarantee as to the Groups

ability 10 continue as a going concern

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL
MISSTATEMENT

The assessed nsks of materat misstaterent descnbed
below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit
strategy the allocation of resources in the audit and directing
the efforts of the engagerment team

Risk Haow the scope of our audit responded to the sk

Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets
Management are required 1o undertake an annual
impairment review which incorporates jJudgments

We challenged Management s assumptions used n the imparment
madel for goodwill and intangible assets, ncluding specifically
the determination of cash-generating units the forecast cash flow

based on assumptions of future cash flows including  projections for each cash-generating unit and the discount rates,

assumptiens around revenue growth margins and
forecast cash flows the seleciion of apprapriate
discount rates and the assessment of the Groups
cash-generating urits

particularly with respect to the Consumer operating segment in
making this critical assessment of the cash flow projections we
assessed histoncal ferecasung accuracy and compared forecast
profit margins to histoncal margins and benchmarked the discount

rate and growth rates employed to available market data We cnticatly
assessed Managements position as ta whether ar not a reasonably
possible change to key assumptions could result in an impasrment

In doing so we considered the sensitvity of the asset vatuations to
adverse outturn versus the forecasts in particular adverse changes

in the long terrm growth rate assumed and like-for-like sales We also
specifically challenged and considered the appropriatenass of the
disclosures set out In note 13 and note 14 to the accounts detailing
tha point at which the valuation of goodwill and intang bles waould
equal their carrying amounts
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TRAVIS PERKINS PLC

How the scope of our audit responded to the nsk

Risk

Accaunting for recognition of supplier rebate income
The Group has entered into certain supplier rebate
arrangernents which include prowisions that vary

the amount of rebate due to the Group In lne with
volumes purchased or other parameters over penods
that are not necessarly coterrninous with the Groups
financial year These arrangements are complex and
therefore managernent Judgernent Is necessary In
relatien to recognition of the associated Income

We tested the operating effectiveness of the controls in the suppler
rebate cycle in both 2012 and 2013 A key focus of our work was
on the controls to ensure new agreements entered into during the
year are approprately captured by Managements reporting systems
We airculansed a sample of suppliers to confirm rebate terms and
balances verified post year-end cash receipts ta assess recoverability
and validity of the amount recognised as receivable at year end We
also reviewed and challenged Managements calculations to estimate
the impact of rebate agreements on purchases of tems held i stock
at year end

Inventory valuation

Inveniory valuation including recognition at cost after
appropnate adjustment for supplier rebates and
allowances to recognise inventories at the lower of
cost and net realisable value

We performed substantive audit testing over the valuation of inventory
balances including attendance at inventory counts We critically
assessed and challenged the adjustrments made to gross mnventory
balances including adjustrnents for stock handling costs supplier
rebates and slow moving/obsolete stock to deterrmine that the
provisions recorded were appropriate

Prowisions for hiabilities

The Group incurs certain liabiliies in the normal
course of business where assessment of the related
provision requires the exercise of jJudgemert including
in respect of self-insurance and property leases

We assessed the Groups provisions for self-insurance in light of
evidence from the Groups Insurance adwisars and entically assessed
the appropnateness of the assumptions by the Groups praperty
specialists applied in deterrmining the level of property provisions
recognised In the financial statements We assessed and challenged
the assumptians around the length for which properties are expected
10 remain vacant the judgments around sub-letting and tha cost
assurnptions appled throughout the onerous penods

Income taxes

The Group 1s required to consider the extent to
which the iImpact of uncertain tax postions should
be recogrised withtn the current and deferred
taxation charge for the year and related current and
deferred taxation assets and babilities i the financial
statements

We challenged Managements determinatian of the Groups
accounting for ncome taxes using our taxation specialists to assess
the jJudgerments made including the level of provision maintained
for any uncertain tax posiions N light of evidence that included
carrespondence with the relevant {ax authorities

on pages 65 and 66
designed in the context of our audit of the financial

indndual accounts or disclosures Our opinion on the

on these indmvdual matters

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

The Audit Committee’s consideration of these nsks is set out
Our audit procedures relating to these matters were
statements as a whole and not to express an opinion on

financial staternents i1s not modified with respect to any of
the nisks descrnibed above, and we do not express an opinion

AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Cur group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding
of the Group and its environment including group-wide
controls and assessing the nsks of material misstaternent at
the group level The senior statutory auditor was involved In
all decisions including the nisk assessment and approach to
group-wide controls testing Based on that assessment we
focused our group audit scope primarly on the Groups four
pnncipal dvisions These principal divisions are the Groups
four operating segments and represent 99% of the Groups
net assets the Groups revenue and the Groups profil

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement
in the financigl statements that makes 1t probakle that the
econcmic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person
waould be changed or influenced We use matenality bath in
planning the scope of our audit work and 1n evaluating the
results of our work

We determined materiality for the group to be £22
rmillion which 1s below 7 5% of pre-tax profit

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would
report to the Commiitee all audit differences in excess of
£0 3 millon as well as differences below that threshold that
in our view warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We
also report ta the Audit Commitiee on disclosure matters
that we enttfied when assessing the overall presentation of
the financial staterments
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before tax. Our statutory audits were executed at levels of
matenalty applicable to each ndimdual entity which were
miuch lower than group materalty

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation
process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our
conclusion that there were no significant nsks of matenal
misslatement of the aggregated financial Infarmation of
Ihe remaining components not subject 1o audit or audit of
speaified account balances




OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE

COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion

+ The part of the Directaors Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared i accordance with
the Companies Act 2006 and

« The information given In the Strategic Report and the
Diectors Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the
financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REFPORT

BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of explanations receved and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2008 we are required to report

to you if In our opinicn

+ We have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit or

+ Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company or returns adequate for our audn have
not been receved from branches not wvisited by us or

+ The Parent Company financial staternents are not in
agreernent with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect cf these matters

Crrectors’ remuneration

Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are also required
to report if N our opinion certan disclosures of directors
remuneration have not been made or the part of the
Directors Remuneration Report to be audited 1s not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns We
have nothing to report ansing from these matters

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rutes we are also required to review the
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to
the Companys compliance with nine provsions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report
ansing from our review

QOur duty to read other infarmation in the Annual Report

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

we are reguired to report to you if In our opinion iInformation

in the annual report 1s

« Matenally nconsistent with the information in the audited
financial statements or

« Apparently matenally incorrect based on or matenally
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group acquired in
the course of parforming our audit or

« Otherwise misleading

In particular we are reguired to consider whether we have

identified any mconsistencies between our knowledge

acquired dunng the audit and the dreclars' staternent

that they consider the annual report 1$ far balanced and

understandable and whether the annual report appropnatety

discloses those matters that we communicated to the
Audit Committee which we consider should have been
disclosed We confirm that we have not identified any such
inconsistencies or musleading statements.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITOR
As explained rmore fully i the Directors Responsibilities
Staternent the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial staternents and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view Qur responsiblity 1s to audit
and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Irefand) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Pracuces Boards Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This repart 1s made sofely to the Companys members
as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken
50 that we might state to the companys members those
matters we are required to state to thern 1n an auditors
report and for no other purpase To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility
1o anyone other than the Cormpany and the Companys
rmembers as a body for our audit work, for thas report or for
the opinions we have formed

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

An audit Involves cbtaining evidence about the armounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
grve reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal misstaternent whether caused by
fraud or error This iIncludes an assessment of whelher
the accounting policies are appropriate 10 the Groups

and the Parent Companys arcumstances and have

been consistently applied and adequately disclosed

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the Directors and the overall presentaticn of the
financial statements. In addition we read all the financial
and non-financial nformation In the annual report to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that s apparently
ratenally incorrect based on or matenally inconsistent
with the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent
material rmesstatements or Inconsistencies we censider the
implications for our report

Colin Hudson FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Londen United Kingdom

25 February 2014

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

Travis Perkins®




Income statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 31 DECEMBER 2013

THE GROUP
2013 2012

Pre~exceptional Exceptional Pre-exceptional Exceptional Total
terns tems Total items wemns
‘(Restated) *(Restated)
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 4 51487 - 51487 48449 - 48449
Operating profit before amortisation 5 3476 - 3476 3257 (87) 3170
Arnortisation of intangible assets {179 - {17 9) (17 4) - (174
Operating profit Sa 3297 - 3297 3083 (87) 2996
Exceptional nvestment income 5d - 94 a4 - 395 385
Finance income 9 37 - 37 27 - 27
Finance cosls g {302) - (302) (426) - (426)
Profit before tax 3032 94 3126 2684 308 2992
Tax 10a (680) 201 (479 (660) 155 (508)
Profit for the year 2352 295 2647 2024 463 2487
Attributable to
Owners of the Company 2351 295 2646 2024 463 2487
Naon-controlling interests 01 - 01 - - .
2352 295 2647 2024 463 2487
Earnings per ordinary share
Basic 11a 109 9p 104 3p
Diluted 11b 1057p 1C06p
Total dwvidend declared
per ordinary share 12 310p 250p

All resulis relate to continuing operations Details of exceptional iterms are given in notes 5d and 10

* Where on the following pages it refers to a restaternent that 1s in respect of the maverment in the pensien iability recognised due to minimum
funding requirerments (note 28) and / or as i the case of the Income statement and staternent of comprehensive Income 18 due 1 the adoption of
the new International Financial Reporting Standard 1AS 19 (rewsed 2011) (note 5e)
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Income statements continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

THE COMPANY
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Revenue 4 1290 821
Operating profit 5a 1029 623
Exceptional mnvestrment income 5d 94 374
Firance ncome 9 40 37
Finance costs 9 (452) (508)
Profit before 1ax 711 526
Tax 102 141 132
Prafit for the year 852 658

All results relate to continuing operations Detalls of exceptional items are given in note 5d

Statements of comprehensive income

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
*{Rastated)
Notes £m £m £m £m
Profit for the year 2647 2487 852 658
lterns that will not be reclassified subsequently ta profit and loss
Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined berefit pension schermes 28g 340 (221) - -
Deferred tex rate change on actuanal movement 10b (115) (71) -
Incorme tax relating to items not reclassified 10b (7 0) 51 - -
155 (241) - -
ftems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
Cash flow hedges
Losses ansmng dunng the year (50) {85) (50) (85)
Reclassification adjustments for losses included in profit 61 88 61 a8
Movement on cash flow hedge cancellation payment 08 41 08 41
Income tax relating to #tems that may be reclassified 10b (03) 09 03) (09)
16 35 16 35
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year net of tax 171 (2086) 16 35
Total corprehensive income for the year 2818 2281 868 693
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TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPCORT ANO ACCQUNTS 2013

Balance sheets

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Assets 2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated)

Notes £€m £m £m £mn
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill 13 18139 18075 - -
Other intangible assets 14 4098 4248 - -
Property plant and equipment 15 609 9 5784 01 02
Dervatrve financial instruments 24 93 128 93 128
investrment property 16 04 04 -
Interest in associates 17 73 67 77 62
investment 1n subsidianes 17 - - 35888 35729
Avallzble-for-sale investrments 17 27 24 -
Deferred tax asset 25 - - 182 142
Total non-current assets 28533 28330 36241 36063
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventaries 6877 637 1 - -
Trade and other recevables 18 8229 7337 1331 1807
Dervative financial iInstruments 24 - 127 - 127
Cash and cash equivalents 19 798 1391 73 740
Total current assets 1,5904 15226 140 4 267 4
Total assets 44437 43556 37645 38737




THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Equity and liabilities 2013 2012 2013 2012
{Restated)

Notes £m £m £m £m
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital 20 247 245 247 245
Share premiurn account 22 4980 4872 4969 4861
Merger reserve 22 3265 3265 3265 3265
Revaluation reserve 22 184 201 - -
Hedging reserve 22 - (186) - {16)
Own shares 22 (406) (62 4) (40 6) (62 4)
Other reserves 22 17 - - -
Accumulated profits 22 16899 14613 2143 2040
Total equity 25152 22556 1,021 8 9771
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 23 4216 1952 3639 1349
Denvative financial instrurnents 24 45 49 45 49
Retirerment benefit obligations 28 714 1259 -
Long-term provisions 25 207 200 - -
Long-term other payables 27 19 470 19 470
Amounts due to subsidianes - - 23080 22434
Deferred tax liabilities 26 613 691 - -
Total non-current bhabilities 5814 462 1 26783 24302
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 23 58 3861 32 444G
Trade and other payables 27 1,218 1 11076 594 189
Denvaive financial mstrurnents 24 18 26 18 26
Tax liabilties 732 748 - -
Short-term provisions 25 482 568 - -
Total current Labilities 1,347 1 16379 644 4654
Total liabrsies 1,9285 21000 2,7427 28966
Total equity and habiliies 44437 43556 37645 38737

The financial staiements of Travis Perkins ple registered number 824821 were approved by the Board of Directors on

25 February 2014 and signed on its behalf by

John Carter

Tony Buffin
Chief Finanoal Officer

—
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Consolidated statement of changes In equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

THE GROUP
lssued Share
share  premium Merger Revaluation Hedging Own Accurmulated Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve shares Other profits equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Previously reported at
1 January 2012 244 4808 3265 208 (51) (752) - 13356 21078
Pnor peried restatement (note 5e) - - - - - - (584) (584)
At 1 danuary 2012 (restated) 244 4808 3265 208 (51) (752) 12772 20494
Profit for the year {restated) - - - - - - 2487 2487
Other comprehensve income
for the penod net of tax (restated) - - - 35 - - 241) (206
Total comprehensive income
far ihe year (restated) - - 35 - - 2246 2281
Dividends - - - - - 512) (B12)
Issue of share capital 01 64 128 - (104) 89
Realisation of revaluation reserve in
respact of property disposals - - (14) - - ; 14 .
Difference between depreciation
of assets on a histoncal basis and
on a revaluaton basts - (02) - - - 02 -
Deferred tax rate change - - 09 - - - - 09
Tax on share-based payments (note 10c) - - - 43 43
Credit for equity-settled share
based payments - - - - 152 152
At 31 December 201 2 (restated) 245 4872 3265 201 (16) (624) - 1,4613 2,2556
Profit for the year - - - - - - 01 2646 2647
Other comprehensive Income
for the perod net of tax - - - - 16 - - 155 171
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 16 - 01 2801 2818
Dmvidends - - - - - - - (651) (651)
Issue of share capital 02 108 - - - 218 - {(189) 139
Realisation of revaluation reserve In
respect of property disposals - - - (28) - - - 28 -
Difference between depreciation
of assets on a historical basis and
on a revaluation basis - - - (02) - - - 02 -
Deferred tax rate change - - - 13 - - - - 13
Tax on share-based payments (note 10c) - - - - - - - 157 157
Foreign exchange - - - - - - - 01 01
Farr value of put option {note 29) - - - - - - (18) - (18)
Credit for equity-settled share
based payments - - - - - - - 137 137
At 31 December 2013 247 4980 3265 184 - (406) (17} 1,6899 25152
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Statement of changes in equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMSEER 2013

THE COMPANY
lssued Share

share premiurm Merger Hedgng Own Accumulated Total

capital account reserve reserve shaves profits equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Al 1 January 2012 244 4797 3265 (51} (752) 1925 9428
Profit for the year - - - - 658 558

Other comprehensive income for

the pencd net of tax - - 35 - - 35
Total comprehensive ncome for the year - 35 - 658 693
Dividends - - - - 512y (512)
Issue of share capital 01 64 - - 128 (104) 89
Tax on share-based payments {note 10) - - - 30 30
Credit for equity-settled share-based payments - - - 43 43

At 31 December 2012 245 4861 3265 (16) (624) 2040 9771
Profit for the year - - - - - 852 852

Other comprehensive income for

the period net of tax - - - 16 - - 16
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - 16 - 852 868
Dividends - - - - - (651) (651)
Issue of share capral 02 108 - - 218 (189) 139
Tax an share-based payrmenits (note 10) - - - - - 53 53
Credtt for equity-settled share-based payrnents - - - - - 38 38
At 31 Decernber 2013 247 4969 3265 - (406) 2143 1,0218
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Cash flow statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2013

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2043 2012
{Restated)
£m £m £m £m
Operating profit before amortisation and exceptional items 3476 3257 1029 623
Adustrents for
Depreciation of property piant and equipment 713 694 01
Other non cash movernants 137 161 38 43
Losses of asscciate 25 03 -
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment (181) (17 1) - -
Operating cash flows before movernents in working capital 4170 3944 1068 665
Increase In inventones (485) (192) - -
{Increase) / decrease in recewvables (836) 51 416 818
Increase / (decrease) n payables 615 (250) 638 6828
Payments on exceptianal items (4 6) 47 - -
Pension payments in excess of the charge to profits (22 6) (230) - -
Cash generated from operations 3192 3276 2122 8312
Interest paid (210) (27 4) (219) (412)
Income taxes paid (592) (645) - -
Net cash from operating actmties 23980 2357 1903 7900
Cash flows from nvesting actwvities
Interest received 05 01 - 01
Proceeds on disposal of property plant and equipment 169 326 $-
Purchases of property plant and equiprment (107 2) (82 3) 01
Interest In associate (29) (29) (13) (22)
Investments in subsidianes - - (132) (600B)
Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired (note 29) (93) (24 5) - -
Net cash used in investing activities (1020) (770) (1486) (8027)
Financing activities
Net proceeds framn the issue of share capital 139 89 139 8¢
Net movernent in finance lease labilives 1) 57 -
Decrease in leans and liabilities to pension scheme (1430) B16) (1906) (700)
Dvidends paid (651) 512) (651) 512}
Net cash from financing activities (196 3) (98 2) (241 8) (112 3)
Nel (decrease) / ncrease in cash and cash equivalents (59 3) 605 (661) 750
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1391 786 734 (16)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 19) 798 1391 73 734
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Notes to the financial statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1 General information

Overview

Travis Perkins ple 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom

under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered ofice

is given on page 149 The nature of the Groups operatians and its

principal actmities are set out i the Strategic Report on pages & to 55
These financial staterents are presented in pounds sterling

the currency of the pnmary econormic environment In wihich the

Group operates

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Finanaial Reparting Standards (IFRS ) 1ssued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) The financial
staternents have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted
by the Eurapesn Union and therefore the Group financial statements
comply wath Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulations

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost
basis except that denvative financial instruments are stated at
therr far value The consolbdated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and alt entities controlled by the Company
(ns subsidiaries) (together referred 1o as the Group) from the date
control commences untit the date that control ceases Control 1s
achieved where the Cormpany
+ Has the power over the investee
« |s exposed or has nghts to a vanable return fram the involvernent
with the nvestee
« Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns
As such the results of subsidiaries acquired dunng the year are
included in the consolidated income statement frorm the effective
date of acquisiion
In the current financial year the Group has adopted 1AS 19 (as
revised in June 2011) retrospectively and in accordance with the
transitional provisions As the Group has always recognised actuarial
gains and losses immed:ately there 15 no effect on the prior year
defined benefit abligation and balance sheet disclosure ansing from
this change 1AS 19 rewised requires nterest cost and return on
scheme assels calculated under the previous version of IAS 19 to be
replaced with a nat interest amount calculated by applying a discount
rate to the net defined iability or asset The impact of this revision is
shown in nole Se
The following new and revised Standards and interpretations
have been adopted in the current year Therr adoption has not had
any significant Impacts on the amounis reported in these financial
staternents although disclosures have been amended to reflect new
requirernents
« |AS 27 {rewised) Separate Financial Staterments
» |AS 28 (revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
« IFRS 10 Consalidated Financial Statemnents
+ IFRS 11 Jont Ventures
 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurernents
At the date of the approval of these financial statements, the following
Standards and Interpretations which have not yet been applied in these
financial staternents, were w1 issue but not yet effective
« [FRS 8 Financia! Instruments
= 1AS 32 {amended) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liablties
+ IFRS 7 (amended) Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabdities
= $AS 35 (amendments) Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets
« 1AS 39 {amendments) Novation of Dervatves and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting
« Improvements to IFRSs - minor amendments
The Dieclors anticipate that adoption of these Standards and

Interpretations in future penods will have no matenal iImpact on the
financial statements of the Group.

The Directors are currently of the opinion that the Groups forecasts
and projections show that the Group should be able to operate within
its current facilities and comply wath s banking covenants. The Group
is however expased to a number of significant nsks and uncertainties
which could affect the Groups ability to meet managements forecast
and grojectons and hence its atility ta meet ts banking covenants

The Drrectors believe that the Group has the flexbility to react to
changing market conditions and 1s adequately placed to manage 1is
business risks successfully

Detaled considerations of going concern nsks and uncertainties
are provided In the Corporate Governance Report and in the Strategic
Report on pages 61and 62 and pages 39 to 41 respectively

After making enqurries, the Oirectors have formed a judgement at the
tme of approving the financial statements that there 1s a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
ta continue In operational exstence for the foreseeable future For this
reason they continue 1o adopt the going concen basis in prepaning the
financial staterments.

2 Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in prepanng the financial
staternents are set out below

Revenue recognition

Reverwe is recognised when goods or services are receved by the
custormner and the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to
thern Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of consideration receved
or recevable and represents amounts recenvable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and value added tax For the Parent Company revenue comprises
management charges recenable and dvdend income receved

Exceptional items
Excepuonal tems are those terns of Incorne and expenditure that
by reference to the Group are matenial in size or unusuat in nature or
incidence that in the jJudgernent of the Directors should be disclosed
separately on the face of the financial statements (or in the notes In
the case of a segment} to ensure both that the reader has a proper
understanding af the Groups financial performance and that there 15
comparahility of financial performance between periods

lterns of ncome or expense that are considerad by the Directors
for designation as exceptional items include but are not lrmited
to significant restructunngs onerous contracts write downs or
impairments of current and non-current assets the costs of acquinng
and integrating businesses gains or losses on disposals of businesses
and investments, re measurement gains or losses ansing from changes
in the far value of dervative financial Instrumenis to the extent that
hedge accounting 1s not achieved or 1s not effective and pension
scheme curtallment gains and the effect of changes in corporation tax
rates on deferred tax balances

Bustness combinations and goodwall

All business combinations are accounted for using the acquisttion

methed The cost of an acquisition represents the cash value of the

consideration and/er the farr value of the shares i1ssued on the date the

offer became uncondibonal The acquirees identifiable assets liabilities

and contingent labilites that meet the conditions for recognition under

IFRS 3 (2008} are recogrused at ther fair value at the acquisition date

except that

« Deferred 1ax assets or labilities and labilties or assets related io
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with 1AS 12 Incorme Taxes and IAS 19 Employvee Benefiis
respectively

» Liabiliies or equity instruments related to the replacement by the
Group of an acquirees share based payrnent awards are measured
In accordance with [FRS 2 Share-based Payment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where a business combination is achieved in stages the Groups
previously held interests in the acquired entity are remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date and the resulting gain or loss if any 15
recogrised in the income stalement

Goodwill ansing on acauisition represents the excess of the cost of
acquistion over the share of the aggregate fair value of identifiable
net assets {including intangible assets) of & business or a subsidiary at
the date of acquisiion All matenal intangble fixed assets obtained on
acquistion have been recognised separately in the financial staterments
Goodwill s nitially recognised as an asset and allocated to cash
generating units or groups of cash generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination then at least annually
15 reviewed for impairment. Any imparrment 1s recogrised immediately
In the Income staternent and 1s not subsequently reversed as such
goodwall 1s stated in the balance sheet at cost less any provisions for
imparment in value

Goodwil ansing on acquisiions before the date of transiion to IFRS
(1 January 2004} has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amaounts
subject to baing tested for mpairment at that date Goodwill written off
to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been renstated and
18 not included in deterrmining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Liabilines for contingent consideration are classified as far value
through profit and loss

Investments in associates

An associate Is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
but not conirol or joint control through participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee The results assets and
liabiives of associates are incorparated in these finanoial statements
using the equity method of accounting fnvestrments in associates are
camed in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post acquisiticn
changes in the groups share of the net assets of the associate less any
impairment 1n the value of ndividual investrments

Intangible assets

Intangible assets \dentified as part of the assets of an acquired business
are capitalised separately from goodwill if the farr value can be
measured reliably on intial racognition Intangible assets are amortised
to the income staterment on a straight-ine basis over a maxmurm of 20
years except where they are considered to have an indefinite useful life
In the latter instance they are reviewed annually for impairment

Investment properties
Investment properties which are held 1o earn rental incorme or for
capital appreciation or for both are stated at deemed cost less
depreciation Properties are depreciated to therr estimated residual
value on a straight-ine bass over their estimated useful lives up 1o a
maxirnum of 50 years

Rental incorme from investrnent property s recognised in the Income
staternent on a straight ine basis over the term of the lease

Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and equipment 1s stated at cost or deemed cost less
accumulated depreciation and any imparrment in value Assets are
depreciated to ther estimated residual value on a straight-ine basis
over ther estimated useful lives as follows
+ Buildings - 50 years or if lower the estmated usefut life of the
building or the Ufe of the lease
= Plant and equipment - 4 10 10 years
+ Freehold land 1s not depreciated
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over therr expected
useful lives an the sarme basis as owned assets or where shorter the
term of the relevant lease
The gan or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an assel
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds net of
expenses and the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet
and 1s recognised i the income statement. Where appropriate the
attnbutable revaluation reserve remaining in respect of properties

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

revalued prior to the adoption of IFRS 15 transferred directly to
accurnulated profits

Leases
Finance leases which transfer 1o the Group substantially all the nsks
and benefits Incidental to ownership of the leased tem are capitalised
at the inception of the lease at the far value of the leased asset
or If lower af the present value of the muinimum lease payments
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and
reduction of the tease liability to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balarce of the lability Finance charges are charged
directly against income Capiiabsed leased assets are depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases

Operating lease rental payments are recognised as an expense In the
income staternent on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Reverse lease prermia and ather incentives recewvable for entering
INto & lease agreement are recognised in the iIncome statement on a
straight lne basis over the life of the lease

impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The carrying amounts of the Groups tangible and intangible assets
with a definite useful life are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determing whether there 1s any ndication of imparment If such
an indication exists the assets recoverable amount 1s estimated and
compared 1o 1ts carrying value Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are ndependent frorn other assets the Group estimates
ihe recoverable amouni of the cash-generating urit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the greater
of its far value less disposal cost and its value in use {the present
value of the future cash flows that the asset 1s expected to generate)
In determining value in use the present value of future cash flows 1
discounted using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money in relation ta the penod of the
investment and the nsks specific to the asset concerned

Where the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount a provision
for the imparment loss 1s establshed with a charge being made to the
incore staternent When the reasans for a write down no longer exst
except in the case of goodwill the wnte down 1s reversed in the income
statement up to the net book value that the relevant asset would have
had if it had not been wniten down and if t had been depreciated

For intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life the recoverable
amount Is estimated at each annual balance sheet date

Inventories

Inventones which consist of goods for resale are stated at the lower
of average weighted cost and net realisable value Cost comprses
direct matenals and where applicable, direct labour cosis and those
overheads that have been incurred in banging the inventones to their
present location and condition Net realisable value 1s the estimated
seling price less the estimated costs of disposal

Financial instruments

Financial assets and lablites are recognised In the balance sheet
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument

Trade recevables

Trade recenables are measured at amortised cost which 1s carrying
amaount less provision for irrecaverable amounts Allowances for the
estimated irecoverable amounts are made in the income statement
when the recevable 1s considered to be uncollectible

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are treated as impaired when In the opinion of the
Directors the lkehhood of full recovery s dimurished by aither events or
change of arcumstance




Bank and other borrowangs

Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafts loan notes and other
loans are recognised In the balance sheet at amortised cost Finance
charges associated with arranging a bank facility are recognised in
the income statement over the life of the faclity All other borrowing
costs are recogrused in the income staternent in the period in which
they are incurred

Trade payables
Trade payables are measured at amorused cost

Forengn currencies
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recotded at the
rates ruling on the date of the transaction

At the consolidated balance sheet date unhedged monetary assets
and babilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rate of exchange rubing a1 that date Foreign exchange differences
ansing on translation are recognised in the income staternent

Dervative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group uses dervative financig! Instrumenits to hedge its exposure
to interest rate and foreign exchange nisks ansing from financing
actnaties The Group does not enter into speculative financial
nstruments In accordance with its treasury policy the Group does not
hold or 1ssue dervative financial instruments for trading purposes

Derwvative financial nstrurments are stated at farr value The farr value
of dervalve financial Instrurments 15 the estimated amount the Group
would receve or pay to terminate the dervative at the balance sheet
date, taking into account current interest and exchange rates and the
current creditwerthiness of the counterparties

Changes in the fair value of dervative financial instrurments, that are
designated and effective as hedges of the future vanabiity of cash
flows, are recogrised n equity and the ineffective portion 1s recognised
immediately in the income staterment

For an effective hedge of an exposure to changes in the farr value of
a hedged itern the hedged rter 15 adjusted for changes in fair value
attnbutable to the nsk being hedged with the ¢arresponding entry in the
income staterment

For derwvatives that do rot qualify for hedge accounting any gains
or losses ansing from changes in fair value are taken to the income
staternent as they anse

Denvatives ernbedded in cornmercial contracts are treated as
separate denvatives when their risks and charactenistics are not closely
related to those of the undertying coniracts with unreshised gains ar
losses being reported In the income staterment

The farr value of hedged dervatives 15 classified as a non-current asset
or nan-current bability if the rermaining matunty of the hedge relationship
15 more than 12 manths otherwise they are classified as current

Foreign currency forward contracts not designated effecuve hedges
are marked to market at the balance sheet date with any gains or
losses being taken through the mcorne statement

Financial assets and financial babities
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories
financial assels at far value through profit or loss (FVTPL] available-
for sale (AFS) financial assets and loans and recervables The
classificaton depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recagnition

Financial babilives are classified as either financial labilities at FVTPL
or other financial liabililes and trade and other payables

The Group has defined the classes of financial assets 1o be other
financial assets cash and borrowings and dervative financial instrumenits

Financial assets and financial liabilites at FVTPL
Financial assets and sinancial labiliies are classified as at FVTPL where
the financial asset or the financial iiability 1s erther held for trading or 1t
I1s designated as FVTPL

A financial asset or financial iability 1s classified as held for trading i it

« Has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or of disposal
1n the near future or

« |5 a part of an idenified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short
term profit-taking or

« Is a derwative that 15 not designated and effective as a hedging
Instrument
Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at

fair value wath any resultant gain or loss recogrised in the ncame

staternent untess 1t 15 an effecuve cash flow relsionship The net gan

or loss recogrised in the income statement Incorporates any interast

earned or paid on the financial asset and financial lability respectively

Loans and recevables

Trade recewvables ang other receivables that have fixed or deterrminable
paymenits that are not quoted In an active market are classified as loans
and recevables Loans and recevables are measured at amoriised

cost using the effective Interest method less any rmpairment Interest
Income 15 recognised by applying the effective interest rate except for
shart-term recewnables which applies to all amounts owed 10 the Group
when the recogmition of interest would be immatenal

Other financial liabilities

Other financial labilites including borrowings are intially measured

at far value net of transaction costs Other financial liabilines are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis
The effectve interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense aver the
relevant pertad The effective interest 1s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability or where approprate a shoner perod

Derecagmtion of financial assets and financial Labilties
The Group derecognises a financtal asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or 1t transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to anather entity If the Group nedher transfers nor retains
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership and continues 1o
control the transferred asset the Group recognises its retained interest
In the asset and an assoctated liability for arnounts it may have 1o pay
If the Group retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred lnancial asset the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recogruses a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds receved

The Group derecognises financial bablibes when and only when the
Groups obligations are discharged cancelled or they expire

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
the deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the vear
Taxable proft differs from net profit as reported in the inceme
statement because it excludes items of Income and expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes tems which
are never taxable or deductible The Grougs liability for current 1ax
15 calculsted using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labiliies in
the financial statements and the conesponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit This s accountad for using the balance
sheet liability method Deferred tax labihities are generally recogrused
for all taxable temporaty differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised io the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profits will
be avalable against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temparary
difference anses from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
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than in a business cormbination) of other assets and biablives i a
transaction that affects nether the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the penad when the lability 1s settled or the asset realised Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the income statement except when it
relates to temns charged or credited directly to equity in which case
the deferred tax 15 also dealt with in equity

Retirement benefit costs
Payments 1o defined contnbution retrement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services
entiting thern to the contrbutions

For defined benefit schemes the cost of prowiding benefits 1s
determined using the projected unit credit method with actuanal
valuations being carmed out at the end of each reporting period
Re-measurement compnising actuanal gains and losses the effects
of asset celings and rinimum funding payments and the returm
on schemne assets (excluding interest) are recogrused immediately
in the balance sheet with a charge or credit to the statement of
comprehensive Income Re measurement recorded in the statement
of comprehensive Income 1S not recycled Net interest s calculated by
applying a discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset Net
interest expense or Income 1s recognised within finance costs

Where the Group 15 committed to pay additional contabutions under
a minmum funding arrangement and it has no unconditional night
1o recaive any surplus in a winding up of the schere the pension
obligation recognised in the financial staternents 15 the higher of the
FAS 19 (revised 2011) obligation or the net present value of future
minemum funding payments discounted using the 1AS 19 {revised
2011} discount rate, to which the Group 1s unconditionally committed

Employee share incentive plans
The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 - Share-Based
Payments In accordance with the transitiona! provisions [FRS 2 has
been appled to all grants of equity instrurnents after 7 Novernber
2002 that were unvested at 1January 2005

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share based payments to certain
employees (long-term incentives executive share options and Save
as You Farn) These payments are measured at farr value at the date
of grant by the use of the Black Scholes option pricing model taking
into accouni the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted The cost of cquity-settled awards 1s recogrised on a straight-
line basis aver the vesting period based on the Groups estirmate of the
number of shares that will eventually vest

Provisions

A provisien is recogrised in the balance sheet when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation because of & past event and
it 15 probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation Provisions are measured at the Directors best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the cbligation at the
balance sheet date and are discounted to present value where the
effect 1s matenal

Equity instruments and own shares
Equity instruments represent the ordinary share capitat of the Group
and are recorded at the value of proceeds recewed net of directly
attnbutable incremental 1ssue costs

Consideranon paid by the Group for tts own shares is deducted fram
total shareholders equity Where such shares vest to employees under
the terms of the Groups share Incentive schemes or the Groups shate
save schemes or are sold any consideration receved is included in
shareholders equity

Dividends

Dnadends proposed by the Board of Directors and unpaid at the penod
end are not recogrised in the financial statements untl they have been
approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
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3 Cniical judgements and
key sources of estimation and uncertainty

These consalidated financial staternents have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS as 1ssued by the IASB The preparation of
financial staternents requires the Directors to make estimates and
assurnptions about future events that affect the reported amounis of
assets and liabilties and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilises
Future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty
Therefore the determinaticn of estimales requires the exercise of
Judgerent based on varicus assumptions and other factors such as
histarical expenence current and expecied economic conditions The
Directors frequently re-evaluate these significant faciors and make
adjustrments where facts and arcumstances dictate The Directors
believe that the following accounting policies are crincal due to the
degree of estimation required and / or the potential matenal impact
they rmay have on the Groups financial position and performance

Income taxes

The Group 15 subject to the ncame tax laws of the United Kingdom
These laws are complex and subject to different interpretations by
taxpayers and tax authonties When establishing income tax provisions
the Directors rmake a nurmber of jJudgements and interpretations about
the application and interaction of these laws Changes in these tax
laws or in their iInterpretation could affect the Groups effective tax rate
and the results of operations in a given penod Accordingly potentially
sigrificant tax benefits will not be recognised until there 1s sufficient
certanty that they will be accepted by HMRC

Cash Generating Units

The Directors consider that individual assets do not generate cash
flows that are largely ndependent of those from other assels and
cansequently that for the purposes of impairment testing, each branch
in the Graup is a cash generating unit Impairment testing of property
plart and equiprment 1s carmed out at indmvidual branch level Goodwill
and ather intangibles impairment testing 15 carmed out at brand level as
descnbed in note 13

Goodwill 2nd other intangible assets
In testing far imparrrnent the recaverable amount of goodwill and
intangible assets I1s determined by reference to the value in use of the
CGU grouping to which they are altributed In addition the Directors
have made certain assumpticns concerning discount rates and the
future development of the business that are consistent wath its five-
year strategic plan Whilst the Directors consider their assumptions
to be realistic should actual resulis Including those far market
volume changes be dirferent from expectations for instance due to
a worsening of the UK economy then 1t 1s possible that the value of
goodwill and intangible assets included in the balance shect could
become impaired

The pre tax discount rate is denved from the Groups weighted
average cost of capital (WACC) calculated by the Groups adwsors The
WACC 15 based upon the nsk free rate for ten-year UK gilts adjusted
for the UK market nsk prermium which reflects the increased nsk of
investing in UK equities and the relative volatilties of the equity of the
Group caompared 1o the market as a whole In arrving at the discount
1ate the Directors have applied an adjustrment to reflect thew view of
the relative nsk of the Groups operations Further detals concerning the
Judgements made by the Directars in respect of goodwill and intangble
assets and the impairment testing thereof are gven in note 13

Pension assumptions

The Group has chosen to adopt assurmptions that the Directors beleve
are generally in ine with comparable companies If the future return

on equities applied to the pension scheme labilties, 15 lower than
anticipated or if the difference between actual inflation and the actual
Increase In pensionable salanes 15 greater than that assurned or if

long term interest rates were lower than assurmed or If the average life




expectancy of pensioners increases then the pension deficit would be
greater than currently stated in the balance sheet Where the pension
obligation s nciuded 1n the balance sheet at the nei present value of
the minimum funding payments then the impact on the balance sheet
of changes in these assumptions is reduced

Property leases

The Group 1s party (o a number of leases on properties that are no
tonger required for 1rading. Wrilst every effort 1s made 1o profitably sub
let these praperues it 15 not always possible Where a lease 1s anerous to
the Group a provision 15 established for the difference between armounts
contractually payable to the property owner and to local authonties and
amounts expected to be receved from the tenant (if any) for the perod
up unbl the pont it 1 judged that the lease will no longer be onerous
The Direclors believe that ther esurmates which are based upon the
current state of the UK property market are apprapnate However it1s
possible that t wil take longer (or in some cases less time) to dispose of
leases than they anticipate As a resuli, the provisions may be rnis stated

but In the opirvon of the Directars this is unhikely 1o be matenial

Insurance provisions

The Group has been substantally self insured since 2001 The

nature of nsurance claims 15 that they frequently take many vears o
fully crystallise therefare the Directors have to estimate the value of
provisions to hold in the balance sheeat n respect of histoncal daims
Under the guidance of the Groups instrance advisors, the value of
incurred claims 15 esirnated using the Generalised Cape Cod Method
The provision 1s deterrnined by deducting the value of claims settled to
date from the estimated leve! of claims incurred Whilst the Generalised
Cape Cod Method 18 an insurance industry standard methodology 1t
relies on histoncal irends to determine the level of expected claims

To the extent that the estimates are inaccurate the Group may be
underprovided but in the opinian of the Directors any under provision 1s
unlkely to be matenal

4 Revenue
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
{Restated)

£ Cm £m cm
Sale of goods 51487 48449 - -
Management charges - - 80 79
Dridends from subsidiaries - - 1210 742
51487 48449 1290 821
Other operating income 49 43 - -
Finance incorme 37 27 40 37
51573 48519 1330 858

Like-for-like sales are a measure of underlying sales performance for two successive periods Branches contnbute te Uke-for-like sales once they have
been trading for more than 12 months Revenue included in like-for-like 1s for the equivatent imes in both years being compared When branches
close revenue is excluded from the prior year figures for the months equivalent to the post closure period in the current year

5 Profit
a Operating profit

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
{Restated)
£m £m £m £m
Revenue 51487 48449 1290 821
Cost of sales (3,6166) (33811) - -
Gross profit 156321 14638 1290 821
Selling and distnbution costs (941 5) {507 8) - -
Administrative expenses (2807) {275 4) (26 1) (198)
Profit on dispasat of properties 174 150 -
Other aperaung income 49 43 - ;
Share of rasults of associate (25) (03) - -
Operating profit 3297 2596 1029 623
Add back exceptional items - 87 - R
Add back amortisation of intangible asseis 179 174 -
Adsted aperating profit 3476 3257 1029 623
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5 Profit continued

Operating profit has been arnved at aiter charging / (crediting)

__THEGROWP THE COMPANY

2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m Cm
Movernent of provisions against inventores (30) (04) - -
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 36196 33B15 - .
Pension costs included in cost of sales 05 05 - .
Pension costs in administration expenses 67 41 03 04
Pension costs in selling and distribution cosls 149 126 - -
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 713 694 - -
Starf costs 6318 6051 121 115
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment (181) {171 - -
Rental ncome (50) (42) - -
Hire of vehicles plant and machinery 358 340 - -
Other leasing charges - propearty 1841 1756 - -
Amorusation of intangble assets 179 17 4 - -
Auditor s remuneration for audit services 05 04 01 01

During the year the Group incurred the following casts for services provided by the Companys auditor IHE GROUP
2013 2012
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Companys auditor for the audit of the Cornpanys annual accounts 107 106
Fees payable to the Companys auditor for the audit of the Cornpanys subsidiarnies 335 325

Fees pad to the Companys auditor for other services

Audit related assurance services 94 73
Other services relating to taxauon - advisary 94 56
630 560

Audit related assurance services includes £21 328 (2012 £18 000) which was paid to the auditor by the Travis Perkins Pension and Dependents

Benefit Scherne

A deschption of the work of the Audit Cornrmittee 15 set out in the Audit Commuttee repart on pages 64 to 67 and includes an explanation of how
auditor objectwity and independence 1s safeguarded when the auditor provides non audit services

b Adjusted operating margin

General Specialist Plurabing
Merchanting Merchanting Consumer and Heating Unallocated Group
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated) (Restated)
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m
Revenue 15784 14567 6603 80386 1,1798 11525 11,7302 16321 - - 57487 48449
Segrnent result 1764 1673 302 313 580 658 808 458 (157) (108) 3297 2996
Amortisation of
intangible assets - - - - 49 49 130 125 - . 179 174
Exceptional items - - - 02 - (60) - 145 - - - 87
Adjusted segment
result 1764 1673 362 315 629 847 938 728 (157) (1086) 3476 3257
Adjusted operating
margin 112% 115% 46% 52% 53% 56% 54% 45% - - €68% 67%
Segmental information including the defimtion of segment result is shown in note 6
¢ Adjusted profit before and after tax
THE GROUP
2013 2012
£m £m
{Restated)
Prafit before tax 3126 2092
Exceptional iterms (94) (308}
Amortisation of intangible assets 179 17 4
Adjusted profit before tax 3211 2858
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5 Profit continued
THE GROUP
2013 2012
£m £m i
(Restated) =
Profit after tax 2647 2487 g
Exceptional iterms (94) (308) L
Amortisation of intangible assets 1790 17 4 I'<—(
Tax on exceptional nerns and amaertisation (36) ®1) —
Income effect of reduction In corparation tax rate on deferred iax {201) (13 3) 2
Adjusted profit after tax 2485 2159 <
Q
d Excepticnal tems %
2013 2012 =
£m m o
BSS integration costs - (147}
Onerous lease provision release - 60
Toolstation nvestment far value adjustment - 353
Toolstanon consideration farr value adjustrnent 94 42
94 308

In accordance with IAS 39 the contingent consideration payabie in respect of Toolstation has been reassessed at 31 Decemnber 2013 and as a result
the discounted amount previously recognised of £470m (2011 £51 2m) has been reducad to £37 6m {2012 £47 Om) with the difference of
£84m (2012 £4 2m) baing credited to Income staternent as exceptional investment Income

The Group incurred £14 7m of exceptional operating charges in 2012 as a result of the programme to integrate BSS calleagues, systerns and
processes into the Group

In 2012 the Group released £6 Cm through operating profit as an exceptional itern for onerous lease provisions that were no longer required
because properties had been sublet

In 2012 the Group recegnised £35 3m of exceptional far value gains in investrment income when the requirements of IFRS 3 {(2008) Business
Combinations were agplied to the investments held in Toolstation This acquisition resulted in the Groups existing 30% associate interest being re-
measured to its farr value at the acquisivon date The exceptional item recogrised by the Group was £2 Tm higher than the Company due to the
revaluation of the intra-group toan

To enable readers of the financial statements to obtain a clear understanding of underlying trading the Directors have shown the exceptional tems
separately in the group income statement

e Prior penod restatement

1AS 19 (revised 2011} and the related consequentral amendments have impacted the accounting for the Groups defined benefit schemes by
replacmg the combined inlerest cost on lrabiliies and expected return on plan assets with a riet interest charge on the net defined benefit iability Prior
year comparatives have been restated with an increase in the net finance cast of £13 2m in the year ended 31 December 2012 Administration
expenses for the schernes totalling £0 9m have been deducted from operating profit for the year ended 371 December 2012 and actuanal losses
in the statement of other camprehensive Income have been reduced by £14 1m for the same penod The combined net deficit of the schemes at
31 Decemnber 1s unaffected There 1s no impact on cash flows

Following recent guidance from the FRRP regarding the treatment of & schedule of contnbutions in relation ta a minimu m funding requirement
under IFRIC 14 the Group has reconsidered the approprate accounting treatment for its pension fund obligations In respect of the Trawis Perkins
defined benefit pension scheme the pension obligation in the balance sheet has been restated at 1 January 2012 and 31 Decernber 2012 with
consequent adjusiments to deferred tax For the BSS scheme no restaternent 15 required however the 31 December 2013 ¢losing balance sheet
position 1s mpacted Details of the liabilites ansing in respect of mimimum funding requirements are set out In note 28

Further details of the irmpact of the prior penod restaternents are given in Lthe tables below The impact of 1AS 18 {revised 2011) s resincted to
the income statament and statement of comprehensive Income. The impact of the reinterpratation of IFRIC 14 affects the balance sheet staternent
of comprehensive ncome and statement of changes in equity

I Impact an income statement
Year ended 31 Decernber 2012

As previously stated Prior penod adpstment As restated

£m m £m

Revenue 48449 - 48449
Adjusted operating profit 3266 (09) 3257
Exceptional items ang amorusation (26 1) - 261
Operating profit 3005 (09) 2996
Exceptional investment incame 3585 - 3385
Finance incorme 138 (111} 27
Finance costs (405) 21} (426)
Profit before tax 3133 (141) 2692
Tax (537) 32 (505}
Profit after tax 2596 (109) 2487
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5 Profit continued

1 Irpact on adjusted profit before tax

Year ended 37 Decermnber 2012

As previously stated Prior penod adjustment As restated
£m £m €
Profit before tax 3133 (141 2992
Exceptional termns and amortisation (134) - (13 4)
Adjusted profit before tax 2999 (14 1) 2858
n fmpact on adjusted profit after tax
Profit after tax 2586 (109) 2487
Exceplional items and amortisation {(328) - (328)
Adjusted profit after tax 2268 (109) 2159
v Impact on statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 Decermnber 2012
As previously stated Priot penod adjustrnent As testated
£m £m £m
Profit after tax 2596 (109) 2487
Iltems that will net be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes {458) 237 (221)
Deferred tax rate change (55) (16} 71
Income taxes relating to tems not reclassified 104 (53) 51
(409) 168 (241)
lterns that may be reclassified subsequently 1o profit and loss 35 35
Total comprehensive iIncome 2222 59 2281
v lmpact on earnings per share
Year ended 31 Decembe: 2012
As previously stated Prior peniad adjustment As restated
Basic 108 9p (46)p 104 3p
Adjusted basic 951p {48)p a0 6p
Diluted 1050p {44)p approx
vi Impact on group balance sheet
Year ended 31 December 2012
As previously stated Prior penod adjustment As restated
£m m £m
Deferred tax hability 850 (159) 691
Retirement benefit obligation 531 668 1259
Other labilities 19050 - 18050
Total labilities 20491 509 21000
Accurnulated profits 15138 (525) 14613
Other capiial and reserves 7943 - 7943
Total equity and Labilities 43572 (16) 43556
Year ended 31 Decernber 2011
As previcusly stated Prior peniod adjustrment As restated
£m £m £m
Deferred tax labiity a7 4 (196) 778
Retirernent benefit obligation 650 587 1237
Other liabilities 19210 - 19210
Total labilities 20B34 391 21225
Accumulated profits 13356 (58 4) 12772
Other capital and reserves 7722 - 7722
Total equity and hataliies 41912 (193) 41719

As requrred by IFRS B the operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports about companents of the Group that are regularly
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6 Business and geographical segments

reviewed by the Chief Executive to assess therr performance All four divisions sell bullding materals to a wide range of customers none of which are
dominant and operate almost exclusively in the United Kingdom and consequently no gecgraphical snformation 1s presented

Segment rasult represents the profit eamed by each segrment without allocation of certain central costs, finance income and costs and income tax
expense Unallocated segment assets and liabiliies comprise financial instruments current and deferred taxation cash and borrowings and pension

scheme assets and Labilites

Inter segmeny sales are elmmated
During 2013 and 2012 there were no impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses recogrised in profit or loss or in equity n any of the

reportable segments

2013
General Specialst Plumbing and

Merchanting Merchanting Consurner Heating Unallocated Ebminations Consolidated

£m £m £m £m em £m

Revenue 15784 6603 1,1798 1,7302 - - 51487

Resutt
Segment result 176 4 302 580 808 (157) 3297
Exceptional investment income - - 94 - - - a4
Finance ncome - - - 37 - 37
Finance costs - - - - (302) - (302)
Profit before taxation 1764 302 67 4 808 (42 2) - 3126
Taxation - - - - (479) (47 9)
Profit for the year 1764 302 67 4 aos (901) 2647
Segment assets 2,2465 4972 16965 1,2180 967 (1,311 2) 4,4437
Segment liabilities (724 3) (14 8) {413 4} (2397) (1,847 5) 1,311 2 (1,928 5)
Consolidated net assels 16222 482 4 1,2831 9783 (1,7508) - 25152
Capital expenditure 838 68 127 82 - - 1115
Amortisation - - 49 130 - - 179
Depreciation 351 91 174 97 - - 713
2012 (Restaled)

General Speciabst Plurnbing and Unaltocated Consolidated

Merchanting Merchanting Cansuimer Heating (Restated) Elirminations [Restated)

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 14567 6036 11525 16321 - 48449

Result

Segment result 167 3 313 658 458 {(108) 2896
Exceptional investment Income 395 . 395
Finance income - 27 27
Finance costs - (4286) (426)
Profit before taxaton 167 3 313 1053 458 {505) 2992
Taxation - - - - (509) (505)
Profit for the year 1673 313 1053 458 {(1010) 2487
Segment assets 24217 4697 16534 11666 1777 (12335) 43556
Segment habilities (6597) (137) (4155) (2324) (20122} 12335 (21000)
Censolidated net assets 14620 4560 12379 9342 (18345) - 22556
Exceptional iterns - 02 (60) 145 - - 87
Capital expenditure 442 115 178 110 - - B45
Amortisation - - 49 125 . - 174
Depreciation 336 83 i78 97 - - 694
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6 Business and geographical segments continued
Unallocated segment assets and liabilities comprnse the following,
2013 2012
(Restated)
£m £m
Assels
Interest In associates 73 67
Financsal instrurments 93 255
Cash and cash equivalents 798 1391
Unallocated corporate assets 03 64
867 1777
Liabilities
Financial mstruments (63) (75)
Tax habilities (732} (748)
Deferred tax hablities (612) (691)
Retirerment benefit obligations (714) {(1259)
Interest beanng loans borrowings and loan notes (427 4) {6813)
Intra group creditars (1,186 6) (1124 2)
Unallecated corporate liabilines (21 4) (194)
(1,847 5) (20122)
7 Staff costs
a The average monthly number of persons employed (including executive directors)
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
No No No No
Sales 15,747 15865 -
Distnbution 3,350 3042 - -
Administration 2,840 2725 46 50
21,937 21632 46 50
b Aggregate remuneration
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Wages and salaries 5652 5415 76 65
Share-based payments (nate 8) 137 152 38 43
Social security costs 529 48 4 07 07
Other pension costs (note 28b) 221 172 03 04
6539 6223 124 119
8 Share-based payments
The following disclosures relaie to share option and SAYE grants made after 7 Novernber 2002
The Black Scholes aption pricing model 1s used to calculate the fair value of the eptions and the amount to be expensed The probability of the
performance conditions being achieved was included in the farr value calculations The inputs into the model for aptions granted in the year expressed
as weighted averages are as follows
2013 2012
Executive Nil price Executive MNil price
ophons SAYE options options SAYE options
Share price at grant date {(pence) 1,463 1,648 1,373 912 1114 1062
Option exercise price (pence) 1,453 1,274 - 806 818
Volatility (%) 323% 363% 330% 530% 384% 409%
Qptian bfe (years) 30 35 30 30 33 30
Risk free interest rate (%) 06% 10% 05% 10% 04% 05%
Expected dwidends as a dividend yield (%) 22% 20% 23% 17% 23% 23%
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8 Share-based payments continued

Volatility was based en historic share prices aver a pernod equal to the vesting penod Option Life used in the model has been based on options
being exercised in accordance with histonical patterns For executive share options the vesting peniod 1s 3 years If aptions remain unexercised after
a period of 10 years from the date of grant these options expire Cphions are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group befare options vest SAYE
options vest after 3 or 5 years and expire 3% or 5% years after the daie of grant

The nsk-free interest rate of returr 1s the yield on zero-coupon UK Governmervt bonds on a term consistent with the vesting penod Dividends
used are based on actual dvidends where data 15 known and future dvidends estimated using a dividend caver of three times (within the Board's
target range)

The expecied We of options used in the model has been adjusted based upon management's best estimate for the effect of non-transferability
exercise restrichons and behavioural considerations

SAYE aptions were granted on 27 Septernber 2013 The estimated farr value of the shares under aption at that date was £8 Om for the Group
and £0 1m for the Company

Shares were granted under the share matching scherme on 14 March 2013 and 17 June 2013 The estimated farr value of the shares under
aption at those dates was £5 2m far the Group and £3 0m for the Cornpany

Shares were granted under the performance share plan on 11 March 2013 19 Aprl 2013 23 August 2013 and 18 October 2013 The
astimated (ar value of the shares under option at those dates was £8 6m for the Group and £3 2rn for the Company

Shares were granted under the deferred share bonus plan on 2 Apnl 2013 The estrmated fair value of the shares at that date was £O6m for
the Group and £0 2m far the Company

The Group charged £13 7m (2012 £152m) and the Company charged £3 8m (2012 £4 3m) to the income statement in respect of equity-
settled share-based payrnent transactions
The number and wetghted average exercise pnce of share options 15 as {ollows

THE GROUP
2013 2012

Weghted Number Nurnber Weighted Nurnber

average of of nd price average Number of nil price

exercise price oplions oplins exercise price of cplions options

4] No No p No No

QOutstanding at the beginring of the year 695 7718 5,699 636 8050 4875
Forfeited during the year 763 {503) {598) 598 (536) {92)
Exercised dunng the year 600 (2,368) (1.434) 552 (1379) (500)
Granted dunng the year 1,287 1,373 1,104 839 1583 1416
Outstanding at the end of the year 856 6,222 4,771 695 7718 5699
Exercisable at the end of the year 794 662 1,193 792 1227 1540

Share options were exercised on a regutar basis throughout the year The weighted average share price for cpuons exercised durnng the year was
1606 pence (2012 1037 pence)
Details of the options outstanding at 31 December 201 3 were as follows

THE GROUP
2013 2012

Executive Nil price Executve Nil price

options SAYE aptions oplions SAYE options

Range of exercise prices (pence) 201-1,745 442-1274 - 2011611 442-1114 -
Weighted average exercise price (pence) 963 837 - 880 651 -
Number of shares (thousands) 893 5329 4771 1499 6220 5699
‘We:ghted average expectad remaining Wife (years) 09 20 09 07 21 0%
Weighted average contraciual remaining life (years) 51 25 75 49 26 77

If all 09 million outstanding executive eptions vest and then are exercised on the date of vesting or in the case of SAYE all 5 3 million shares are
acquired on the first possible day 6 2 millilon of shares will be 1ssued for a consideration of £53 2 millon in the years ending 31 December

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
No Value No Value No Value No Value No Value
m m m £m m £m m £m m &m
QOptions 07 59 a1 13 01 14 - - -
SAYE 21 133 12 99 i5 156 cz2 17 03 41

The table above shows theoretical amounts For the Company to recewve the cash indicated in the periods shown the following must occur

= All perfarmance conditions on executive share options must be fully met

= Options must be exercised on the day they vest (option holders generally have a 7 year period post vesting to exercise the option)
« The share price al the exerase date for SAYE options must exceed the exercise pnice and every holder mwst exercise

« All option/SAYE holders must rermain with the Company or leave on good terms

If none of the requirements are met then the Company will recewve no consideration
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8 Share-based payments continued

The number and weighted average exeraise price of share options 15 as follows

THE COMPANY

2013 2012
Weighted Nurnber Weighted Number
average Number of ril price average Number of nil price
exercise price of opticnis oplions exercise price of options options
D No No p No No
In thousands of options
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 756 300 2,837 606 111 2197
Forfeited duning the year 630 (8) (200Q) 746 (86} -
Exercised durnng the year 695 {(126) (796) 372 (44) (15)
Transferred from other group companies - - - 746 317 80
Granted during the year 795 20 489 918 12 575
QOutstanding at the end of the year 873 186 2331 756 300 2837
Exercisable at the end of the year 790 125 727 784 219 126
Details of the options outstanding at 31 Decernbier 2013 were as follows
THE COMPANY
2013 2012
Executive Nil price Executve Nil price
options SAYE aptions options SAYE options
Range of exercise prices (pence) 201-1,745  442-1274 - 201-1611  442-1114 -
Weighted average exercise price {pence) 880 841 - B06 548 -
Number of shares (thousands) 152 34 2,331 242 58 2837
Weighted average expected remaining hife (years) 04 19 08 03 15 07
Weighted average contractual rermaining life (years] 37 24 74 40 20 75
9 Net finance costs
THE GROUP
2013 2012
(Restated)
£m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts* (194) (247)
Interest on obligations under finance leases 13) (11)
Unwinding of discounts - property provisions {(15) (25)
Unwinding of discounts - SPV loan (25) 25)
Amorusation of cancellation payment for swaps accounted for as cash flow hedges 08) (41)
Qther interest {18) (17)
Other finance cosis ~ pension scheme 21) 2"
Net loss on re measurement of denvatives at farr value (08) (39)
Finance costs (302) (426)
Amortisation of cancellation receipt for swap accounted for as far value hedge 10 10
Net gain on re-measuremnent of dervatives at farr value 19 13
Interest recevabla 08 04
Finance incorne 37 27
Net finance costs (26 5) (399)
‘Includes €1 5m (2012 £1 2m) of amortised bank finance charges
THE GROUP
2013 2012
{Restated)
£m £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts {19 4) (24 7)
Amortsed bank finance charges 15 12
Other interest (18) (172)
Interest receivable 08 04
Interest for covenant purposes (189) (24 8)
Adjusted interest caver for covenant purpcses 18 3x 131x
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S Net finance costs continued

Adpsted interest cover s calculated by dviding adjusted aperating profit of £347 6m (2012 £325 7m) less £10m (2012 €1 5m) of speaifically

excluded IFRS adjustments by the interest for covenant purposes

THE GROUP
2013 2012
{Restated)
£m £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (194) (247)
Interest on ebligations under finance leases (13 (i1}
Unwinding of discounts SPV loan {(25) (25)
Loan note imeresi (iIncluded in other interest) {02) 02
Interest for fixed charge ratio purposes (23 4) (285)

The unwinding of the discounts charge anses principally from the property prowisions created in 2008 and the lability to the pension scherme

associated with the SPV (note 28)

THE COMPANY

2013 2012
£m £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (19 4) (259)
interesi payable 10 group Lompames (22 4) {(1586)
Amoarusauon of cancellation payment for swaps accounted for as cash flow hedges (08) (41
Cther interest (18) 17
Net loss on re measurament of dervatives at fair value {08) (39)
Finance costs (45 2) {508}
Amgrusation of cancellation receipt for swap accounted for as far value hedge 10 10
Net gain on re measurement of denvatives at far value 19 13
Interest recevable from group companies 08 10
Interest recevable 03 04
Finance income 40 37
Net finance costs (412) 471
10 Tax
a Tax charge in income statement
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2013 2012
Pre-exceptional Exceptional Total Pre exceptionat Exceptional Total
items iterns Iterns items (Restated)
{Restated)
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax
- current yaar 689 - 689 680 (22) 658 (15 4) (435)
~ prior year {10) - (10 (11) - (11 03 25
Total current tax 679 - 679 669 (22) 647 {(151) (110)
Deferied tax
- curent year 11 201) (190) {16) {133) {14 9) 10 (2 3)
- prior year {(10) - {(10) Q7 - 07 - 01
Total deferred tax 01 (201) (200) (09 (133) (14 2) 10 (22)
Total tax charge 680 (201) 479 660 (155) 505 (141} (132)
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10 Tax conunued

The differences batween the total tax charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corparation iax 1o the
profit before tax are as follows

THE GROUP
2o 2012 (Restated)

£m % £m %
Profit before tax 3126 2992
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate 728 233 733 245
Tax effect of expenses / credits that are not deductible /

taxable i determining taxable profit 14 04 11 04

Depreciation of non qualifying property 21 07 28 09
Exceptional valuation gain nat taxable - - (86) 27)
Exceptional farr value movement not taxable (22) (07) (Wl)] 03
Deferred tax raie change (201) (84) (133) (44}
Praperty sales (40) (13) (36) (12)
Prior peried adjustrment (21) (07) 02 Q1
Tax expense and effective tax rate for the year 479 153 505 171

The tax rate for the year of 23 25% 15 a blended rate of 24% up to 1 Apnl 2013 and 23% thereafter The tax charge for 2013 includes an
exceptional credit of £20 1m ansing fram the reduction In the rate of UK corporation tax from 23% to 21% en 1 Apnt 2014 and a further reduction
of 1% 10 20% from 1 April 2015

b Tax charge in staternert of cormprehensive income
In addition to the amounts chargad to the ncorme statement the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised In other comprehensive
ncome

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated)
£m £m £m £m

Deferred tax
ltems that may be reclassified
Cash flow hedge movernenit (0 3) {09) (03) {09)
Items that may not be reclassified
Deferred tax rate change on actuanal mavement (115) (71) - -
Actuanal mavermnent (70 51 - -

(188) (29) (03) (0%)

¢ Tax credited directly to equity

In addinon to the amounts charged 1o the income staternent and other comprehensive income the following amounts retating to tax have been
recognised directly in equity

—_THEGRQUP __ THECOMPARY
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m Em £m
Current tax
Excess tax deductions related 1o share-based
payments on exerased aptions 104 14 - -
Deferred tax
Rate change on revaluation reserve 13 09 - -
Share based payments 53 29 53 30
170 52 53 30

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013




10 Tax continued

THE COMPANY

2013 2012
£m % £m %
Profit before tax 711 526
Intercompany dwvidends (121 0) (74 2}
Loss before tax and dvidends received (499) (216}
Tax at the UK carporation tax rate {(116) 233 (53) 245
Tax effect of expenses / credits that are not deductible /
taxable vy deterrmiming taxable profy (15} 30 (17 79
Prior penod adjustment 03 (08) 26 {(120)
Deferred tax rate change 09 (18) 04 (19)
Exceptional valuation gain not taxable - - (82) 380
Exceptional fair value movernent not taxable (22) 44 (10) 46
Tax credit and effectve iax rate for the year {147} 283 (132} 611
11 Earnings per share
a Basic and diluted earnings per share
2013 2092
(Restated)
£m £m
Earnings
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share
being net profit atinbutable to equity holders of the Parent Campany 2646 2487
No No
Weighted average number of shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 240829833 238388160
Dilutive effect of share options on patential ordinary shares 9,428,138 88091086
Weighted average number of ardinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 250,257,971 247197 266

16833 (2012 692 839) share cptions had an exercise price In excess of the average market value of the shares dunng the year As aresult these

share options were excluded from the calculauen of diluted earnings per share

b Adjusted earnings per share

Adjusted earnings per share 1s calculated by excluding the effect of the exceptional iterns and amartisation from earnings

2013 2012
(Restated)
£m £m
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share
being net prefit attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company 2546 2487
Excepuonal terns (9 4) {308)
Armortisation of intangble assets 179 17 4
Tax on amortisation of Itangble assets (36) (39)
Tax on exceptional tems - {22)
Effect of reduction in corporation tax rate on deferred tax (201) (13 3)
Adjusted earnings 2494 2159
Adjusted earrings per share 103 6p 90 6p
Adyusted diluted earrings per share 997p 873p
12 Dividends
Amounts were recognised in the financial staternents as disinbutions to equity shareholders as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Final dwvidend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 17 0p (2011 13 5p) per ordinary share 409 321
Interim divdend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 100p (2012 80p) per ordinary share 242 191
Total drvidend recognised dunng the year 651 512
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12 Dividends continued

The Campany 15 proposing a final dividend of 21 Op in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013
Adjusted dvidend caver of 3 3x (2012 3 6x) 15 calculated by dividing adjusted earnings per share (note 11) of 1036p (2012 {restated) S0 6p)
by the total dividend for the year of 31 0p (2012 250p)
There are no Income tax consequences In respect of the dvidends declared but not recognised in the financial statements
The dwidends declared for 2013 at 31 Decernber 2013 and for 2012 at 371 December 2012 were as follows

2013 2012
Pence Pence
Interim paid 100 80
Finat proposed 210 170
Total dividend for the year 310 250
The anticipated cash payment In respact of the proposed final dwvidend 1s £51 1m (2012 £407m)
13 Goodwill
THE GROUP
General Specialist Plumbing and
Merchanting Merchanting Cansumer Heating Total
Em £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 4656 1451 7283 3672 17062
Recognised on acquisitions during the year 06 - 1007 - 1013
At 1 January 2013 466 2 1451 8290 3672 1,8075
Recognised on acquisitions during the year 02 - a5 57 64
At 31 December 2013 466 4 1451 8295 3729 1,8139

Cash Generating Units

There has been no impairment ta the carrying value of goodwill The Company has no goodwill

The Directors consider that each branch in the Group is an individual Cash Generating Unit { CCU) Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives have been allocated and monitared for impairment testing purpoeses to groups of indwidual CGUs within the same brand The following
analyses goodwill and intangible assets wath indefinte useful lves by CGLU grouping

CGU Grouping
2013 2012
Intangibles Intangbles
[Note 14) Gonduwlt Total {Note 14) Goodwill Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Specialist Merchanting
CCr - 436 436 436 436
Keyline - 1015 1015 1015 1015
Generalist Merchanting
Traws Perking - 466 4 466 4 466 2 4862
Consumer
Tile Giant - 246 246 - 246 246
Toolstation - 1034 1034 - 1029 1029
Wickes 1625 7015 8640 1625 015 8640
Plumbing and Heating
PTS 409 1337 1746 409 1337 1746
BSS Industrial 493 278 771 493 278 771
City Plurmnbing Supplies - 1754 1754 - 1754 1754
Plumbnation - 17 17 - -
Solfex - 40 40 - - -
F&P 85 303 386 85 303 388
Other 39 - 39 39 - 39
2651 18139 20790 2651 18075 20726
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13 Goodwill continued

Measuring Recoverable Amounts

The Group tests goodwill ang other non-maonetary assets with indefinite useful lives for impairment annually or mare frequently If there are

indications thatimpaurrnent may have cccurred The recoverable amounts of the goodwill and other non monetary assets with indefinite useful lives

are determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions for the value in use caleulations are thase regarding the discount rates growth

rates and like-for-lke rnarket volurne changes which impaci sales and therefore cash flow projections Management estimates pre-tax discount

rates that reflect current market assessments of the ime value of money and the nisks speafic to the CGU groupings that are not reflected n the

cash flow projections
Ai the beginning and end of the {inancial year the recoverable amount of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinte useful lves in all segments

was In excess of therr book value In the absence of a binding agreement to sell the assets and active reference market on which farr value can be

determined the recoverable amount of the geodwill and intangible assets with ndefinite useful lives was determined accarding 1o value In use The

Drrectars calculations have shown that no impairments have occurred The key vanables applied 1o the value in use calculations were

» Cash flow forecasts which were dervad from the most recent board approved five-year strategic plans

+ The sales market volume assumptions underlying the cash flow forecasts are the Directors estimates of likely future changes based an histaric
performance (excluding future investrment and enhancernents) and the cusrent outlook for both the UK economy and the UK bulding matenals
ingustry This1s viewed as the key operating assumption because the state of the bulding matenals market deterrmines she Directors approach to
margin and cost maintenance

+ A nsk adjusted pre-tax discount rate 15 caleulated by reference to the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of the Group. For 2013 the
discount rate was 87% (2012 88%) which 1s not significantly different for any indiidual CGU or CGU grouping That 1s because each CGU
operates in the same market sellng the same product types therefore the nsk profiles are not dissimilar

+ For 2013 cash flows beyond the five-year plan (2019 and beyond) have been deterrmined using a growth rate of 2 1% which 1s the average
long term forecast GDP growth outiined in the Economic and Fiscal Outlook report proguced by the Cfice for Budget Responsiblity in Decernber
2013 The Directors believe this 1s the most appropnate ndicator of long-tarm growth rates that 1s avatable (2012 growth rate 2 1%)

Sensitivity of results to changes in assumptions
Whilst managerment believe the assumptions are realistic 1t 15 possible that an imparment would be identified If any of the above key assumptions
were changed significantly For instance factars which could cause an impanment are
= Significant underperformance relative to the forecast reslis
« Changes to the way the assels are used or changes to the strategy for the business
« A detenoration in the UK economy
The impairment review calculations are based upon anticipated discounted future cash flows For most of the CGU groupings given the prudence
already bullt nto the Groups five-year plans and the level of headroom they show the Directors do not enwvisage reasanably pessible changes ta
the: key operating assumptions that are sufficient 1o generate a different outcome to the Imparment calculations undertaken However for the CGU
groupings bsted in the table below this 1s not the case as the Directors consider that reasonably possible changes in key assumpiions could result In
discounted future cash flows being insufficient to allow full recovery of the canying value of the CGUs goodwill and other intangible assets

The Directors have conducted a sensitvity analysis to determine the specific value for each assumption ali other assumphions remaining the
same that would result n the carrying value of geodwill and other intangible: assets equaling their recoverable amounts and these are shown 1n
the tables below

31 December 2013
Like for Uke market valume

CcGU (Average % per annum) Discount rate % Long term growth rate

grouping Headroom Assumptlion Sensitvity Assumplion Sensitaty Assumption Sensitraty
Tile Giant £20m 07% (1 3)% 97% 145% 21% (65)%
Wickes £194m 18% 07% 97% 112% 21% {01)1%
PTS £37m 08% {01)% 97% 112% 21% (01)%
F&P £32m 08% {19)% 97% 152% 21% (7 4)%

31 December 2012
Like for like market volume

cGU {Average % per annum) Discount rate % Long term growth rate

grouping Headroom Assumption Sensitmty Assumplion Sensiinaty Assumption Sensitnaty
Tile Giant £24m 00% (27)% 88% 139% 21% (60)%
Wickes £146m 08% 02% 88% 99% 21% 07%
PTS £64m (16)% (28)% 88% 110% 21% (11)%
F&P £38m 18% (26)% 88% 128% 21% {(41)%

The sales market volume assumption 15 the average annual change incorporated in five-year plans of each CGU grouping
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14 Other intangible assets
THE GROUP

Computer Customer
Brand software relationships Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2012 2687 84 1325 4696
Recognised on acquisition 295 87 151 533
At 31 December 2012 2982 171 147 6 4629
Recognised on acquisiion (note 29) 29 - - 29
At 31 December 2013 3011 171 1476 4658
Amortisation
At 1 January 2012 03 81 123 207
Charged 10 operating profit in the year 18 09 147 17 4
At 31 Decemnber 2012 21 90 270 381
Charged to operating profit in the year 20 09 150 179
At 31 Decernber 2013 41 g9 420 560
Net book value
At 31 Decernber 2013 2970 72 1056 4098
At 31 December 2012 2961 81 1206 4248
2013 22
£m £
Cost of brands with an indefinite useful Ufe {note 13) 2651 2651
Cost of brands being amortised 360 331
3011 2882

Where a brand which 1s a leading brand in 1is sector and has significant growth prospects has not been established for a significant penod of time
the Oirectors do nat have sufficient ewidence to support a contention that it will have an indefinite useful Ufe Accordingly for Toclstation Plumbnation
Solfex and certain product related brands the Directors have decided it is appropriate 1o amortise their cosl over their estimated useful lives The
useful lives of those brands being amortised ranges from 10 to 20 years while the remaining lives range from 7 to 17 years

The Directors consider that the other brands which are also all leading brands in ther sectors wath significant histones and significant growth
prospects have an indefinite useful life They are reviewed annually for imparment detalls of impairment testing are shown in note 13 but no
imnpairment was identified in either year

Acquired customer relationships are amortised over their estimated useful ives which range from 5 te 15 years The remaining lives of amottised
custorner relationships range from 2 to 12 years

The Company has no intangble assets
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15 Property, plant and equiprment

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Long Short Plant and Plant and
Freehold leases leases equipment Total equipment
£m £m £m tm £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2012 3012 281 1345 4868 9506 07
Additions 100 - =14 655 845
Additions from acquired businesses - 45 32 77
Reclassificatians 0% (09) - - -
Dispasals {35) . (30) {44 1} {506)
At 1 January 201 3 3086 272 1450 5114 9922 07
Additicns 323 10 83 689 1115 01
Additions from acaowred busingsses 03 - - 01 04 .
Disposals (65) - 71 {316) (452) (01)
At 31 December 2013 3347 282 1472 5488 1,0589 a7
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012 389 54 487 2850 3880 05
Charged this year 48 06 114 528 694
Disposals 04 - (13) {419) {436)
At 1 January 2013 431 60 588 3059 4138 05
Charged this year 52 05 116 540 713 a1
Disposals 09 - (64) (28 8) (361} -
At 31 December 2013 47 4 65 6540 3311 4480 06
Net book value
At 31 Decermber 2013 2873 217 B32 2177 6099 01
At 31 December 2012 2655 212 862 2055 5784 02
The cost element of the fixed assets carrying value ts analysed as follows
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Long Shart Plant and
Freehold leases leases equipment Total Total
£m £m £€m £m £m £rm
At valuation 589 61 19 - 679 -
At cost 2748 221 1453 5488 9910 07
3347 282 1472 5488 1,0589 07

Thase freehaold and leasehold propertes included at valuation in the cansolidated balance sheet were revalued at thew open market valua an an
exsting use basis. The valuations were performed as at 371 December 1998 by an independent professional valuer Lambert Smith Hampton

Cansultant Surveyars and Valuers

Included wathin freehold property 1s land with a value of £1338m (2012 £117 7m) which is not deprecrated No assets are pledged as security

for the Groups liabilities

The carrying amount of assets held under finance leases 1s analysed as foliows

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Long Shart Plant and
\eases eases eguiprment Total Towal
£m £m £m £m £m
2013 08 83 61 152 -
2012 08 94 70 172
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15 Property, plant and equipment continued

Cormparable amounis determuined according 1o the histencal cost convention

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Long Short Plant and
Freehold leases leases equipment Total Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost 268 1558 5487 1,064 1 07
Accurnulated depreciation (76) (700} (3310) (4728) (06)
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 192 858 2177 5916 01
At 31 December 2012 186 88a 2055 5578 02
16 Investment property
THE GROUP
2013 2012
£mn £m
Cost
At 1 January 05 05
Accurnulated depreciation
At 31 Decernber o1) 01
Nat book value
At 31 Decermnber 04 04

canying value
The Company has no investiment property

17 Investments

a Interest in associates

Investrnent property rental income totalled nil {2012 £rul)
No external vatuat:on has been performed and therefore the Direciors have estimated that the fair value of investment property equates to its

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Equity investment 06 15 06 07
Loan facility 91 53 67 53
Interest on loan facility 04 02 04 02
Share of losses (28) (03) - -
73 67 77 62

b Investment in subsidianes

Travis Perkins plc holds & 49% investment in The Mosaic Tile Company Limited and a 25% investment 1n Rinus Roofing Lirmited

THE COMPANY

2013 2012

£m €m

Al 1 January 35899 28898
Additions 159 7023
Adjusiment to consideration on acquistticn of Tile Giant - (22)
At 31 December 36058 358499
Prowvision for impairment (170) (170)
Net book value at 31 December 35888 35729
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17 Investments continued

The principal operating subsidianes of the Group at 31 December 2013 are as follows

Subsidiary

Trawis Perkins Trading Company Limited* (Builders merchants)

Keyline Bullders Merchants Lirmited* (Builders rmercharts)

Wickes Bulding Supphies Limited (DY retallers)

City Plumbing Supplies Holdings Limited {Plurnbers merchants)

CCF Limited* (Celing & dry lning distribution)
Travis Perkins (Properties) Limited* {(Property management comparny)
Benchmarx Kitchens and Jowery Lirnited (Specialist distribution}

Solfex Energy Systems Limited* (Distributor of renewables technology)
Tie Giant Limited {Ceramic tile merchants)

Travis Perkins P & H Partner Limited (Sole corporate partner in Plumbing and Heating Merchants)
Toclstation Lirnited (DIY retailers)

PTS Group Limited (Plumbing and Heating Merchants)

*Direct subsidiary of Traws Perking plc

The registered office for all the subsidianes listed above 1s Lodge Way House Harlestone Road Northampton NN5 7UG except for Keyline Buillders
Merchants Lirmited for which the registered office 15 Suite S3 8 Strathkelvin Place Kirkintilloch Glasgow GE6 1XT Toolstation Lirmited for which the
registered office address 15 16 -18 Whiteladies Road Clifton Bristol B58 2LG and Salfex Energy Systerns twmited for which the registered office 1s
Units 3 - 5 Charnley Fold Indusinal Estate Off School Lane Barnber Bridge Preston Lancashire PRS 6PS The Direclors have applied s409 10 5410
of the Companies Act 2006 and therefore list anly significant subsidiary comparies

All subsidianes with the exception of Plurnbnation Limited which 1s 51% owned are 100% owned Each company 15 registered and incorporated
in the United Kingdom and represented in England and Wales other than Keyling Builders Merchants Limted and eight dormant companies which
are registered and incorparated 1n Scotland City Investrments Limited which 15 registered and incorporated in Jersey and two darmant companies
registered and incorporated in Northern Ireland

¢ Avalable for-sale investments

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 203 2012
m £m £m £m
Farr value investment 27 24 -

The investrment represents a minonty holding in a unit trust that acquired properues from the Group in 2006 The investment presents the Group
with an opportunity to generate returns through both income and capital gans The Directors consider that the carrying armount of this investment
approximates to its far value

18 Trade and other recevables

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Trade recevables 6191 5783 - -
Allowarce for doubtful debts (339) (48 3) - -
5852 5300 - -
Amounts owed by subsidianes - - 1331 1746
Other tecewvables, prepayments and accrued ncome 2377 2037 - 61
Trade and other recevables 8229 7337 1331 1807

The Groups trade and other recenables al the balance sheet date compnse principally of amounts recevable from the sale of goods together with
amounts due in respect of rebates and sundry prepayments The Direclors consider the only class of asset contaning significant credit nsk s trade
receivables The average credit term taken for sales of goods 15 55 days (2012 58 days) The allowance for doubtful debits 1s esumated by the Groups
managerment based on prior expenence and ther assessment of the current economic ervirenment The Directors consider the carrying amaount
of trade and ather recevables approximates therr fair values The business has prowided fully for all recervables outstanding for more than 90 days
beyond agreed terms Trade recevables not receivable far up to 90 days are specifically provwided for based on estmated irrecaverable amaunts No
interest 1s charged on the trade recevable from the date of the invoice until the date the invoice is classified as overdue according to the trading terms
agreed between the Group and the customer Thereafter the Group reiains the right to charge interest at between 2% to 4% per annum above the
clearing bank base rate on the outstanding balance
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 Trade and other receivables continued

Movernent in the allowance for doubtful debis

THE GROUP
2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 January 483 545
Amounts wniten off during the year (26 0) (217}
Increase in allowance recognised in the income statement 116 155
At 31 December 339 483

In determuning the recoverability of the trade recevables the Group considers any change n the credit quality of the trade recenvable that may have
occurred between the date credit was imually granted and the reporung daie The concentration of credit sk 1s imited due to the customer base
being large Accordingly the Directors believe that no further credit provision 1s required n excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

Included in the Groups trade recevable balance are debtors unprowided agamnst with a carrying armount of £62 3m (2012 £57 4m) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not identified a significant change in credit quality and as such the Group considers that the
amounts are still recoverable and therefore there 15 no allowance for doubtful debits Except for some instances of personal guarantees the Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances

Ageng of past due but not impared recervables

THE GROUP
Days overdue 2013 2012
Em £m
0 - 30 days 442 445
31 - 60 days 107 86
61 - 90 days 74 43
623 574

ncluded in the allowance for doubtiul debts are specific trade recevables with a balance of £119m (2012 £27 2m) which have been placed into
lquidation The impairment represents the difference between the carrying amount of the specific trade receivable and the amount 1t 1s anticipated
will be recovered

None of the Companys debts are overdue The directors do not consider there to be any significant credit sk as the majonty of the debt 1s due
fram subsidiaries

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and cash deposits with an onginal maturity of three months or less held by the Group and
Company net of overdrafts The cairying amaount of these assets approximates therr fair value

20 Share capital

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

Issued and fully pad

No £m
Crdinary shares of 10p
AL January 2012 243816533 24 4
Allotted under share option schernes 1036524 01
At 1 January 2013 244853057 245
Allotted under share option schemes 1,933,232 02
At 31 December 2013 246,786,289 247

The Cornpany has one class of ordinary share that carries no nght to fixed income The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receve dividends
as declared and are entitled o one vote per share at meetings of the Company All shares rank equatly with regard to the Companys residual assets
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21 Own shares
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

2013 2012
No No
At 1 January 5313791 6305367
Re-1ssued during the year {1,854,630) {991 576)
At 31 December 3,459,161 5313791
Allocated to grants of executive options 166,069 289142
Naot allocated to grants of executive options 3,293,092 5024649
3,459161 5313791

The own shares are stated at cost and held by the Employee Share Ownership Trust to satisfy options under the Groups share option schernes All
nghts attaching to own shares are suspended untl the shares are re-ssued

22 Reserves

Detalls of alt movernents in reserves for both the Group and Company are shown in their respecive Statements of changes in equity A description

of the nature and purpose of each reserve 1s given below

+ The merger reserve represents the premium on equity INstruments 1ssued as consideration for the acquisiion of BSS

+ The revaluaiion reserve represents the revaluation surplus that anses from property revaluations in 1999 and prior years

* The hedging reserve compnises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the farr value of cash flow hedging instruments (net of 1ax)
related to hedged transactions that have yet to occur

+ The own shares reserve represens the cost of shares purchased in the market and held by the Ermployee Share Ownersnip Trust 10 satisfy options
under the Groups share option schemes

« The other reserve represents anticipated gross outflow on potential exercise of the put eption held over the non controlled 49% sharehalding in
Plumbnation

The cumulative total of goodwill written off directly Lo reserves far acquisitions from Decernber 1989 to December 1988 1s £40 im The aggregate

nformation for the accounting periads prior 1o this penod 1s not available

23 Borrowings

A summary of the Group objectives policies procedures and strategies with regard to financial instruments and capital managerent can be found
in the Finance review within the Strategic Report on pages 27 to 30 At 31 December 2013 all borrowings were denominated in sterling except for
the unsecured sentor notes,

a Summary

THE GROUP . THECOMPANY

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Unsecured senior notes 1287 2611 1287 2611
Liability to pension scheme {note 28) 3656 369 - -
Bank loans {note 23¢)* 2400 2644 2400 3150
Bank overdraft* - - - Qv
Finance leases (note 23d) 238 259 - -
LLoan notes (note 23e) 32 33 32 33
Finance charges netted off bank debt” (48) (03) (48) (0 3)
427 4 5813 3671 5728

Current habilities 58 3361 32 4449
Non current labilities 4216 1952 3639 1349
427 4 5913 3671 5798

*These balances together total the amounts shown as bank loans in note 23b
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23 Barrowings continued

b Analysis of barrowings

THE GROUP
Bank loans and overdrafis Other borrowngs

2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m

Borrowings repayable
On demand or within ene year - 2641 58 1320
More than one year but not mere than two years 500 - 47 27
More than two years but not more than five years 1852 - 1359 1449
More than frve years - - 458 475
2352 2641 1922 3272

THE COMPANY

Bank Yoans and overdrafts Other borrovangs
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £ £m £m
Borrowings repayable
On dermand or within one year . 3154 32 1295
Mare than one year but nat more than two years 500 - -
More than two years but not more than five years 1852 - 1287 1349
2352 3154 1319 264 4
¢ Facilities
At 31 Decernber 2013 the following bank faclities were available
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m fm
Drawn facilities
5 year commutted revalving credit facility 1900 264 4 1900 3150
15 month commutied facibity 500 - 500 -
Unsecured senior notes 1287 2611 1287 2611
Bank overdrafts - - - azv
3687 5255 3687 5768
Undrawn facilives
5 year committed revolving credit facility 3600 4750 3600 4750
Bank overdrafis 400 400 400 393
4000 5150 4000 5143

The 5 year revolving credit facility and 5 year term loan both matured on 4 April 2013 On 14 December 2011 the Group signed a new £550m
forward start banking agreement with & syndicate of banks which cormmenced on 4 April 2013 and runs unul December 2016 $200m of the
unsecured loan notes were repaid on 28 January 2013 with the remaining $200m faling due on 26 January 2016 On the 23 December 2013
the Comnpany entered inta a £50m bilateral facility with a syndicate bank which matures in March 2015

The disclosures in note 23¢ do not include finance leases loan notes Liability to pension scheme or the effect of finance charges netted off bank debt

d Obligations under finance leases

THE GROUP
Minirmum Preserit value of
lease payrments minimum lease payments
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 36 38 26 25
In the second to fifth years inclusive 149 165 118 127
After five years 169 190 94 107
354 393 238 259
Less future finance charges (118) (134) - -
Present value of lease cbligauons 238 259 238 259
Less Amaunt due for settlement within one year (shawn under current liabilities) {286) (25)
Amount due for settlernent after one year 212 234
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23 Borrowings continued

Excluding 996 year leases the average loan term for these properties 1s 49 years and the average borrowing rate has been determined at the
inception of the lease to be 90% Interest rates are fixed at the contract date All lease abligations which are denominated in Sterling, are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangerments have been entered into for contingent rental payments

e Loan notes
Inctudad n borrowings due within one year 18 £3 2m (2012 £3 3m} of loan notes issued as consideration for the acquisition of Broarmbys Lirmited in
1999 They are redeemable at the aption of the holder on 30 June and 31 December each year unti the final redemption date of 30 June 2015

f Interest
The weighted average interest rates pard were as follows
2013 2012
% %
Unsecured senior notes 58 58
Bank loans and overdraft 26 22
Other borrowings 60 60

Bank revolving credit [acilities outstanding at the year end of £550m (2012 £739m) and bank loans of £50m (2012 £50m) were arranged ai
variable interest rates The $200m unsecured Travis Perkins senior nates were 1ssued at fixed rates of interest and $90m 15 swapped into vanable
rates This exposes the Group to farr value interest rate nsk As detailed innote 24 to manage the nsk the Group enters into interest rate denvatives
arrangements which for 2013 fixed inlerest rates on an average of £110m of borrowing For the year to 31 December 2013 this had the effect of
increasing the weighted average interest rates pad by 04%

In respect of Incorme earning financial assets and interest beanng financial liabilities the following table indicates therr effective interest rates at the
balance sheet date All assets and labiliies except for loan notes reprice within $ix months

THE GROUP
2013 2012
Effectve Effectrve

nterest rate £m interest rate £m

Unsecured senior notes 59% 1287 58% 2611
Unsecured vanable rate bank facilities 20% 2400 23% 2644
Loan notes 60% 32 60% 33
3719 5288

THE COMPANY

2013 2012
Effective Effectrve

interest rate £€m interest rate £m

Unsecured senior notes 59% 1287 58% 2611
Unsecured vanable rate bank facilities 20% 2400 23% 3150
Loan notes 60% 32 60% 33
Bank overdraft - - 23% Q7
3719 5801

The US private placement carnes fixed rate coupons of between 130 bps and 140 bps over US treasunies

g Far values
For both the Group and the Company the far values of financial assets and liabiliies have been calculated by discounting expected cash flows
at prevaling rates at 31 December There were no significant differences between book and far values on this bass and therefore no further
infarmation 1s disclosed

Delalls of the fair values of denvatives are given in note 24

h Guarantees and security
There are cross guarantees on the overdrafis between group companies.

The companies listed in note 17 with the exception of Benchmarx Kitchens and Joinery Limited Trawis Perkins P&H Partner Limited Tile Giant
Lirruted Toolstation Limited and Solfex Energy Systems Limited together with Wickes Limited and Travis Perkins Plurbing and Heatng LLP are
guarantors of the following facilities advanced to Traws Perkins plc
* £50rm term loan
» £2550m revolving credit faciity
« $200m unsecured semior notes
« Interest rate and currency denvatives (note 24)

The Group companies have entered into other guarantee and counter-indermnity arrangerments n respect of guaraniees issued In favour of Group
companies by the cleanng banks amounting to appraximately £20m (2012 £16m)
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24 Financial instruments

a Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted ncluding the cntena for recogmiion the basis of measurement and the basis on
which incorme and expenses are recognised in tespect of each class of financial asset financial labibty and equity nstrurment are disclased In note
2 10 the financial statements

b The carrying value of categones of financial instruments

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m [35]
Financial assets

Dervative Instruments 1n designated hedge accounting relationships 93 255 93 255
Loans and recewvables (including cash and cash equivalents) 8211 8047 1331 1807
Avallable for-sale 27 24 - -
8331 8326 1424 2062

Financia! labhhes
Designated as fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 421 496 421 496
Dervative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 48 49 48 49
Borrowings (note 23a) 427 4 5913 3671 5798
Trade angd other payables at amortised cost (note 27) 9627 8887 207 189
1,4370 15345 4347 6532

Loans and recevables exclude prepayments of £816m (2012 £68 1m) Trade and other payables exclude taxation and social secunty and aceruals
and deferred income totalling £216 7m (2012 £218 9m) Deferred cansideration payable totaling £38 7m included in trade and other payables
15 included n financial liabilites designated as fair value through profit and loss The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial
statements which 15 net of impairment losses represents the Groups maxirmum exposure to credit nsk The Group has considered the impact of
credit nsk on its financial instruments and because the counterparlies are banks with a high credit rating considers its impact to be immatenal

¢ Farr value of financial instruments

The farr values of financial assets and financial liabiliies are determined as follows

« Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted farward exchange rates

+ Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derved
from quoted interest rates

The following tabie provides an analysis of financial Instruments that are measured subsequent to inial recogniion at fair value grouped Into Lavels

1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value 15 observable

« Level 1 fair value measurements are those derved from quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labiliies

» Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices includad within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or lability either directly (1e as prices) or indirectly (e denved from prices)

» Level 3 far value measurements are those derved from valuation techriques that include inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable Inputs)

There were no iransfers between levels dunng the year

Included i assets

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £€m
Level 2
Crass currency interest rate swaps designated and effective as hedging
nstruments carned at farr value 93 255 93 255
Current assets - 127 - 127
Non-current assets 93 128 93 128
93 255 93 255
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24 Financial nstruments continued
Included in labilities

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £em £m
Level 2
Foresgn currency forward contracts at far value through profit and loss 15 a7 15 07
Foreign currency forward contracts designated and effective as
hedging instruments carred at farr value 45 37 45 37
Interest rate swaps at fair value through profit and loss - 19 - 19
Interest rate swaps designated and effective as cash hedging instruments 03 12 03 12
Level 3
Deferred consideration at far value through profit and loss 4086 470 406 470
469 545 469 545
Current liabiliies 405 26 405 26
Non-current liabilities 64 519 64 519
469 545 459 545

d Interest nsk managerment

The Group 1s exposed to interest rale nisk as entives n the Group borrow 1unds at both fixed and floaung mrerest rates The risk 1s managed by the
Group by mainiaining an appropnate mix between fixed and floaling rate borrowings by the use of interest rate swap contracts and forward interest
rate contracts Hedging aclwvities are evalualed regularly 1o algn with interest rate views and defined risk appetiie ensuring optimal hedging strategies
are applied by either positionmg the balance sheet or protecting interest expense through different interest rate cycles

Interest rate swap contracts
The Group adopts a policy of ensunng that its exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings 1s on either a fixed rate basis or s subject to
movements within pre-defined imits To achieve its desired interest rate profile the Group uses interest rate swap contracts

Contracts with notional values of £50m are designated as cash flow hedges with fiked interest payrments at an average rate of 1 71% for penods
up until May 2074 and have floating interest recetpts equal to 1 month LIBOR Dunng the period the cash flaw hedges were 100% effective in
hedging the exposure to Interest rate movements

Under interest rate swap contracts the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating interest rate amounts calcutated on
agreed notional pnnaipal amounts Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the nisk of changing interest rates on the fair value of 1ssued fixed rate
debt held and the cash flow exposures on the 1ssued vanable rate debt held The far value of interest rate swaps at the reporling date 1s determined
by discounting the fuiure cash flows using the curves at the reporiing date and the credit nsk inherent in the contract and 1s disclosed below The
average interest rate 15 based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year

At 31 Decernber 2013 the farr value of interest rate dervatives all of which terminate befare one year from the balance sheet date to which the
Group and the Company were parties was estimated at £{0 3)m (2012 £(3 1)m) This amount 1s based on market values of equivalent instrumenis
at the batance sheat dale Interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the far value thereof has been deferred in equity
A credit of £19m {2012 £1 3m) in respect of the fan value movement on interest rate swaps with a call option has been taken to the income
statement through net finance charges as the Group has not applied hedge accounting The non-amertising interest rate swap with a call aption
matured on 3 Cctober 2013

The following table details the notienal pancipal amounts and remaining terms of Interest rate swap contracts accounted for as cash flow hedges
at the reporting date

Cash flow hedges - outstanding receve floating pay fixed contracts

Average contract Notonal pnncipal
fied interest rate amount Farr value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
% % £m £m £m £m
Under 1 year 171 - 500 - {(03) -
1to 2 years - 121 - 1250 - (12)
500 1250 (03 (12)

The interest rate swaps settle on & monthly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps 15 1 maonth LIBOR The Group will settle the difference
between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis All current interest rate swap contracts which exchange floating rate interest amounts for
fixed rate interest amounts are designatad as cash flow hedges in order to reduce the Groups cash flow exposure resultiing from variable interest
rates on borrowings The interest rate swaps and the Interesi rate payments on the loan oceur simultaneously and the amount deferred in equity 1s
recogmised In the income statement over the period that the floaung rate interest payments on debt affect profit or loss
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24 Finanoal instruments continued

e Cross currency swaps and currency forward contracts
In arder to elminate the currency nsk assocrated with the $200m unsecured serior notes the Group and Company has two cross currency swaps
of £23m and £29m to fix the exchange rate at £1 equal to §1 73 for the entire lives of $90m of the unsecured loan notes

The forward options fed the notional armount receivable and payable in respect of the unsecured senior notes ta £52m as well as frang the
exchange rate applicable to future coupon payments The two currency swaps canvert the borrowing rates on USS50m and US540m of debt from
589% to a vanable rate based on s month LIBOR plus basis point increment of 865 and 867 respactively The currency swaps seitle on a half-
yearly basis The Group will settle the difference beiween the fixed and floating interest on a gross basis

Currency swap contracts exchanging fixed rate interest for floating rate interest are designated and effective as farr value hedges in respect of
interest rates Dunng the peniod the hedge was 100% effective in hedging the fair value exposure to interest moverments and as a result the carrying
amount of the loan was adjusted by £3 8m (2012 £14 4m) which was included in the income statement at the same time that the far value of
the interest rate swap was also included in the incorne staternent

The following table details the notional principal amounts and rermaining terms of currency swap contracts accounted for as far value hedges as
at the reporting date

Fair value hedges - outstanding recewve fixed pay floating coniracts

Average contract floating interest rate HNotional principal amount Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
% % £m £m £m £m
Less than 1 year - 19% - 1156 - 127
210 5 years 14% 19% 520 520 93 128
520 1676 93 255

The Group and the Company have three currency forward contracts with a noticnal value of $30m each and one with a notional value of £20m
to hadge $110m of unsecured senwr notes These cantracts have a matunty date of January 2016 At 31 December 2013 the far value of these
forward contracts was estimated at £(4 5) m (2012 £(37) m) These contracts are designated cash flow bedges

The Group acquires goods for sale from overseas which when not denorminated in sterling are paid for principally in US dollars The Group has
entered into forward foreign exchange contracts (all of which are less than one year in duration) to buy US dallars to hedge the exchange risk ansing
from these anticipaied future purchases Al the balance sheet date the tolal notional value of contracts to which the Group was committed was
USSB830m {2012 US51203m) The far value of these dervatives 1s £{1 5)m (2012 £(0 7) m) These contracts are not designated cash flow
hedges and accordingly the farr value movement has been reflected in the iIncome statement

During 2010 the Group and Company novated one cross currency interest rate swap with a notional value of 5110m and a sterling equivalent of
£63m for total proceeds of £13 7m in the Group and £16 3m in the Company The preceeds are being amortised o the income statement over
the remaining Ufe of the unsecured senior notes with the total credit to income statement being £10m (2012 £10m)

f Liquidity analysis

The following table details the Groups liquidity analysis for its dervative financial instruments and other financial labilties The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted net cash flows on the dervative instrument that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross flows on those
denvatives that require gross settlernent When the amount payable or recevable 15 not fised the amount disclosed has been determined by reference
to the projecied interest and foreign curtency rates as illusirated by the yield curves exsting at the reporting date

2013
0-1year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5+ years Total
£m €m £m £m £m
Gross settled
Interest rate swaps - receipts 18 32 559 - 609
Interest rate swaps - payments {0 4) 08) (52 4) - (53 6)
14 24 35 - 73
Foreign exchange forward contracts (51 8) - - - (518)
Total gross setiled (504) 24 35 - (44 5)
Net settled
Interest rate swaps (02) - - - {02)
Total dervative financial instruments (50 6) 24 35 - (44 7)
Borrowings (i03) (571} (3139) (36 5) (417 8)
Deferred consideration (387) - (24) - (41 1)
Other financial labilties (note 27) (962 7) - - - (9627)
Fimance leases (note 23d) (36) (64) (85) {169) (35 4)
Total financial instruments (1,0659) 611) (321 3) {53 4) {1,501 7)
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24 Finanaial instruments continued

2012
0 1year 1 2 years 2 5 years 5+ years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Gross settled
Interest rate swaps - receipts 1306 66 573 - 1945
Interest rate swaps - payrments (11786) (18) (528) - (1720)
130 48 47 - 225
Fareign exchange forward contracis (705) - - (705)
Totat gross settled (579) 48 47 - (480)
Net settled
Interest rate swaps {28) 02) - - (30)
Total derwatve finanaal nstruments {603 46 47 - (510)
Borrowings (404 4) (7 3) (142 2) (369) (5908)
Deferred consideration - (51 1) - - 51 1)
Other financial kabiities (note 27) {B887) - - - (888 7)
Finance leases (note 23d) (38) (38) (127) (180) (393)
Total financial instruments (13572) (57 6) (1502) (559) (16209)

g Interest rate sensitvity analysis

The sensitvty analyses below have been deterrmined based on the exposure to interest rates for both denvatives and non-derivative financial

instruments at the balance sheet date For floating rate labilities the analysis 1s prepared assurming that the amount of Liability outstanding at the

batance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year A 1 0% increase or decrease 1s used when reporting interest rate nsk internally to key

managerment personnel If interest ratas had been 1 0% higher / lower and all other vanables were held constant the Groups

« Praft before taxation for the year ended 31 Decernber 2013 would have decreased / increased by £2 5m (2012 increased / decreased by
£17m) including £rl (2012 £0 3m) af mavemnent on interest rate swaps with options

+ Net equity would have decreased / increased by £0 1m (2012 increased / decreased by £06m) mainly because of the changes in the far value
of interest rale denvatives

25 Provisions

THE GROUP

Property Insurance Other Total

£m £ £m £m

At 31 December 2012 507 355 29 891
Additional provision charged to incorme statement 31 04 - 35
Exceptional provision released in the year 60) - - 60}
Utibsation of provision (77) {44) 02) (123}
Unwinding of discount 25 - - 25
At 31 December 2012 426 315 27 768
Addional provision (released) / charged to income statement (0 4) 26 - 22
Utilisation of provision (7 1) (4 2) 02) (115)
Unwinding of discaunt 14 - . 14
At 31 Decermber 2013 365 299 25 689
Inciuded in current liabiliies 158 299 25 482
Included in non-current liabilities 207 - - 207
365 299 25 689

The Group has a nurnber of vacant and partly sub let leasehold properties Where necessary provision has been made for the residual lease
commitmenis after taking into account existing and anticipated sub-tenant arrangements

Should & prowision ulimately prove o be unnecessary then it 15 credited back into the income staternent Where the pravision was ougnally
established as an exceptional tam any release 1s shown as an exceptional credit

It 1s Group policy to substantially self nsure stself aganst clairns ansing in respect of damage to assets or due to employers or public lability
claims The nature of tnsurance claims means they may lake some time to be settled The insurance claims provision represents managements best
estimate based upon external advice of the value of sutstanding insurance clams where the final settlement date 1s uncertan
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25 Provisions continued

The following table detals the Groups liquidity analysis of is provisions The 1able has been drawn up based on the undiscounted net cash outflows

O tyear 1-2 years 2 5 years 5+ years Total
£m £mn £m £m £rm

2013
Property 165 29 81 259 534
Insurance 299 - - - 299
Other 25 - - - 25
489 29 81 259 858

2012
Property 223 47 94 145 509
Insurance 315 - - 315
Other 27 - - 27
565 47 94 145 851

The Company has no provisions

26 Deferred tax

The following are the major fully recogmised deferred tax li@biliies and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current

and prior reporting penods

‘THE GRAUP
Al Recognised Recognised At
1Jan 2013 n ncome n equity 31 Dec 2013
(Restated)
£m £m Em £m
{Asset] / liability

Capital allowances 57 (27) - 30
Trading losses (45) 27 - (18)

Revaluauon on property 02 - (13) 89
Share-based payments (133 10 (53) (17 6)
Provisions (102) 15 - 87)

Derwvatives 03) - 03 -

Business combinations 122 (25) - 97

Brand 982 (16 4) - 818
Pension scherme ability (289) (36) 185 (140)

Deferred tax 691 (200) 122 613

THE GROUP

At Acquired Recogrised Recogrused At

1 Jan 2012 n year N ncorne n equity 31 Dec 2012

(Restated) {Restated) {Restated) (Restated)

£m £m £m £rm

Capital allowances 62 03) 02) - 57
Trading losses - (66) 21 - (45)

Revaluation 111 - (09) 102
Share-based payments 81) - (23) (29) (133)
Prowisions (114) - 12 - (102)
Dervatives {(12) - 09 (03)

Business combinations 144 - (22) - 122

Brand o978 133 (129 - 982
Pension scheme babilty (310) - 01 20 (289)

Deferred tax 778 64 (142) (Q9) 691

At the balance sheet date the Group had unused capital losses of £47 4m (2012 £47 4m) avalable for offset against future capial profiis No
deferred tax asset has been recognised because it 1s improbable that future taxable profits will be avalable against which the Group can utilise the

losses

Cther than disclosed above no deferred tax assets and Lisbilities have been offset




26 Deferred tax continued

THE COMPANY

At Recognised Recogrised At

1 Jan 2013 in income n equity 31 Dec 2013

£m £m £m £
Share-based payments (13 4) 10 (53) 1?77

Derwatives (03) - 03 -
Cther uming differences (05) - - (05)
(142) 10 {(50) {(182)

THE COMPANY

At Recogrised Recogrised Al
1 Jan 2012 N income In equity 31 Dec 2012
£m £m £m £m
Share-based payments 81 {23) (30) (134)
Denvatves 12 - 09 {03)
Other urming differences (06) 01 - {05)
(99) (22) (21) (142)
27 Other financial Labilities
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m em
Trade payables 7812 7579 -
Other taxation and social security 787 760 -
Deferred consideration payable 387 - 387 -
Other payables 1815 1508 207 189
Accruals and deferred income 1380 1429 - -
Trade and other payables 1,2181 11076 594 189
The Group

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and engoing costs The Directors consider that the carrying
amount of trade payables approximates 1o ther far value The Group has finanoial sk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the credit imeframe

Deferred consideration payable of £19m (2012 £47 0m) 1s included in long-term other payables

The Company
Trade and other payables principally cormpnise amaounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing cosis The Directors consider that the carrying
amount of trade payables approximates to therr far value

Deferred consideration payable of £19m (2012 £47 0m) 15 included in long-term other payables

28 Pension arrangements

Restaterments
IAS 19 (revised 2011) and the related consequental amendments have impacted the accounting for the Groups defined benefit schemes by
replacing the combined interest cost on lizbiliies and expacted return on plan assets with a net interest charge on the net defined benefit lability
Prior year comnparaives have been restated as set out in note 5e

Following recent gudance from the FRRP regarding ihe treatment of a schedule of contnbutions in relation to a minmum funding requirement
under IFRIC 14 the Group has reconsidered the appropriate accounting treatment for its pension funding cbligations

The Group 1s party to deficit reparr schedules in respect of both the Traws Perkins Pension and Dependants Benefit Scheme (the TP scheme)
and the BSS Pension Benefit Scheme (BSS scherne ) Under the terms of the agreement with the Trustees of the TP scheme dated 16 June 2010
and amended in December 2012 and August 2013 the Group 1s commitied to a senes of annual payments to make good a histonc shortfall as
assessed on an actuanal basis

The restated Group balance sheets at 1 January 2012 and 31 December 201 2 reflect the present value of payments due under the schedule as
al those dates The agreesment provides for the suspension of the payment In the event that the scheme 1s 100% funded on an actuanal basis, and
the funding pasition 15 monitored en a guarterly basis At 31 December 2012 the scheme was 91% funded on an actuanal basis but had reached
99% funded at 31 Decermnber 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 Pension arrangerments continued

The liability reported as at 31 December 2013 of £56m 15 the net present value of payrmeants due as ai that date wiich are required before the
scheme becomes fully funded and paymenits are suspended The liabilues reported as at 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2012 do not assume
suspension on the basis that the actuanal shortfall at those dates exceeded the total payments due under the schedules

During the year the Group agread a revised schedule of deficit repair contnbutions with the Trustees of the BSS scheme The net present value of
the payments due under this arrangement exceed the |1AS79 Liability by £250m as at 31 Decermnber 2013 and an additional bability for this amount
has been recorded

Full detarls of both restatements 1s provided in nate 5e

Defined benefit schernes
The Group operates three final salary schemes being the TP scherme the BSS scheme and the BSS Ireland defined benefit scherme All defined
benefit schemas are closed to new members The TP scheme 1s for the majority of members a 1/60th scheme Employees are entitled to start
drawing a pension based an ther membaership of the scherne on their normal retrement date !f ernployees choose to retire early and draw therr
pension then the amaunt they receive 1s scaled down accordingly

The TP scheme 1s funded by contributions from Group companies and employees Contributions are paid to the Trustees on the basis of advice
frorm an independent professionally qualified actuary who carnes out a valuation of the scheme every three years

A full actuaral valuation of the TP scheme was carned out on 30 Septernber 20171 The IAS 19 valuation has been based upon the results of the
30 September 2011 valuation and then updated to 31 December 2013 by a qualified actuary The present values of the defined obligations the
related current service costs and the past service costs for the scheme were measured using the projected unit method

Following the acquisition of The BSS Group ple the Group, operated three acditional defined benefit pension schemes (the BSS schemes) based
an final pensionable salary On & Apnt 2012 the defined benefit section of the Tricom Retirernent and Death Benefits scherme was transferred (o the
TP scheme The BSS Ireland scheme s immatenal

The assets of the BSS schernes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the conirol of the schemes trustees The most recent
actuanal valuations of the BSS schemes assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations were carned out at 1 June 201 2 for the UK
and the Insh schemes The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured
using the projected unit methad with @ control peniod equal ta the future workang lifetime of the active members

In Jung 2010 an agreement was reached with the trustees of the TP scheme to fund £34 7m of the deficit using a group controlled special
purpose vehicle The pension scheme will be entitled ta recerve the incorne of the SPV for a period of up to 20 years subject o funding levels This
income s backed by the security of 16 Trawis Perkins freehold properties

As the SPV 15 consolidated into the Trawis Perkins plc group accounts advantage has been taken of Regulation 7 of The Partnership (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 and accounts for the SPV will neither be audited or filed

a Mayor assumptions used by the schemes aciuanes at the balance sheet data (in norminal terrms)
At 31 December At 31 December

2013 2042
Rate of increase in pensionable salanes 265% 225%
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 250% 25%
Discount rate 470% 416%
Inflation assumption 3 40% 30%

In respect of longevity the valuation adopts the SN1A year of birth tables with improvernents in life expectancy to continue in the medium term with
base year appropnate to the members date of birth This results in the following life expectancies at illustrative ages

Weighted average ife expectancy for mortality tables used to determine pension liability at 31 December 2013

Male Years Fermale Years
Member age 65 (current life expactancy) - TP Scheme 221 242
Member age 45 (lfe expectancy on reaching age 65} - TP Schemne 239 262
Member age 65 {current ife expectancy) - BSS Schemes 224 252
Member age 45 {Iife expectancy on reaching age 65) - BSS Schemes 244 271
b Amounts recogrised in Income i respect of the defined benefit schemes
TP Scheme BSS Schernes 2013 Group 2012 Group
{Restated}
£m m £m £m
Current ang past service costs charged
10 operating profit in the Income staternent (77) (26) (103) (100Q)
Adrmerisiration expenses (08) - (08) (09)
Net interest incorme / (expense) 04 (25) 21) N
Total pension charge (81) (51} (132) (130)

The total charge to the profit and loss account disclosed in note 7 of £22 1m (2012 £17 2m) compnises defined benefit scheme current and past
service costs of £10 3m (2012 £100m) and £11 8m {2012 £7 2m) of contnbutions made 1o the defined contrbution schermes

The Directors have agreed with the Schemes Actuaries and the Trustees to pay total contributions including the amounts in excess of ongoing
contributions required to repay the deficit of £23m to the TP scheme and £13m to the BSS schemes in 2014

Note 5 shows where penston costs have been charged m the iIncome statement Actuanal gains and losses have been included in the Statement
of Comprehensive Incorme

In 2014 the excess of funding over the an-going service contributions will be £25m in total for the Group
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28 Pension arrangements continued

¢ The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the Groups obligations in respect of all of its defined benefit schemes and the movements

during the year
2013 2012 (Restated)
TP Scheme  BSS Schemes Group TP Scheme  BSS Schemes Group
&m £m €m £m £m £m
Fair value of plan assets 8211 206 1 1,027 2 7380 1718 9098
Present value of defined benefit obligations (7800) (246 9) (1,026 9) (7364) (2309) (967 3)
Actuanal surplus / (deficit) 411 (408) 03 16 {59 1) (575)
Restriction an asset recognised (41 1) - (411) (16) - (16)
Additienal babilty recogrised for minimum
funding requirements (56) (250) (306) (66 8) (668)
Total pension liability (56) (658) {71 4) (66 8) (591) (1259)
Deferrad tax asset 140 289
Net liabilty at 31 December (57 4) (97 0)
2013 2012 {Restated)
TP Scheme  BSS Schemnes Group TP Scherne  BSS Schemes Group
£m £m em £m £m £m
At 1 January actuznal asset / (deficit) 16 (591) (57 5) 193 (650) {457)
Additional bablity recognised for minirum
funding requirements (68 4) - (68 4) (780) - (780)
(66 8) {591) (1259} (587 (650) (1237)
Service cosls charged to the income statement 77 (26) {(103) (72) (28) (100)
Administration expenses 08) - (08) (09} - (09
Net interest income / (expense) 04 (25) 21) 12 (33) {21
Transfar of babiity - - - (14) 14 -
Contnbutions frem spansonng companies 227 110 337 269 60 329
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net Interast ) 463 217 680 322 105 427
Actuarnal losses ansing from changes in
financial assumptions (21 4) (9@ 3) (307) (470) (59} (529
Actuanal losses ansing from experience adjustments - - - (215) - (218}
Reduction / (increase) in rmirmmum funding
requirement biability 217 (250) (3 3) 96 - 96
At 37 Decemnber actuarial deficit (56) (65 8) (71 4) (668) (591) (1259)

d Major categories and fair value of plan assets

The major categories and far values of plan assets at the end of the reporting penod for each category are as follows
At 37 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

TP Scherne BSS Schemes TP Scheme BSS Schames
£m £m £m £m

Level 1
Dornestic equities 2008 131 1656 613
Overseas equities 2357 1148 1939 924
Fixed interest government bonds 320 - 419 -
Index linked government bonds 385 - 383 -
Corporate bonds 1080 153 1060 158
Diversified growth fund 1202 614 799 -
Liability driven investment 71 - - -

Level 3
Property 323 - 598 23
SPV assel 361 - 420 -

Cash and other 104 15 106

8211 2061 7380 1718
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@ 28 Pension arrangements continued

Actual return on scheme assets

2013 2012
£m
TP Scherme 803 98% 647 88%
BSS Schemes 297 14 4% 17 4 101%
e Movements in the fair value of scheme assets in the current pencd
2013 2012 (Restated)
TP Scheme  BSS Schemes Group TP Scheme  BSS Schemes Group
m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 7380 i718 5098 6522 1664 8186
Interest on scheme assets 340 80 420 325 69 394
Return on scheme assets not included above 463 2417 680 322 105 427
Administration expenses 08) - (08) 09 - (09)
Transfer of assels - - - 125 (125) -
Contributions from sponsoring Comparnies 227 110 337 269 60 329
Contributions from members 50 01 51 50 0t 51
Foreign exchange - - - - {01) 01
Berefits pad (241) (65) (306) (224) (55) (279)
At 31 December 8211 2061 1,027 2 7380 1718 9098
f Movernents i the present value of defined benefit oblgations in the current period
2013 2012 (Restated)
TP Scheme  BSS Schemes Group TP Scheme  BSS Schenes Group
£m £m £m £€m £m £m
At 1 January (736 4) {2309) {967 3) (6329) (231 4) (864 3)
Service cost (77 (286) (103) (72) (28) (100)
Interest cost (336) (105) (44 1) (313) (102) (415)
Transfer of lability - - - {(139) 139
Contributions frorm members (50) {01) 51 (50) (01 (51)
Actuanal losses (21 4) (8 3) (307) (685) {59) (74 4)
Foreign exchange - - - - 01 01
Benefits paid 241 65 306 224 55 279
At 31 Decernber (7800) (24609) {1,026 9) (736 4) (2309 {967 3)
g Amounts recognised In the statement of other comprehensive income are as follows
2013 2012 (Restated)
TP Scheme  BSS Schemes Group TP Scheme  B3S Schemes Group
£m m £m £m {m £m
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) 463 217 680 322 105 427
Actuarial losses ansing from changes in
financial assumptions (21 4) (9 3) (307) (470) (59) (529)
Actuaral losses ansing from expenence adjustments - - - (218) - (215)
Movernents on restrichions in asset recogrised {395) - (395) 177 - 177
Reduction / (increase} in minimum funding
requirernent bability 612 {25Q) 362 81 . (81)
Re measurement of net defined pension Liability 466 (126) 340 (267) 46 (221)
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28 Pension arrangements continued

h Sensitvities

The estimated effects of changing the key assumptiens (chscount rate inflaton and Ufe expectancy} on the 14519 {revised 2011) balance sheet
position as at 31 December 2013

Assumption
TP Scheme BSS Schemes
£m £m
Discount rate Increase of 0 1% 157 45
Decrease of 0 1% (163) (47)
Inflation Increase of 01% (85) (41
Decrease of 0 1% 101 39
Longevity Increase of 1 year (17 5) (7Q)
Decrease of 1 year 178 70

Defined contribution schemes
The Group operates five defined cantnbuion schermes for 2l qualifying employees The pension cost which represents contributions payahle by the
Group amounted to £120m {2012 £7 2m)

29 Acquisition of businesses

On the 30 January 2013 the Group acquired 88 2% of the ssued share capital of Solfex Energy Systems Limited { Solfex} Solfex is a specealist
distributor of renewables technotogy The Group acqured the remaining 11 8% on 31 July 2013

On the 24 July 2013 the Group acquired 51 0% of the 1ssued share capital of Plumbnation Limited {Plumbnation) Plumbnation is an onling
heaning products distnbution business The Group has options to acquire the remaining 49 0% during the period untl October 2016 and consequently
a fimancral babibty of the expected value of the pul option of £1 Bm has been recogmised The call option currently has no far value Plumbnation will
prepare Iits financial statements to a 30 Jure year end

The Group paid £ 3m for further immatenal acquisitions duning the year and made fair value adjustments on prior year acquisitions resulting in
further additons to goodwill of €0 7m

All acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting Provisional far values ascnbed to identifiable assets as at the date
of acquisiion are shown in the table below

Farr value acquired

Property plant and equipment 04
Identifiable intangible assets 29
Inventores 18
Trade and other receivables 16
Cash at barnk 40
Trade and other payables (27)
80
Goodwill - addition duning the period 64
14 4
Satisfied by
Cash paid 133
Contingent consideration 11
14 4

Contingent consideration payable in 2014 and 2015 15 calculated by reference to a multiple of EBITDA which 1s dependent upen future performance
and expansion of the Solfex busimess over the penod to December 2015 After taking into account the reguirernents of the purchase and sale agreement
the total cash payrment 1s expected to be £1 3m

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 3 (2008) requires the consideration transferred in a business combination 1o be measured at far
value and therefore the future cash congideration has been discourted by £0 2m If the actual consideration pad in the earn out years differs from the
current estimate of £1 1m then IFRS 3 (2008} will require the difference io pass through the income statement Given any such difference will not relate
to trading we antcipate 1t will be shown as an exceptional itern

In addition 11 is currently expected that dependent on future profits a further £2 1m will be paid io the previous majonty shareholders of the
businesses who are still employed by the Group As required by IFRS 3 {2008) this will be treated as remuneration and charged to the income
statement a5 it is earned

Total revenue and operating profit for the businesses acquired for the penod from acquisition total £19 8m and £0 8m respecively If the acquisttions
had been cornpleted on the first day of the financial year group revenues would have been £5 159 0m and the Groups operating profit before amortisation
would have been £3479m

Goodwill recognised consisis of the benefiis from forecast growth and the assembled warkforce None of the goodwill recognised s expected to be
deductible for Income tax purposes Acquisition costs charged in administration experses in the perod 10 31 Decermber 2013 amounted to £E04m The
farr value of the acquired recewvables 1s £16m and all acquired recevables are expected to be collecied in full
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases a number of trading properties under operating leases The leases at inception are typically 25 years in duratien although some
have lessee only break clauses of between 10 and 15 years Lease payrents are reviewed every five years and increases applied in ine with market
rates. The Group alsa leases certain items of plant and equipment The Company has no operating lease arrangements

a The Group as lessee

2013 2012
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recogmsed in income for the year 19546 1890

Al the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commutmenits for future minimum lease payrments under non cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Within cne year 1720 1810
In the second to fifth years inclusive 6007 6192
After five years 1,0425 10852
18152 18854

b The Group as lessor
The Group sublets a number of ex-trading properties to third parties Property rental incorne earned during the year in respect of these properties
was £45m (2012 £42m)

At the balance sheet date the Group had contracts with tenants for the following future minimum lease payrments

2013 2012
£m Em
Within one year 51 41
In the second to fifth years inclusive 181 142
After five years 237 211
469 394

31 Capital commitments

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £n £rm Em

Contracted for but not provided in the accounts 340 122 - -

32 Related party transactions

The Group has a related party relationship with its subsidharies 1ts Directors and with its pension schemes (note 28) Transactions between Graup
companies which are related parties have been elminated on consalidation and are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries are disclosed below [n addition the remuneration and the detals of interests in the share capital of the Company of the Directors
are prowided in the audited part of the remuneration report on pages 77 to 82

The remuneration of the key management perscnnel of the Group 15 set out below in aggregate for each of the categores specified in IAS
24 Related Party Disclosures

2013 2012

£m £m

Short term employee benefits 92 79
Share-based paymenis 34 44
126 123

The Cornpany undertakes the following transactions with its active subsidiares
+ Providing day to day funding from its UK banking facilities
* Paying interest to mermbers of the Group iotaling £22 4m (2012 £156m)
« Levying an annual management charge to cover services provided to members of the Group of £8 0m (2012 £7 9m)
» Recaving annual dvdends totalling £1210m (2012 £742m)
Details of balances outstanding with subsidiary companies are shown in note 18 and in the Balance Sheet on page 95
Other than the payment of remuneration there have been no related party transacticns with directors
The Group advanced a total of £2 9m (2012 £2 9m) to all the Groups associate cornpanies in 2013 Operaling transactions with the associates
duning the year were not significant
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33 Analysis of changes in net debt

THE GROUP
Term loan
and revolving Unsecured Liabiity to
Cash and cash Finance credt facliy senor USS pension
equmvalents leases  and loan notes loan notes scheme Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 (786) 203 3250 2793 372 5832
Cash flow {60 5) 57 (588) - (28) {116 4)
Exchange movement - - - (27) - 27
Fair value movernent - (144) (14 4)
Finance charges amaortised 12 - - 12
Amortisation of swap cancellation receipt - - (11) - {11)
Lease surrendered Q1) - - 01
Discount unwind on liability 10 pension scheme - - - 25 25
A1 January 2013 {1391) 259 2674 2611 369 4522
Cash flow 593 (21 (24 5) (1158) (29) (B58)
Exchange movement - - - (17 - a7
Fair vatue movement - - - (141) - (141)
Finance charges movernent - - (48) - - (45)
Amortisation of swap cancellation receipt - - - (10) - (10}
Discount unwind on lability to pension scheme - - - 25 25
31 Decernber 2013 (798) 238 2384 1287 365 3476
Balances at 31 December comprise
THE GROUP
2013 2012
em o
Cash and cash equivalents 798 1391
Non current interest beaning loans and borrowings (421 8) (195 2)
Current interest beanng loans and borrowings (58) {396 1)
Net debt (347 6) (452 2)
34 Lease adjusted gearing
THE GROUP
2013 2012
(Restated)
£m £m
Reported net debt 3476 4522
Property operating lease rentals x8 1,474 4 14048
Lease adjusted net debt 18220 18570
Property operating lease rentals x8 1,474 4 14048
Total equity 25152 22556
Lease adjusted equity 39896 36604
Geanng 45 7% 507%
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35 Free cash flow
THE GROUP
2013 2012
£m £m
Net debt at 1 January (452 2) (583 2)
Net debt at 31 December (3476) (452 2}
Decrease in net debt 1046 1310
Dwidends paid 651 512
Net cash outflow for expansion capital expenditure 632 279
Net cash outflow for acquisitions 93 245
Amortisation of swap cancellation receipt (10) 11
Discount unwind on liability to pension scheme 25 25
Cash impact of exceptional tems 46 47
Interest in associate 29 29
Shares 1ssued and sale of own shares (139) (89)
Decrease In fan value of debt and exchange (158) (171)
Movernent in finance charges netted off bank debt (45) 12
Special pension contributions 226 230
Free cash flow 2398 2418
36 Leverage ratios
Adjusted ratio of net debt to earnings before interest tax and depreciation { EBITDA) 1s derved as follows
THE GROUP
2013 2012
(Restated)
£m £m
Prafit before tax 3126 2992
Net finance costs 265 399
Oepreciaion and amortisation 892 868
EBITDA 4283 4258
Exceptional operating items - 87
Exceptional investment income (94) (395)
Adjusted EBITDA 4189 3951
IFRS adustments required for covenant calculations (26} (286)
Adjusted EBITDA under covenant calculations 4163 3925
Net debt under covenant calculations 2928 3745
Adjusted net debt to EBITDA under covenant calculations 070x 095x
Adjusted rato of net debt to earnings before interest tax depreciation and operating lease rentals (EBITDAR) is denved as follows
THE GROUP
2013 2012
{Restated)
£m £m
Adjusted EBITDA 4189 3951
Property operating lease rentals 1843 1758
Adjusted EBITDAR 6032 5707
Reported net debt 3476 4522
Property operating lease rentals x8 1,474 4 14048
Lease adjusted net debt 18220 18570
Lease adjusted net debt o adjusted EBITDAR 30x 3 3x
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36 Leverage ratios continued

Fixed charge cover 1s derrved as follows

THE GROUP
2013 2012
{Restated)
£m £m
Adjusted EBITDAR 6032 5707
Property operating lease rentals 1843 1756
Inlerest for fixed charge calculation {note 9) 234 285
2077 2041
Fixed charge cover 29x 28x
37 Return on capital ratios
Group return on capital employed 1s calculated as follows
THE GROUP
2013 20172
(Regtated)
£m £m
Operating profit 3297 2936
Amaortisation of intangible assets 179 174
Exceptional items - 87
Adjusted operating profit 3476 3257
Opening net assets 2,2556 20454
Net pension deficit 970 927
Goodwill written off 927 927
Net borrowings 4522 5832
Exchange adpstment (195) (366)
Opening capital employed 28780 27814
Closing net assets 25152 22556
Net pension deficit 574 970
Goodwill written off 927 927
Net borrowings 34786 4522
Exchange adjustment (37) {(185)
Closing capital employed 30092 28780
Average capital employed 294386 28297
Adjusted pre-tax return on capital 11 8% 11 5%
Group lease adjusted return on capital employed 1s calculated as follows
Adusted operating profit 3476 3257
50% of property operating lease rentals 922 878
Lease adjusted operating profit 4398 4135
Average capital employed 29438 28297
Property operating lease remtals x8 1,474 4 14048
Lease adjusted capital employed 44182 42345
Lease adjusted return on copital employed 100% 98%
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Five year record

Consolidated income statement

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
{Restated)
£m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 51487 48449 47791 31528 29309
Operating profit before amortisation and exceptional tems 347 6 3257 3132 2390 2246
Amortisation (179) (17 4) (129) 02) -
Exceptional ttems - (87) (98} (190) 327
Operating profit 3297 2996 2905 2198 2573
Exceptional investrment income 94 395 - - -
Net finance costs (265) (399) (209) (230) (448)
Profit before tax 3126 2892 2696 1868 2127
Income iax expense (479) (605) (572) (555) (553)
Net profit 2647 2487 2124 1413 157 4
Agjusted return on capital 118% 115% 11 3% 122% 109%
Basic earnings per share 109 9p 104 3p 90 3p 69 6p 88 4p
Adjusted earnings per share 103 6p 906p 931p 77 2p 752p
Dindend declared per ordinary share (pence) 310p 250p 200p 150p -
Number of branches at 31 December
{incluges branches of associates) 1,939 1896 1868 1813 1238
Average number of employees 21,937 21632 21423 15792 14528
Consolidated cash flow statement

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash generated from operations 3192 3276 3451 2823 3198
Net interest paid (205) (27 3) (235) (160) (290)
Swap cancellation receipt / (payment) - - - 137 (287)
Income taxes paid (592) (645) (26 3) (42 4) (27 3)
Net purchases of investments property and plant (90 3) {(497) (84 2) (354) (78)
Interest In associates (29) (29) (23) (125) (129)
Disposal of businesses - - 269 - -
Acquisition of busimesses net of cash acquired (23) (245) (899 (224 9) (10}
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 139 89 106 03 3003
Dmdends paid (65 1) (512) (388) (101
Bank facility finance charges - - 61 - -
Movement on finance lease lizbilities {(21) 57 (16) (13) (15)
Repayrent of unsecured loan notes - - 06) (01)
Liability to pension scheme - - - 347 -
Decrease in bark loans (1430) {(616) (1522) (2141) (1600}
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (59 3) 805 277 (296 3) 3518
Net debt at 1 January (452 2) (5832) (7736) (467 2) (1017 4)
Non cash adjustment 188 146 89 (371) 368
Cash flow from debt and debt acquired 1451 559 1538 (7 0) 1616
Net debt at 31 December (347 6) (4522) (583 2) (7736) (467 2)
Free cash flow 2396 2418 2935 2778 2944
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Consolidated balance sheet

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Restated) {Restated)
£m £m £m £m £m

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property plant and equipment 6099 5784 5626 5271 4990
Goodwill and other intangible assets 22237 22323 20951 21097 15153
Dervative financial instruments 93 128 403 570 447
Interest in asscciates 73 67 513 457 317
Retirement benefit assets - - - 317 -
Investrment property and other investments 31 28 19 19 48
Deferred tax asset - - - 120
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 6877 6371 5960 5714 3127
Trade and other recevables 8229 746 4 7461 6887 2 3754
Assets held for resale - - - 23 -
Cash and cash equivalents 798 1391 786 529 3472
Tatal assets 44437 43556 41719 40869 31428
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital 247 245 24 4 242 209
Share premium account 4980 487 2 4808 4715 4712
Merger reserve 3265 3265 3265 3259 -
Own shares (40 6} 62 4) (752) (834) (837)
QOther reserves 167 185 157 144 92
Accumulated profits 1,6899 14613 12772 11992 10428
Total equity 25152 22556 20494 19518 14604
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing loans and barrewings 4216 1952 508 2 7609 7391
Dervative financial instruments 45 19 59 42 61
Retremenryt benefit obligations 714 1259 1237 586 430
Long-term provisions and other payables 2286 670 289 360 437
Deferred tax tiabilities 613 691 778 1105 628
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest beanng loans and borrowings 58 3061 636 756 753
Dervative financial nstrurnents 18 26 . 25 -
Trade and other payables 1,2181 11076 10883 10045 6387
Tax labilities 732 748 759 365 281
Short-term provisions 48 2 568 602 548 456
Total liabilities 1,8285 21000 21225 21451 16824
Total equity and Liabilities 4,4437 43556 41719 40969 31428

OTHER INFORMATION @

Travis Perkins®



e e

NOTICE OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING
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Notice 15 hereby given that the fifieth Annual General
Meeting of Trawis Perkins plc will be held at Northarmpton
Rughy Football Club Franklins Gardens Weedon Road
Northarmpton NN5 5BG on Wednesday 28 May 2014 at

00 noon for the purposes set out below

To consider and if thought it to pass the following
Resolutions of which Resolutions 1 10 15 (inclusive) will be
proposed as ordinary resolutions and Resolutions 16 to 18
(inclusive) will be proposed as special resolutions

To recawve the Cormpanys Annual Repart and Accounts
and the Auditors Report thereon for the financial year
ended 31 Decernber 2013

To recewve and approve the Remuneration Policy

set out on pages 69 and 70 of the Directors
Rernuneration Repart contained within the Annual
Report and Accounts for the financ@! year ended

31 December 2013

To receve and approve the Directors Rernuneration
Report (other than the Remuneration Policy referred
to in Resolulion 2 above) contained within the Annual
Report and Accounts for the financial year ended

31 December 2013

To declare a final dvidend for the financial year ended
31 December 2013 of 21 pence per ordinary share
payable to shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 2 May 2014

To appoint Christopher Rogers as 2 non-exacutive
director of the Company Biographical cetalls of
Chnistopher Rogers appear on page 57

To re-appont John Coleman as a non executive
directar of the Company Biographical detas of John
Coleman appear on page 57

To re-appomnt Andrew Sirman as a non-executive
directar of the Company Biographical details of
Andrew Simon appear on page 57

To re-appoint Ruth Anderson as a non executive
director of the Company Biographical details of Ruth
Anderson appear on page 57

To re-appomnt Tony Buffin as a direcior of the Cormpany
Biographical detalls of Tony Buffin appear on page 56
To re-appont John Carter as a director of the
Cornpany Biographical details of John Carter appear
onh page 56

To re-appoint Robert Walker as a director of the
Cornpany Biographical detalls of Robert Walker appear
on page 56

To re-appont Deloitte LLP Chartered Accourtanis

as auditor of the Company 1o hold office framn the
conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of

the next general meeting of the Company at which
accounts are laid

To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of
Deloitte LLP

That the rules of the Travis Perkins Share Matching
Scherme 2014 (the Scheme) be approved and the
Directors be authonised to

a make such modifications to the Scheme as they
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15

may consider apprapriate to take account of
the requirements of best practice and for the
implernentation of the Scheme and to adopt the
Scherne as so modified and to do all such other
acts and things as they may consider appropnate to
wnplement the Scheme and
b establish further schemes based on the Scheme
but modified to take account of local tax exchange
control or securities laws In overseas terniories
provided that any shares made available under
such further schemes are treated as counting
aganst the imits on indmidus! or overall
participation in the Scheme
That n substitution for all existing authonties the
Directors be generally and unconditionally authonsed
N accordance with section 551 of the Companies Act
2006 to exeraise all the powers of the Company to
allot shares n the Company or grant rights to subscribe
for or 1o convert any secunty Into shares in the
Company
up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£8229844 S0 (such amount to be reduced by
the aggregate nominal amount allotted or granted
under paragraph (b) of this Resclution 15 n excess of
£8229845 and
comprising egquity securities (as defined in section
560(1) of the Companies Act 2008) up to an
aggregate norminal amount of £16 459 68990 {such
armaunt 1o be reduced by the aggregate norninal
amount allotted or granted under paragraph (a) of this
Resclution 15} in connection with an offer by way of a
rghts 1ssue
I toordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as
may be practicable) to therr exsting holdings and
to holders of other equity secunties as required by
the nghts of those secunites or subject to such nghts
as the directors otherwise cansider necessary
and so that the Directors may impaose any imits
or restrictions and make any arrangements which
they consider necessary or appropriate to deal with
treasury shares fracticnal entitlerments record dates
legal regulatory or practical problems in or under the
laws of any terntory or any other matier
such authorities to apply until the end of the Carmpanys
next annual general meeting after this Resclution 1s
passed (or if earler untl the close of business on 30
June 2015) but in each case so that the Company
may make offers and enter inia agreements before
the authanty expires which would or rmight require
shares to be allotted or rights to subscnbe for o to
convert any security into shares to be granted after the
authority expires and the Directors may allot shares or
grant such nghts under any such offer or agreement
as If the authority had not expired References in this
Resolution 15 to the nominal amount of nghts to
subscribe for or to convert any secunty nto shares
(including where such nghts are referred to as




16

17

equity securities as defined in section 560(1) of the
Companies Act 2006) are to the nominal armount of
shares that may be allotted pursuant to the rights.
That in substitution for all exsting powers and subject
to the passing of Resolution 15 the directars be
generally empowered pursuant to section 570 of

the Cormmpanies Act 2006 to allot equity securities

(as defined in section 560(1) of the Companies Act
2008) for cash pursuant to the authority granied by
Resclution 15 and/or pursuant to section 573 of the
Companies Act 2006 to sell ordinary shares held by
the Company as treasury shares for cash in each case
free of the restnction in secuion 561 of the Cornpanies
Act 2006 such power 1o be limited

tc the allotment of equity secunties and sale of
treasury shares for cash in connection with an offer

of or invitation to apply for equity secunties (but in

the case of an allotment pursuant to the authority
granted by paragraph (b) of Resolution 15 such power
shall be limited to the allotrment of equity secunities in
conrection with an offer by way of a nghts 1ssue only)
I to ordinary shareholders in proportion {as nearly as
may be practicable) to their exsting holdings, and

to helders of other equity secunties as required by
the nghts of those securnties ar subject to such nghts
as the directors otherwise consider necessary

and so that the Directors may impose any limits

or restrictions and make any arrangements which
they consider necessary or appropriate 1o deal with
treasury shares fractional entitlements record dates
legal regulatory or practical problems in or under the
laws of any terntory or any other matter and

to the allatment of equity securities pursuant to the
authority granted by paragraph (a) of Resolution

15 and/or sale of treasury shares for cash (in each
case otherwise than in the crcumstances set out In
paragraph (2} of this Resolution 16) up to a norminal
amount of £1 234 476 70 calculated in the case of
equity secuntes which are nghts to subscrbe for or

to convert securities into ordinary shares by reference
to the aggregate nommal amount of relevant shares
which may be allotted pursuant to such nghts

such power to apply until the end of the Companys
next annual general meeting after this Resolution 1s
passed (or if earlier until the close of business on 30
June 2015) but so that the Company may make
offers and enter into agreements hefore the power
expires which would or rught require equity securities
to be allotted after the power expires and the Directors
may allot equity secunties under any such offer or
agreement as if the power had not exprred

That a general meeting other than an annual general
meeting may be called an not less than 14 clear days
notice

18 That the Cornpariy be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally authorsed to make one or more
market purchases (within the meaning of seciion
693(4) of the Companies Act 2006) of ordinary
shares of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company
(ordinary shares) prowded that

a the maximum aggregate number of ordinary
shares authonsed to be purchased 1s 24 589534
(representing approximately 10% of the 1ssued share
capital of the Comnpany as at 25 February 2014),

b the mirimum price (exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for an ordinary share 1s its nerminal value of
10 pence

¢ the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which
may be pard for an ordinary share shall not exceed the
higher of (1) 105% of the average of the middle market
quotations for an ordinary share as denved from The
London Stock Exchange Dally Official List for the five
business days immediately preceding the day on which
that ordinary share 1s contracted to be purchased and
() an amount equal to the higher of the price of an
ordinary share quoted for the last independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an ordinary
share on the trading venues where the purchase 1
carned out

d this authority (unless previously renewed vaned or
revoked by the Company in general meeting) expires
at the conclusion of the next Annual Genera! Meeting
of the Company or 30 June 2015 whichever 1s the
earlier and

e the Cornpany may make a contract 10 purchase
ordinary shares under this authorty before the expiry
of such authonty which will ar may be executed wholly
or partly after the expiry of such authonty and may
make a purchase of ordinary shares pursuant to any
such contract
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By order of the Board

Deborah Gnimason

Cormnpany Secretary and General Counsel
Lodge Way House Harlestone Road
Northampton NNS 7UG

25 February 2014

Registered in England No 824821
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING -
EXPLANATORY NOTES
TO THE RESOLUTIONS

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
at Northampton Rugby Football Club Franklins Gardens
Weedon Road Northarmipton NN3 5BG on Wednesday 28
May 2014 at 1200 noon A buffet lunch will be avalable
In addition 1o the resolutions to approve the receipt of

the Company's annual accounts, the declaration of a final
dvidend the appaintment and re appaintment of the
Companys directors the re-appointrment of the Cornparnys
audilar and to give the directors authonty to fix the auditors
rermuneration the following items are to be proposed at the
farthcorming Annual General Meeting The Board considers
that all of the resolutions proposed are In the best interests
of the company and of its shareholders as a whole and
unanimously recornmends that sharehalders vote in favour
of all resolutions put before the Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 2 and 3 Directors’ Remuneration Report
{including the Remuneration Policy)
New requirernents came into force on 3 October 2013
in relation to the content and approval of the Directors
Rermuneration Report

In accordance with the new requirements ihe Directors
Rermuneration Report (which 1s set out on pages 68 to 82)
contains (1) the Remuneratien Policy (i) the Annual Report
on rermuneration and (n) the annual statement by the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Resolution 2 seeks shareholder approval for the
Remuneration Policy which can be found on pages 69
angd 70 The Remuneration Policy sets out the Company’s
future policy on directors remuneration and 1s subjact to
a binding shareholder vote by ordinary resolution at least
every three years

If Resolution 2 15 approved the Remuneration Pabicy will
take effect from the end of the AGM with the intention
that it will rerain in place for three years If the Company
wishes to change the Remuneration Policy within that three
year penod it will submit a revised remuneration policy to
shareholders for approval

Once the Remuneration Policy 1s approved all payments
by the Company to current prospective or former directors
(1n their capacity as directors) will be made in ine with
the Remuneration Policy or following specific approval by
shareholder resolution

Until the Rernuneration Policy takes effect payments will
contnue to be made to directors and former directors (in
therr capacity as directors) in ine with exsting contractual
arrangernents until that date

Resolution 3 is an ordinary resalution which seeks
shareholder approval for the Directors Rermuneration Report
(other than the part containing the Rermuneration Policy)
which can be found on pages 68 to 82 and gives detalls of
the implementation of the Cormpanys current rernuneration
policy dunng the year ended 31 December 2013

The vote upon this resolution 1s advisory The vote Is
nat spectfic to ndividuat levels of remuneration and the
directors’ entitlerment 1o remuneration 1s not conditional on It
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Resolution 14 Share Matching Scheme 2014
The Companys exsting 2004 Share Matching Scheme
will expire in Apnl 2014 Consequently the Remuneration
Cornrmittee of the Board has undertaken a review of the
Cormpanys long-term ncentive provisicn in conjunclion with
s regular review of the Company s overall semor executive
rernuneration policy The Remuneration Commuttee
believes that the Share Matching Scherne encourages the
Companys senior managernent to cornmit to building up
a shargholding in the Company whilst baing incentivised to
delver key financial targets over the longer term therghy
creating a genuinely strong alignment of interests between
managernent and nvestors

This resolution therefore seeks approval to renew the
2004 Share Matching Scheme once it expires The new
Share Matching Scheme will be renewed on the same
terms as the 2004 Scheme but with certain amendments
to reflect current corporate governance requirements (such
as the introduction of clawback where the Remuneration
Commuttee may recover amounts paid out under the new
Scheme in certain adverse circumstances) and to assist
with the operation and administration of the new Share
Matching Scheme

It 15 intended that the first awards under the new Scheme
wili be made in 2015

The main terms of the new Travis Perkins Share Matching
Scheme 2014 are summarised in the Appendix to this
Notice on pages 144 to 145

Resolution 15 Renewal of autharity to allot shares
Paragraph {a) of this resolution would give the directors the
authority to allot ordinary shares up to an aggregate nominal
arnount equal to £8 229 844 90 {representing 82 228 449
ordinary shares of 10 pence each) This amount represents
approximately one-third of the 1ssued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at 25 February 2074 the latest
practicable date pror to publication of this Notice

In line with guidance 1s3ued by the Association of British
Insurers (the ABI) paragraph (b) of this resolution would gve
the directors authority to allol ordinary shares in connection
with a rights 1ssue in favour of ardinary shareholders up to
an aggregale nomingl amount equal 10 £16 45968990
(representing 164 596 889 ordinary shares of 10p each)
as reduced by the nominat amount of any shares 1ssued
under paragraph (a) of this resolution This amount (befare
any reduction) represents approximately two thirds of
the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company as at
25 February 2014 the latest pracucable date prior to
publication of this Notice The authorihes sought under
paragraphs {a) and (b) of this resolution will exprre at
the earlier of 30 June 2015 (the last date by which the
Cornpany must hold an Annual General Meeting in 2015)
and the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held in 2015 If this authonty 15 exeraised the
directors intend to follow AB! guidance issued from time
to time including as to the re-election of directars It 1s now
aur practice to prapese all directors for annual re-election at




each Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Code

The directars have no present intention 10 exercise either
of the authonties sought under this resolution except under
paragraph (a) to satisfy options under the Companys
employee share option schemes

Resolution 16 Limited authanty to allot shares for cash
This resotution would give the directars the authority 10
allot ordnary shares (or sell any ardinary shares which the
Company elects to hold in treasury) for cash wathout first
aoffering thern to existing shareholders in proportion 1o ther
exsting shareholdings.

Except as provided in the next paragraph this authonty
would be lirnited to allotments or sales in connection with
pre-emptive offers and offers to halders of other equity
securities If required by the nghts of those shares or as
the board otherwise considers necessary or otherwise
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1234 47670
(representing 12 344 767 ordinary shares) This
aggregate nominat amaounk represents approximately 5%
of the 1ssued ardinary share capital of the Company as
at 25 February 2014 the latest practicable date pror
to publication of this Notice In respect of this aggregate
nominal amount the directors confirm their intention 10
foliow the pravisions of the Pre-Emption Groups Staternent
of Prninciples regarding cumulative usage of authonties
within a rolling 3-year period where the Principles provide
that usage in excess of 7 5% should not take place without
prior consultation with shargholders

Allotments made under the authansation in paragraph
(b} of Resolution 15 would be rmited to allotments by way
of a nghts i1ssue cnly {subject to the nght of the Board to
impose necessary or appropriate imitations to deal with for
exarnple fractional entitternents and regulatary matters)

The authonty will expire at the earlier of 30 June 2015
(the last date by which the Cormpany must hold an Annual
General Meeting in 2015) and the conclusicn of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company held in 2015 Any
issue of shares far cash wil however still be subject to the
requirernents of the UK Lising Authority

Resolution 17 Notice of Meetings

The Companigs Act 2008 requires that the notice period
for general meetings of a company 1s 21 days unless certain
requirermenits are satished including that shareholders
approve a shorter nouce penod which cannot be less than
14 clear days At the Annual General Meeting held in 2013
shareholders approved a notice perod for general meetings
(other than AGMs) of not less than 14 clear Gays effective
untl the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2014 This
resolution 15 proposed to allow the Carmpany 1o continue to
call general meeuings (other than Annual General Meetings)
on 14 clear days notice. The directors believe it 1s in the best
interests of the shareholders of the Company to preserve
the shorter notice perod and accordingly are proposing

this resolution 10 be proposed as a special resolution to the
meeting The shorter natice penod would not be used as a

matter of routine for general meetings but only where the
flexibility 1s menied by the business of the meeting and is
thought to be 1o the advantage of shareholders as a whole
Exarmples of when t might be appropnate to call a general
meeting at 14 clear days notice include when emergency
capital raising proposals or other price sensitive transactions
are being put to shareholders for approval The approval will
be effective unut the Companys Annual General Megting in
2015 when 115 expected that a sumilar resolution will be
propased Under the Companies Act 2006 1n order to be
able to call a general meeting on less than 21 clear days
notce the Company must make a means of electronic
voting avalable to all shareholders

Resolution 18 Authority to purchase own shares
The authonty for the Company to purchase its own shares
of 10 pence each grented at last years Annual General
Meeting will expire on the date of the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting The directars wish to renew this authonty
and a special resolution which 1s set oulin full in the Notice
of Annual General Meeling on page 141 will be proposed
at the forthcorming Annual General Meeting to gve the
Company the authonity to purchase its own ordinary shares
in the market as permitteg by the Compantes Act 2006
The authonty imits the number of shares that could be
purchased 10 a rmaximum of 24 689534 (representing
approximately 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of
the Company as at 25 February 2014) and sets minimum
and maximum prices This authonty will expire no later than
30 June 2015

The directors consider that 1t 1s in the best interests of
the Company to have avallable this authansation in case
of circurnstances when it would be appropnate o use 1t
They would only use 1t after consideration of the effect
on earnings per share and the longer-term benefit for the
Cormpany and shareholders generally The fact that such
authorisation 1s being sought should not be taken to imply
that shares would be purchased at any particular price or
indeed at all Any ordinary shares purchased pursuant to this
authority may either be held as treasury shares or cancelled
by the Company depending on which course of action is
considered by the direclors 10 be in the best interests of
shareholders at the time

As at 25 Febivary 2014 there were options over
10558 638 ordinary shares in the capital of the Cormpany
which represent 4 28% of the Cormpany’s 1ssued ordinary
share capital (excluding any treasury shares) If the full
authority to purchase own shares were to be used and the
shares cancelled these outstanding options would represent
approximately 4 75% of the Companys 1ssued ordinary
share capital (excluding any treasury shares) as at that
date As at 25 February 2014 the Company did not hold
any treasury shares in the Company and no warrants over
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company existed

Directions to Northampton Rugby Football Ctub can be
found on page 148
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APPENDIX TO NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Summary of principal terms of the Trawis Perkins Share
Matching Scherne 2014 (the Scheme)

Operation

The remuneration committee of the board of directors of the
Company (the Committee ) will supervise the operation of
the Scheme

Eligibility

Any employee of the Company and 1ts subsidianias will be
eligible to participate in the Scheme at the discretion of
the Commuttee

Grant of awards
The Commitiee rmay grant awards to acquire ordinary
shares in the Company ( Shares) within six weeks following
the Company's announcement of its results for any perod
The Committee may also grant awards within six weeks
of shareholder approval of the Schame or at any other
time when the Comrmittee considers there are exceptional
arcumstances which Justify the granting of awards Itis
intended that the first awards under the Scheme will be
made in 2015

The Commitlee may grant awards as condifional shares
a nil (or nominal) cost option or as forfetable shares The
Committee may also decide to grant cash-based awards
of an equivelent value to share-based awards or to satisfy
share-based awards in cash although it does not currently
intend to do so

An award may not be granted more than three years after
shareholder approval of the Scheme

No payment 1s required for the grant of an award other
than the investment of funds in Shares as descnbed below
Awards are nat transferable excepl on death Awards are
not pensionable

Investrnent Shares

An award will be made m conjunction with the investment of
an indrvduals funds (from any source) in Shares (Investrnent
Shares) The maximum amount which an ndivdual may
invest in Investment Shares in ary financial year 1s 50% of
therr post-tax salary

After the Investment Shares have been purchased the
Cornpany will grant an aweard over a nurnber of Shares
which shall not exceed two umes the number of Investrment
Shares grossed up for incormne tax at a rate of 45% or such
other rate as the Cammittee may determine

Cnce purchased the participant may transfer the
ownership of (her Investment Shares to his/her spouse or
ot partner (‘spouse )

The Investment Shares will either be held by a nominee
on behalf of the participant or his/her spouse or the
participant will altow their holding of Investrnent Shares
(including any Investment Shares held by his/her spouse) to
be monitored by the Company

Invesiment Shares will remain the properiy of the
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participant {or his/her spouse) and will not be subject to
forfeiture under the Scherme

Performance conditions
The vesting of awards will be subject to performance
condibons set by the Cornmittee
The first awards to be granted under the Scherme in
2015 will be based on the average cash return on capital
employed (CROCE) of the Company over a performance
penod of three financial years The extent 1o which the
2015 awards will vest wall be based on threshold and
raximum performance levels determined in accordance
with the Companys three vear business plan and projections
If performance 15 below threshold the award will lapse
At threshold performance 30% of the award will vest
This increases to 100% vesting for maximurm levels of
performance, with straight-line vesting in batween these ponts.
There will be no retesting of the performance condition
and the awards will lapse to the extent that the performance
condition 1s not met at the end of the performance penod
The Cormrmittee can set different performance conditions
from those described above for future awards prowided that
in the reasonable opinion of the Committee the new targets
are not matenally more or less difficult to satisfy than the
onginal conditions were considered to be at tha date of grant
of the awards
The Cornrmittee may also vary the performance
conditions applying to existing awards if an event has
occurred which causes the Committee 10 consider that it
would be appropnate 10 armend the performance conditions
provided the Committee considers the vaned condiions
are fair and reascnable and not materially more or less
challenging than the cngina! conditions would have been but
for the event in question

Vesting of awards
Awards normally vest three years after grant to the extent
that the applicable perfarmance conditions (see above) have
been satisfied the Investrment Shares have been retained by
the partcipant (or his / her spouse) and provided they are
still ernployed n the Cornpanys group Awards in the form
of options are then usually exercisable up until the tenth
anniversary of grant unless they lapse earler

On the vesting of an award the participant {or his/
her spouse) will be able o sell or otherwise transfer his/
her related Investrment Shares subject to any shareholding
requirement which may apply to him/her

If a participant transfers charges or otherwise disposes
of ther Investrnent Shares before the vesting of the award
associated with those Investment Shares then that award will
lapse pro-rata to the number of related Investment Shares
50 treated

Dividend equivalents
The Committee rmay decide that participants will receve a
payrnent (in cash and/or Shares) on or shortly following the




vesting or exercise of therr awards of an amount equivalent
to the dividends that would have been paid on those
Shares between the time when the awards were granted
and the tme when they vest Thus amount may assume
the renvestment of dvidends. Alternatively the Committee
may determine on or before grant that participants may
have therr awards increased as If dvidends were paid on
the Shares subject 1c ther award and then reinvested in
further Shares

Leaving employment
As a general rule an award will lapse upon a participant
ceasing to hotd employrment or be a director within the
Cornpanys group However If a participant ceases to be an
employee or a director because of death, Il health inyury
disability refirernent redundancy ther ernploying cormpany
ar the business for which they work being sold out of the
Companys group or In other aircurnstances at the discretion
of the Commuttee then ther award will vest

Unless the Commitiee deterrnines otherwse the date on
which and the extent to which an award will vest In these
crcumstances will depend upon two factors (1) the extent
to which the performance conditvon has been satisfied up to
the end of the financial year in which the participant leaves
and () the pro-rating of the award to reflect the reduced
penod of trme between its grant and the date of cessation of
the participants ernployment or office

Corporate events
In the event of a takeover or winding up of the Company
(not being an internal corporate reorgarvsation) all awards
will vast early subject to (1) the extent that the performance
condittons have been satisfied at that trme and (n) the
pro-rating of the awards 1o reflect the reduced period of ume
between therr grant and vesting, although the Cormmittee
can decide not to pro-tate an award if it regards it as
Inappropnate to do so in the particular creumstances

'n the event of an internat corporate rearganisation awards
will be replaced by equivalent new awards over shares in a
new halding company unless the Cormmittee decides that
awards should vest on the basis which would apply in the
case of a takeaver

Clawback

The Committea may decide before or within three years of
vesting that a pariiaipanis award will be subject ta clawback
where there has been a misstatement of the Company's
financial results an error in assessing any applicable
performance condition or if the participants employment

15 terminated for gross risconguct The Commiiteg

may require the satisfaction of the clawback by way of a
reduction in future bonuses the vesting of any subsisting or
future awards granted under the Scheme or under certain
other share incentive plans and/for a requirement 1o make a
cash payment

Participants’ nghts

Awards of conditional shares and options will not confer
any shareholder rights until the awards have vested or the
options have been exeraised and the participants have
recewved therr Shares Holders of awards of forfeitable
Shares will have shareholder nghis from when the awards
are made except they may be required 10 wawve therr rights
to recewve dvidends

Rights attaching to Shares

Any Shares allotted when an award vests or 1s exercised
will rank equally with Shares then inissue (except for nghls
ansing by reference to a record date prior to therr alloiment)

Vanation of capital
In the event of ary vanation of the Campanys share capial
or in the event of a demerger payrment of a special dvidend
or aimilar event which matenally affects the market pnce of
the Shares the Commitlee may make such adjustment as it
considers appropnate to the number of Shares subject to an
award and/or the exercise pnce payable (f any)

In relation to Investment Shares a participant will be
treated on the same terms as any cther shareholder and
in the event of a vaniation of the Comparnys share capital,
the participant (or his/her spouse) may f appropnate
increase the number of his/her Investment Shares by
adding any further Shares acquired by virtue of his/her
holding of Investment Shares The number of Shares in any
corresponding award may be adjusied accordingly

Overall Scherme limits

The Scheme may operate over new ssue Shares treasury

Shares or Shares purchased in the market
In any ten calendar year period the Cornpany may nat

issue {or grant nghts 10 1ssug) more than

a 10 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company under the Scherne and any other employee
share schemne adopted by the Company and

b 5 per cent of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company under the Schemme and any other executive
share scheme adopted by the Company

Treasury Shares will count as new 1ssue Shares for the

purposes of these imits unless insttutional Investors decide

that they need not count

Alterations to the Scheme
The Comrmittee may at any urne amend the Scherne in any
respect provided that the prior approval of shareholders 15
obtained for any amendments that are to the advantage of
particzpants in respect of the rules governing eligibility lmits
on partiopation the overall lirmits on the 1ssue of Shares or
the transfer of Treasury Shares the basis for deterrmining a
particpants entitlernent to and the terms of, the Shares or
cash to be acqured and the adjustment of awards

The requirement to obiain the prior approval of
shareholders will not hawever apply 1o any minor
alteration made to benefit the adrministration of the
Scheme to take account of a change in legislation or to
obtain or maintain favourable tax exchange control or
regulatory treatment for participants or for any cormpany
in the Companys group Shareholder approval will also
not be required for any amendments to any performance
condition applying to an award

Overseas schemes

The sharehalder resolution ta approve the Scherne will
allow the Board to establish further schemes far overseas
terrtones any such scheme to be similar to the Scherme
but modified 1o take account of local tax, exchange control
or secunties laws provided that any Shares made avallable
under such further schemes are treated as couning
aganst the lmits on individual and overall participation in
the Scheme

OTHER INFORMATION 9
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A form of proxy 1s enclosed and instructions for its use
are shown on the form The appaintment of a proxy will
not prevent a member from subsequently attending,
voting and speaking at the Meeting in persen in which
case any votes of the proxy will be superseded

A member of the Company 18 entitied to appoint a
proxy 10 exercise all or any of his nghts to attend speak
and vote at a general meeting of the Company A
member may appoint more than ane proxy provided
that each proxy 1s appointed 1o exercise the nghts
attaching to different shares A praxy need not be a
member

To appomni mare than one proxy (an) additional praxy
form(s) may be obtained by contacting the Registrars or
you may photocopy the form Please indicate in the box
next o the proxy holder's name the number of shares
in relauon to which they are authonised to act as your
proxy Please also ndicate by ticking the box provided if
the proxy instruction is one of multiple nstructions being
given All forms must be signed and should be returned
together in the same envelope

The nght to appoint a proxy under notes 1 and 2
above does not apply to persons whose shares are
held on therr behalf by another persan and who

have been nominated to receve cormmunication

from the Company in accordance with section 146

of the Comparues Act 2006 {nominated persons)
Nominated persons may have a night under an
agreement with the registered sharehalder who holds
shares on their behalf to be appainted (or 10 have
someone else appomied) as a proxy Alternatively if
nominated persons do not have such a nght or do not
wish to exercise it they may have a nght under such an
agreerment to give INstructions to the person holding the
shares as to the exercise of voting nghts

To be effective the instrument appointing a prexy and
any authonty under which it 1s signed (or a notanally
certfied copy of such authority) for the Annual General
Meeting to be held at Northampton Rugby Fooiball Club
Franklins Gardens Weedon Road Northarnpton NNS
580 at 1200 noon on Wednesday 28 May 2014
and any adjournment(s) thereof must be returned to
Capita Asset Services at PXS 34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU by 1200 noon on 26
May 2014 Alternatively you may submit your proxy
form online by accessing the Share Portal at www
travisperkins-shares comn logging 1n and selecting the
Praxy Voting iink If you have not previcusly registered
for electroric communications you will first be asked
to register as a new user for which you will require your
investor code (which can be found on the enclosed
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NOTES TO THE NOTICE
OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

proxy form your share certificate or dwvidend tax
voucher) family name and post code {if resident in the
UK)

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies
through the CREST electranic proxy appointment
service may do by using the procedures described in
the CREST Manual

CREST personal members or other CREST
sponsored members and those CREST members
who have appointed a voung service provider(s)
should refer to therr CREST sponsors ar voting service
provider(s) who will be able 1o take the appropriate
action on therr behalf

In order for a proxy appointment made by means
of CREST to be valid the appropriate CREST message
(a CREST Proxy Instruction) rmust be properly
authenticated in accordance wath Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited specifications and must contain the
information required for such nsiructions as described
in the CREST Manual The message regardless of
whether it constitutes the apponiment of a proxy
or an amendrment to the instruction given to &
previously appainted proxy must in order to be valid
be transmitted so as to be receved by the Company's
agent {ID RA10) by the latest tme(s) for recaipt of
proxy appointments (12 00 noon on 26 May 2014)
For this purpose the time of receipt will be taken to
be the tme (as determined by the trmestamp applied
to the rmessage by the CREST Apphcaton Host) from
which the Companys agent 15 able to retrieve the
message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed
by CREST After this tirme any change of instructions
to proxies appainted through CREST should be
communicated to the appontee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable their CREST
sponsors and voling service providers should note
that Euroclear UK & Ireland Lirmited does not make
avattable speciat procedures in CREST for any particutar
rnessages Normal system timings and lirmitations
will therefare apply in relation to the input of CREST
Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibility of the CREST
member concerned to take {or if the CREST member
15 8 CREST personal member or sponsored mernber or
has appointed a voting service provider(s) o procure
that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider{s)
take(s)) such aciion as shall be necessary 10 ensure
that a message s transrmitied by means of the CREST
system by any particular trme In this connecticn
CREST members and where applicable then CREST
SpONSOrs or voting service providers are referred (N
particular to those sections of the CREST Manual
concerning pracheal imitations of the CREST system
and imings The CREST Manual can be reviewed at
wwweuroclearcom/CREST
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The Company may treat as invald a CREST
Proxy Instructian in the circumstances set out In
Regutation 35{5)(a) of the Uncertificated Secunties
Regulations 2001

In each case the proxy appointments must be
receved by the Company not less than 48 hours
(excluding any part of a day that 1s not a working day)
before the time appointed for holding the meeting or
any adjournment thereof

Only those members entered on the register of
members of the Company as at 6 00 pm on 26 May
2014 shall be enntled to attend or vote at the meeting
in respect of the number of shares registered in their
name at that ime Changes to entries on the register

of members after that tirne shall be disregarded in
determining the nghts of any person 10 attend or vote at
the meeting

Reference to the register means the 1ssuer register
of members and the Operatar register of members
mantained in accardance with Regulation 20 of the
Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001

The following documents will be avallable for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company duning usual
business hours on any weekday (Saturdays Sundays
and public holidays excluded) from the date of this
Notice to the date of the meeting and at Northampten
Rugby Football Club from 11 45arm on the day of the
meeting until the conclusion of the meeting.

+ Copies of contracts of serwice of directors and non-
executive directars letters of appointment with the
Cornpany or with any of its subsidiary companies
The register of directors interests kept by the
Carnpany

« A copy of the Company’s Articles of Association

A statement giving paraculars of directors relevant
transactions

A copy of the draft rules of the Travis Perkins Share
Matching Scherne 2014 Copies will also be avalable
for inspection at the offices of New Bndge Street (a
trading name of Aon Hewtt Limited) 10 Devonshire
Square London EC2ZM 4YP dunng usual busingss
hours on any weekday (Saturdays and English public
holidays exceptad) from the date of this Notice until
the cenclusion of the meeting

At 25 February 2014 (being the latest practicable
date before publication of this notice) the 1ssued share
capital of the Company consisted of 246 895 349
ordinary shares, carrying one vote each Therefore the

11

12

13

i4

total voting rghts in the Cormpany as at 25 February
2014 was 246 895 349

Any corporation which 1s a member can appoint ane
or maore corporate representatives who may exercise
on its behalf all of the same powers as the corporation
could exercise if it were an indwvidual mernber

Under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006
members meeting the threshold requirernents set out
In that section have the nght to require the Cormpary to
publish on a website a statement setting out any matter
relaing to {1) the audit of the Cormpany's accounts
(including the auditar's report and the conduct of the
audit) that are 10 be lad before the meeting or (n)

any crcumstance connected with an auditor of the
Company ceasing to hold office since the previous
meeting at which annual accounts and reports were
laid 1n accordance with section 437 of the Companies
Act 2006 The Company rmay nct require the
sharehotders requesting any such website publication
to pay its expenses in complying with sectians 527

or 528 of the Companies Act 2006 Where the
Company 1s required to place a statement on a website
under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006
must forward the statement to the Company's auditor
not later than the time when it makes the statement
available on the website The business which may be
dealt with at the meeting includes any staternent that
the Company has been required under section 527 of
the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website

Sharehaolders and therr prowes will have the oppartunity
10 ask questions at the Meeting When invited by the
Charman If you wish to ask a question please wait for
a Company representative to bring you a microphone
It wauld be helpful if you could state your name before
you ask your question Queshions may not be answered
at the Meeting If they are deemed not to be In the
interasts of the Company ar the good order of the
Meeting, would interfere unduly with the preparation
for the Meeting or involve the disclosure of confideniial
information or if the answer has already been given

on a website The Charrman may also nominate

a Company representative to answer a specific
question after the Meeung or refer the response to the
Companys website

A copy of this Notice and other information required
by section 31 1A of the Companies Act 2006 can be
found in the Investor Centre at

www travisperkinsple couk
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DIRECTIONS TO NORTHAMPTON
RUGBY FOOTBALL CLUB

The Trawis Perkins Annual General Meeting 1s to be held in
The Captains Lounge and The Rodber Sute
Northarmpton Rughy Football Club

Franklins Gardens

Weedon Road

Northampton NN5 5BG

Parking 1s directly outside in the VIP Car Park (follow VIP Car
Park signs off Weedon Road)

DIRECTIONS

From the south (va the M1)

Exit off motorway at junction 15A and fallow the signs
towards Sixfields At roundabout waith TG Frdays on the right
and a BP petrol station on the left carry straight on up the hill
At Cineworld roundabout turn nght towards the Town Centre
Go straight over the next two roundabouts (Sainsburys s

on the left before the first roundabout and Wickes cn the
rght after the second roundabout) and set of traffic lights
Continue en that read (Weedon Road) The entrance to the
Sants 15 on the nght mmediately after Beacon Bingo Follow
signs for VIP car park off Weedon Road

From the north (via the M1)

Exit off motorway at junction 16 and follow the A45 to
Northarmpton At Cineworld roundabout continue straight on
and follow directions from the South

From the east (Peterborough, Cambrndge, Wellingborough)
Follow A45 to M1 junction 15 Head north to junctien 15A
then follow directions from the South
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From Welford, Market Harborough

Aimn towards the Kingsthorpe area of Northampton Turn
nght at the major set of traffic ights (the Cock Hotel1s on
the corner) signposted Sixfields Continue an this road untit
you get to Cineworld roundabout (approximately 3 miles)
Turn left at the Cineworld roundabout then continue as from
the South

From the railway station

Turn right out of the station Continue past Thomas A
Becket pub Church and Co factory and bus station At fork
in road bear left and Frankling Gardens is on your left Walk
takes approx 15 minutes

Nearest arrports
London Luton and Nottingham East Midlands

Further information

For detalled directions you might want to try the following
websites

Google maps (wwwyoogle couk/maps)

The AA {wwwiheaacom)

The RAC {(wwwrac couk)

For further details aboui the venue
wwwnorthamptonsaints couk




OTHER SHAREHOLDER

INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Shareholder enquines should be directed 1o the Company
Secretary at the Company's registered office

Travis Perkins plc

L.odge Way House Lodge Way Harlestone Road
Northampton NN5S 7UG

Telephone Q1604 752424

Emnail cosec@travisperkins couk

or to the Company's registrars

Caprta Asset Serwices

The Regstry 34 Beckenham Road Beckenham Kent
BR3 4TU Telephone 0871 664 0300

(calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras lines are
apen 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday - Friday)

Email shareholderenquines@capita cauk

FINANCIAL DIARY

Ex-dradend date 30 Aprl 2014
Record date 2 May 2014

Annual General Meeting 28 May 2014
Payment of final dwvidend 30 May 2014

Annauncement of 2014

intenm results 30 July 2014
Intenim Management Statement 17 October 2014
Announcament of 2014

annual results 26 February 2015

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - CATERING
ARRANGEMENTS

It has always been the Cormpanys custom to provide a light
luncheon for shareholders following the AGM and a buifet
luncheon will be avalable

INTERNET

There are sites on the internet that carry a range of
information about the Group and sts principal brands
products and services al the following addresses
wwwcHtd couk®

www 4tradeproducts couk
wwwhenchmarxkitchens couk
wwwbirchwoodpricetools com

www bssindustral couk

wrwbuytilescauk

www cityheatingspares co uk

wwwityplumbing couk®

www connectionsaml couk
wwwefenderpowercom

wwwdhsspares couk

www fponlineordening couk

www pwholesale couk

www iressshbathrooms couk

www havelockcontrols couk

hitp //hire ravsperkins co uk/hire*
wwwiflocouk

wwwinsulationgiant co uk

wwwhkeyline couk*

hitp //hirekeyline couk/hire/*
WWW MISPEres com

v pro-heat couk

www ptsonlineordening couk
www ptsplumbing couk

www ptsrenewables co uk
wwwscruffs com

www sekiorinteniors couk
www selfbuldgroupcouk
www southern-darwent couk
www sustainablebuildingselutions couk
wwwilegiant couk®
wwwilehqeouk

www tilernagic couk

www timberdirect couk
wwwioolstation couk*
wwwipcareers couk
wwwipmanagedservices couk
wwwirademate couk®

www lravisperking co uk®
wwwiravisperkinsple com (investor relaticns site)
wwwvanvasult couk
wwwwickes couk™
wwwwickescareers couk
wwwwckeskitchens couk

“These sites allow credit account holders to order on-line
through Traderate with the exception of the Wickes Tile
Grant and ToolStation stes which allow on-ine ordering by
secure card transaction

Mast of the sites prowde information about branch
locations and allow access to prices and the product range
avallable Custarmers are also able to construct therr own
price quotation that includes any special price arrangements
that have been negotiated with the Group

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION
In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the
Company's Articles of Association the Comgpany 1s allowed
to use its website 1o publish statutory docurments and
communications 10 shareholders such as the Annual
Report and Accounis and the Notice of the AGM You can
therefore view or download a copy of the Annual Report
and Accounts and the Notce of the AGM by going to aur
website at wwwiravisperkinsplc.com (see section called
Investor Centre ) If you received a hard copy of this repori in
the post then you will not have consented to this method of
publication Should you now wish ta consent to this rmethod
of publication you should contact
Capita Asset Services
Freepost RLYX-GZTU-KRRG SAS
The Registry 34 Beckenharn Road
Beckenham BR3 9Q7ZA

By reducing the number of communications sent by
post it will not only result in cost savings to the Company
but also reduce the impact that the unnecessary printing
and distnbution of reports has an the ermaronment Please

OTHER INFORMATION @

Travis Perkins®




OTHER SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

note that if you consent to website publication you will
contnue to be notified each tme that the Cormpany places
a statutory communication on the website This notification
will be sent to you by post However you may also choose
to receve notifications by e-mal and we would encourage
you to do so If you wish to receive these notfications by
e-mail you should register at wwwiravisperkins-sharescom
and follow the instructions (see Registrar's On-Line Service
belaw)

Please telephone Capita Asset Services on
0871 664 0300 (within the UK) calls cost 10p per minute
plus network extras lines are open 900am to 5 30pm
Monday - Friday or +44 20 8639 3399 (Non UK) If you
have any quenes

Nates

1 Before consenting to receve docurnents and
communications via the website shareholders should
ensure that they have a computer with internet access
and the Adobe Acrobat reader facility The Adabe
Acrobat reader software may be obtained via the
website free of charge

2 If you elect to receve notifications of the publication of
the documents and communications on the website
electronically 1t wll be your respansibility to notify our
registrars Capita of any subsequent change 10 your
e-mail address or other contact detalls

3 If you are nat resident in the Uniied Kingdom 1t 1s your
responsiblity to ensure that you may validly receive
documents and communications electronically (erther
generally or in relation to any partcular docurment or
cornmunication) without the Company being required to
comply with any governmental or regulatory procedures
or any sirmilar fermalities The Company may deny
electronic access to documents and cormmunications
relating to certain corporate actions in respect of those
shareholders who it believes are resident in jurisdicions
where it 1s advised that to provide such access would or
may be a breach of any legal or regulatory requirements

4 The Company’s obligation to provide shareholder
documents to you 15 satisfied when it transmits an
electronic message The Company 15 not responsible
for any failure in transrmission for reasons beyond
its control any more than 1ts for postal fallures In
the event of the Company becoming aware that
an electronic communication to you has not been
successfully transmitted a further two attermpts will be
made If the transrission 15 still unsuccessful a hard
copy of the relevant notification will be posted to your
registerad address

5 Your registration 1o receive electronic communications
and your relevant contact address detasls will stand
until such time as the Company receives alternative
nstructions from you by e-marl or In writing

& The Company takes all reasonable precautions o
ensure no computer viruses are present in any electronic
communication It ransmits but the Company shall not
be responstble for any loss or damage ansing from the
opening or use of any e-mall or attachments sent by the
Cornpany or on 1is behalf The Company recommends
that shareholders subject all messages to computer virus
checking procedures Any elecironic communication
received by or on behalf of the Company including the
lodgement of an electronic proxy form that 1s found to
contain any computer virus will not be accepted

TRAVIS PERKINS PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2013

7 The Company reserves the nght rrespective of your
election to revert to sending hard copy documentation
by post whenever it considers 1t necessary or desirable
to do so

CAPITA ASSET SERVICES

The Companys regisirars Capita Asset Services { Capita)
provide a number of services that as a shareholder might
be useful to you

Regustrar's on-line service

By logging onto wwwiravisperkins-sharescom (the Share
Portal} and following the promipts shargholders can view
and amend various details on their account Please nate
that you will need io register to use this senvice for which
purpose you will require your unique investar code (IVC)
which can be found on your share certificate proxy card or
ddend tax voucher

Dividend re-investment Plan (‘'DRIP)
This 1s a schamne which allows you to use your dividends to
buy further shares in Traws Perkins For any shareholders
who wish to re-invest dvidend payrnents in the Company 2
facility 1s provided by Capita IRG Trustees Ltd in canjunction
with Capita Asset Services Under this facility cash dividends
are used to purchase additional shares Shares are bought
on the dvdend payment date at the then current market
price Any cash lefi over which 1s insufficient to purchase a
whole share will be carned forward and held without interest
in a Client Money bank account

You can sign up for this service on the Share Portal (by
clicking on reinvest dvdends and following the on screen
instructions) Any shareholder requiring further information
should contact Capita on 0871 664 0381 (Calls cost 10p
per minute plus any network extras from within the UK)
lines are open from 8 00 am o0 5 30 pm Monday - Friday
If Non-UK +44 208 639 3402 Emal shares@capita couk
or visit wwweapitaassetservicescorn Please note that this
facility 1s only available to shareholders with an address in
the UK or EEA The value of shares and income from them
can fall as well as nse and you may not recover the amount
of money you invest

Duplicate share register accounts

If you are receiving mare than one copy of our report it
may be that your shares are registered in two or more
accounts on our register of members If that was net your
intention you might consider merging thern into one single
enlry Please contacl Capita who will be pleased to carry
oul your instructions

Overseas shareholders
Capita has partnered with Deutsche Bank to provide you
with a serwce that will convert your sterling dividends into
your local currency at a competitive rate You can choose
1o receve payment drectly into your local bank account or
alternatively you can be sent a currency draft

You can sign up for this service on the Share Portal (by
clicking on your dividend options and following the on
screen Instructions) or by contacting the Custormer Support
Centre Further details are available from Capita Asset
Services by telephone UK 0871 664 G385 (UK calls
cost 10p per minute plus netwerk extras) From overseas
+44 20 8639 3405 Lines are open 900am to 5 30pm
Monday to Fniday excluding public holidays




SHARE DEALING SERVICES
Capnta and Stocktrade are two share dealing services that
you may wish to use to buy or sell shares in Trawis Perkins

Capita

Capita offers an on-line and telephone share dealing
service which 1s avallable by logging on to
wwweapitadeal com or telephoning 0871 664 0346
(calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras lines are
open 8 00am to 4 30pm Monday - Fnday) For the

on lne service Capitas commissior: rates are 1% of the
value of the deal (rmirimum £21 00 maxrmum £12500)
and for the telephone service Capias commission rates
are 1 50% of the value of the deal (mintmum £28 50
maximum £17500)

Stocktrade

Stocktrade offer a 1elephone share dealing service which

is avallable by telephoning +44 131 240 0508 and
quoting reference Travis Perkins Dial and Deal Stocktrades
cormmission will be 05% to deals up to the value of
£10000 and 0 2% on the excess thereafter, subject to a
minimum of £17 50 Please nole that UK share purchases
will be subject ta O 5% stamp duty There will also be a PTM
(Panel for Takeovers and Mergers) levy of €1 for single
trades In excess of £10000 When buying shares you will
be required to pay for your transaction at the tme of the
deal by debut card and you should ensure that you have
sufficient cleared funds available in your debit card account
to pay for the shares in full

SHARE FRAUD - WARNING TO SHAREROLDERS
In recent years share fraud has been increasing with
shareholders recewving unsolicited correspondence
concerning investment matters Fraudslers use persuasive
and high-pressure tactes to lure investors Into scams
offering to sell shares that turn out to be worthless ar
non-existent or to buy shares at an inflated price in return
for an upfront payment Sormetimes these individuals imply
that they represent Travs Perkins but in fact they have no
connection with the Company and have no authority to
clarn or mply that they are

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the
Financial Conduct Authonty using the share fraud reporting
form at wwwica orguk/scams where you ¢an also find out
more about Invastrment scams.
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